

NTID300.1

NOISE FROM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT AND OPERATIONS, BUILDING EQUIPMENT, AND HOME APPLIANCES

DECEMBER 31, 1971

Prepared by

BOLT, BERANEK AND NEWMAN under CONTRACT 68-04-0047

for the

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control Washington, D.C. 20460

This report has been approved for general availability. The contents of this report raffact the views of the contractor, who is responsible for the facts and the accuracy of the data presented herein, and do not necessarily reflect the official views or policy of EPA. This report does not constitute a standard, specification, or regulation.

For sale by the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20102 Price \$3.45 domestic postpaid or \$3 GPO Bookstore

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>page</u>						
PREFACE		111						
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS								
LIST OF FIGURE	2S	x						
LIST OF TABLES	5	xiii						
SECTION 1. IN	ITRODUCTION	1						
1.	1 Source Characterization	2						
1.	2 Impact Evaluation	3						
1.	3 Industry Assessment	5						
SECTION 2. SC	DURCE CHARACTERIZATION	7						
2.	1 Construction Equipment and Operation	7						
2.	2 Home Appliances	27						
2.	3 Building Equipment	53						
SECTION 3. IM	IPACT	62						
3.	1 Noise Level Criteria for Impact							
	Evaluation	62						
3,	2 Construction Noise	70						
3.	3 Appliances	94						
3.	4 Projections of Construction and Appliance Noise to the Year 2000	119						
SECTION 4. IN	DUSTRY EFFORTS	130						
4.	1 Introduction	130						
4.	2 Construction Industry Efforts	132						
4.	3 Building Equipment and Appliance Industry Efforts	144						

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

	÷		page
•	SECTION 5.	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	163
		5.1 Conclusions	163
		5.2 Recommendations	170
		5.3 Economic Impact Studies	178
		5.4 A Program of Public Support Development	180
		5.5 Social Impact	182
	REFERENCES	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	185
	APPENDIX A.	DETAILED SOURCE CHARACTERIZATION	A-1
		A.1 Construction Equipment	A-1
		A.2 Appliances	A-9
		A.3 Typical Equipment in Buildings	A-22
	REFERENCES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	A-38
	APPENDIX B.	IMPACT CONSIDERATIONS	B-1
		B.1 Interpretation of Impact Estimates	B-1
		B.2 Discussion of Construction Data	B-3
		B.3 Estimating the Extent of Public Works Construction Noise	в-6
		B.4 Propagation Loss Model for Building	
		Areas	в-8
	APPENDIX C.	SOUND LEVEL CONSIDERATIONS	C-1
		Noise - The Problem Stated	C-1
		The Concern for Noise	C-2
		What Are Manufacturers Doing About Noise?	C-4
		The Complex Answers	C-5
		Quieting Current Products	C-7

3

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

page

	Future Machine Quietness	C-7 C-8
APPENDIX D.	NOISE CONTROL: REGULATION AND STANDARDS	D-1
	D.1 · Introduction D.2 · Construction Equipment	D-1 D-2
61 - 	D.3 Noise Standards for Indoor and Outdoor Equipment for Home and Office Use	D-10

LIST OF FIGURES

			page
Figure	1.	Construction Equipment Noise Ranges	11
·	2.	Provisional Criteria Relating NPL to Commun- ity Noise Acceptability	17
	3.	A Summary of Noise Levels for Appliances Mea- sured at a Distance of 3 ft	31
	4.	Sound Pressure Levels of Various Refrigera- tors (Measured at 3 ft)	32
	5.	Schematic View of a Typical Room Air Condi- tioner	36
	б.	Sound Pressure Levels From Air Conditioner on High Cool and High Fan Settings (Measured at 3 ft)	38
	7.	Sound Pressure Levels From Air Conditioner on Two Settings (Measured at 3 ft)	40
	8.	Graphic Level Recording and Octave Band Sound Pressure Levels of a Dishwasher	42
	9.	Sound Pressure Levels of Various Automatic Dishwashers During Wash Cycle (Measured at 3 ft)	43
	10.	Sound Pressure Levels From Four Food-Waste Disposers (Measured at 3 ft)	46
	11.	Sound Pressure Levels of Canister Vacuum Cleaners Operating on Wood or Tile Floors (Measured at 3 ft)	48
	12.	Sound Pressure Levels of Two Upright Vacuum Cleaners (Measured at 3 ft)	49
	13.	Time History of the Sound Pressure Level in the 250 Hz Octave Band for a Tank Water Closet	51

ć,

LIST OF FIGURES (Continued)

			page
Figure	14.	Time History of Sound Pressure Level in 250 Hz Octave Band for a Flush Valve Water Closet	52
	15.	Range of Peak Octave Band Sound Pressure Levels in Rooms with Tank Type Water Closets.	54
· ·	ić.	Range of Peak Octave Band Sound Pressure Levels in Rooms with Flush Valve Water Closets	55
	17.	Range of Sound Levels in dB(A) Typical for Building Equipment at 3 ft	57
	18.	Cross-Section of a Typical Multistory Build- ing Showing Building Equipment	59
	19.	Range of Building Equipment Noise Levels to Which People are Exposed	60
	20.	Construction Site Geometry and Attenuation Contours for a Stationary Population within Buildings	79
	21.	Percent of Households with Selected Noise- Producing Appliances and Tools	97
	22,	Estimated Percent Distribution of Major Appliances by Income Level	98
	23.	Noise Profiles From Appliance for Typical Households Per Week (at 3 ft)	105
	24.	Number of Building Construction Sites Pro- jected to the Year 2000	123
	25.	Projected Change in Exposure to Construction Noise, Assuming No Change in Noise Levels	126
	26.	Projected Change in Exposure to Appliance Noise, Assuming No Change in Noise Levels	128
	27.	Cost of Noise Control vs Noise Reduction,	172

LIST OF FIGURES (Continued

		page
Figure A-1 through A-61.	Sound Pressure Levels for Various Appli- ances and Items of Construction Equipment	A-39 thru A-99
B-1.	Linear and Area Distribution of Population in Municipalities (Based on Massachusetts and Pennsylvania Data)	B-11

viii

LIST OF TABLES

ないというないないないないとなった。

いたからいないないないないないないです。

. *			page
Table	I-a.	Typical Ranges of Noise Levels at Construc- tion Sites With A 50 dB(A) Ambient Typical of Suburban Residential Areas	19
ور من الم	I-b.	Typical Ranges of Noise Levels at Construc- tion Sites With A 70 dB(A) Ambient Typical of Urban Areas	20
	II.	Noisiest Equipment Types Operating at Con- struction Sites	22
	III.	Noise Pollution Levels in dB(A) of Construc- tion Sites, Various Equipment Quieting Strategies	24
	IV.	Immediate Abatement Potential of Construc- tion Equipment	26
	v.	Noise Control for Construction Equipment	28
	vI.	Sources of Appliance Noise	34
	VII.	Exposure of Building Occupants to the Noise of Building Equipment	58
	VIII.	Estimates of Magnitudes of Noise Effects	63
	IX.	Metropolitan Regions Considered in Construc- tion Noise Exposure Estimate; Statistics as of 1970	72
	x.	Annual Construction Activity - 1970	74
	XI.	Geographical Distribution of Working-Day Populations	76
	XII.	Number of People Per Day Passing A Construc- tion Site	77
	XIII.	Level of Annual Construction Activity	78

LIST OF TABLES (Continued)

page

Table	XIV.	Distribution of Stationary Observers Rela- tive to Attenuation Contours	80
	XV.	Average and Peak Exposure Levels to Construc- tion Noise	82
	XVI.	Estimated Annual Passings of Construction Sites — All Metropolitan Regions	84
	XVII.	Order of Magnitude Estimates of Yearly Dur- ation of Construction Noise Exposure	86
	XVIII.	Order-of-Magnitude Estimates of Construction Noise Exposure in Millions of Person-Hours Per Week	92
	XIX.	Order-of-Magnitude Estimates of Impact of Primary and Secondary Exposure to Construc- tion Noise Expressed in Millions of Person- Hours Per Week	93
	xx.	Noncontrollable Household Noise Sources	95
	XXI.	Average Hours Per Day Spent on Household Work By 1296 Homemakers, According to Number of Children and Age of Youngest Child, Syra- cuse, New York Area, 1967-68	102
	XXII.	Appliance Usage Source Data	103
	xxiii.	Use of Noncontrollable Noise-Producing Appliances and Tools in Typical Households .	104
	XXIV.	Number of Individuals Exposed to Indicated Appliances	107
· .	xxv.	Estimated Number of Individuals Exposed to Domestic Appliance Noise	108
	XXVI.	Sound Pressure Levels of Home Appliances and Building Equipment Adjusted for Location of Exposure	109

х

LIST OF TABLES (Continued)

page

Fable	XXVII.	Order-of-Magnitude Estimates of the Extent and Duration of Exposure to Building Equip- ment and Home Appliances	110
te "s	XXVIII.	Order-of-Magnitude Estimates of Exposure to Home Appliance and Building Equipment Noise Expressed in Millions of Person-Hours Per Week	120
	A-1.	Use of Equipment at Construction Sites	A−4
	A-2.	Usage Factors of Equipment in Domestic Housing Construction	۸-5

×i

. . .

1. INTRODUCTION

As a society evolves technologically, the sources of noise grow in number and kind. Noise levels increase and the effects of noise on society become increasingly severe. Concomitantly, society continually requires more machinery, operating at higher speeds with greater power output. Aircraft, for example, have continued to grow in number and noise level, creating almost intolerable conditions for populations living, working, and playing . in the vicinity of airports. Trucks and construction equipment require increasingly powerful engines to enable a single operator to move more goods, materials, or earth faster and more economically. The thunder of these engines not only degrades the quality of life in our communities but also causes the operators to incur substantial levels of permanent hearing loss. A profusion of appliances that provide the energy needed to do everything from brushing our teeth and cooling our houses, to washing our dishes, disposing of our garbage, and cutting our grass often generate noise levels that interfere with conversation and disturb neighbors. Even the wilderness, once a refuge from hectic urban life, is now disturbed by the noise of trail bikes, all-terrain vehicles, and snowmobiles.

Given that noise is a serious environmental problem, some appropriate questions one might ask in seeking a comprehensive noise-control objective are: Precisely what are the sources of noise pollution? How many people are exposed to these sources and how are they affected? What can be done to control the noise output of offending sources? This report attempts to answer these questions for the specific categories of construction, home appliances, and building equipment.

1.1 Source Characterization

and and a second second second

The two principal objectives in characterizing sources are (1) evaluating noise levels in quantitative terms that may be used to determine the impact on people and (2) obtaining the information needed to assess the noise reduction that can be achieved. Relating measurable aspects of sound to human response is difficult at best. Such impact criteria as speech interference, sleep interruption, and annoyance depend not only on the physical nature of sound such as level, spectral content, and degree of fluctuation but also on the nonphysical aspects of noise such as the information content or implications of the sound. A rattling piece of equipment is often annoying not because of the noise level but primarily because it indicates a malfunction requiring attention.

Several attempts have been made to include various aspects of noise in a single number related to annoyance. Most of these methods try to account for the unequal sensitivity of the human hearing mechanisms to different frequencies and some try to account for fluctuations of level with time. A single number which accounts rather well for the human ear's relative insensitivity to low and very high frequency sound is the A-weighted scale. This weighting has been found to correlate about as well with annoyance as other indices [1]; it is quite widely accepted and can be read on a meter. In this report, we use A-weighting [dB(A)] to characterize noise insofar as impact evaluations are concerned.

Noise spectra are of far more use than single number ratings for assessing the contribution from various components to total noise levels. Pure tones associated with integer multiples of speeds of rotating machinery often appear as identifiable spectral peaks. Exhaust noise from an internal combustion engine

2.

typically contributes the dominant low-frequency component, whereas engine structural radiation and turbocharger whine usually generate the high-frequency levels. Hence, where possible, we provide noise spectra in octave or one-third octave bands.

Once sources have been characterized, we evaluate the abatement potential associated with each. Our evaluation is based on a somewhat broad analysis of the component contributions and to a great extent on judgment developed from experience with similar sources. For example, prior work with internal combustion engines enables us to estimate the benefit achievable from state-of-theart mufflers or engine enclosures. We estimate our predictions of achievable abatement potential to be within ±5 dB. A more accurate prediction of noise reduction would require detailed diagnosis of contributions from each source component and implementation of experimental noise-control treatment.

Because of the large number of sources evaluated (see Sec. 2), we place much detailed information (e.g., a number of noise spectra for sources whose impact is small) in Appendix A. Included in Appendix B is the background to the development of impact criteria and in Appendix D a discussion of existing standards.

1.2 Impact Evaluation

We evaluate the impact of noise on people, using two principal measures: intensity and extent. Clearly, it is important to know the levels to which a person may be exposed and the effects of this exposure. Thus, once the sources have been characterized and the relation of a listener to the source has been postulated, we estimate the physiological, psychological, and sociological effects of the noise. For example, permanent hearing damge is likely to occur for a significant percentage of the population

exposed to levels of 90 dB(A) for eight hours a day over an extended period of time. If the exposure time is short (e.g., 15 minutes a day), the noise may or may not contribute to hearing damage, but during exposure one cannot conduct an intelligible conversation. Exposure during evening hours to levels of noise that exceed approximately 70 dB(A) will usually lengthen the time one requires to go to sleep or will awaken someone who is already asleep — especially if the noise is intermittent and the background level is low.

The extent of noise impact is as important as the intensity in assessing the magnitude of noise pollution since this measure gives some perspective to the contribution from various sources. A truly comprehensive assessment would involve a detailed social survey with extensive noise measurements and statistically significant samples from every stratum of society. Such a program would no doubt consume millions of dollars and several calendar years. Clearly, this approach is not feasible in the three-month time period available for this study, nor would it represent an entirely justifiable allocation of resources. The goal of determining the impact of noise can be viewed only as an intermediate step to solving the actual problem: reducing the noise exposure of our population. Hence, an order-of-magnitude assessment of impact is probably an adequate guide to the development of a noiseabatement program. What matters, for example, is that approximately six million workers on night shifts and children under four cannot sleep because of construction noise. One's approach to construction-noise abatement would probably not be different if the figure were two million or ten million. We therefore provide this impact evaluation, not by social survey, but by estimating (1) the noise levels to which people are exposed, (2) the effects of noise on these people, and (3) the number of people

Ш

exposed. These estimates are based on measured values of equipment noise, data on human response to noise, statistics of equipment utilization, and statistics of population distributions. The impact of construction, appliances, and building equipment is discussed in Sec. 3.

1.3 Industry Assessment

To bring about control of environmental noise, the EPA must have information not only about the technology of abatement but also about the nature of the industry it may be called upon to influence. An understanding of the pressures for and against noise control is helpful in assessing the extent to which an industry is likely to institute noise control measures on its own and how the industry will be affected if it is compelled to produce quieter products. For example, the principal impact of construction noise, other than hearing-damage risk to operators (who have been amazingly casual about their plight), is on the community rather than the purchaser. The community has been able to exert very little influence on the purchaser or the manufacturer, the result being that very little has been accomplished in quieting construction equipment. For example, diesel-powered equipment is sometimes advertised and sold without even mufflers. A small number of companies; however, have begun to produce quiet equipment; they attribute their recent success in the marketplace to certain local noise legislation and to the threat of such regulations spreading to other communities.

An example of the effects that noise regulations may have on business comes from the home appliance industry. An airconditioner manufacturer has indicated that certain marketplace pressures inhibit him from implementing additional noise control in bottom-of-the-line items. He argues that more noise control

would increase the price of an item, thereby harming his competitive position. If all manufacturers were required to make their products quieter (and therefore more costly), one could argue that a segment of the population at lower income levels could no longer afford air-conditioners and would be deprived of that comfort.

By interviewing manufacturers of construction equipment, home appliances, and building equipment, we obtained their views of the relevance of noise control to their business. We found a substantial difference between the attitudes of people who manufacture construction equipment and those who manufacture appliances. The former, who find practically no marketplace demand for quiet equipment, are faced with the prospect of a mélange of state and city ordinances; they almost welcome "reasonable" federal standards. The latter find an increasing marketplace demand for quiet appliances and prefer not to see the implementation of federal standards or labeling requirements. Chapter 4 of this report contains an analysis of the pressures on industry to reduce (or not to reduce) noise levels, its response to these pressures, its present achievements, and its potential.

2. SOURCE CHARACTERIZATION

2.1 Construction Equipment and Operation

Construction has become a major noise problem in many cities and towns. The trend toward urban renewal and more high-rise structures has created an almost perpetual din on city streets. Equipment associated with construction projects is more numerous, and the time span for construction at a given site has lengthened. Residents very near a construction site may well plan on two years of intolerable noise levels as a high-rise structure is being built.

In this section, we consider the construction noise problem as it relates to residential and nonresidential buildings, city streets, and public works, because these kinds of project usually take place in areas where the number of people likely to be exposed is very high. Heavy construction, such as highways and civil works, has been omitted from our study because the vast bulk of this activity occurs in thinly populated areas where the noise affects very few people. We view construction as a process that can be categorized according to type and that consists of separate and distinct phases.

2.1.1 The construction process

The basic unit of construction activity is the construction site, which exists in both space and time. The temporal dimension consists of various sequential phases which change the character of the site's noise output as work progresses. These phases are discussed further below. In the case of building construction, the spatial character of the site is self-evident; in the case of sewers and roads, the extent of a site is taken, for reasons explained in Sec. 3.2, to be one standard city block or

about 1/8 of a mile. (That is, if a city reports 40 miles of sewer construction, we consider that project as consisting of 320 separate sites.)

Construction sites are typically classified in the fifteen categories in which construction data is reported by the U.S. Bureau of Census and various state and municipal bodies. The categories are:

• Residential buildings:

one- to four-family Five-family and larger

Nonresidential buildings:

Office, bank, professional Hotel, motel, etc. Hospitals and other institutions Schools Public works buildings Industrial Parking garages Religious Recreational Store, mercantile Service, repair station

• Municipal streets

• Public works (e.g., sewers, water mains).

For purposes of allocating construction effort among the different types of sites, it it possible to group the nonresidential sites into four larger categories which are differentiated by the cost of the average building in each category, as well as by the distribution of effort among the various construction phases. These four groups, in order of decreasing average cost per building, are:

- Office buildings, hospitals, hotels
- · Schools, public works buildings
- Industrial buildings, parking garages
- Stores, service stations, recreational buildings, and religious buildings.

Construction is carried out in several reasonably discrete steps, each of which has its own mix of equipment and consequently its own noise characteristics. The phases (some of which can be subdivided) are:

- Building Construction
 - 1. a. Clearing
 - b. Demolition
 - c. Site preparation
 - 2. Excavation
 - 3. Placing foundations
 - 4. a. Frame erection
 - b. Floors and roof
 - c. Skin and windows
 - 5. a. Finishing
 - b. Cleanup

• City Streets

- 1. Clearing
- 2. Removing old roadbed
- 3. Reconditioning old roadbed
- 4. Laying new subbase, paving
- 5. Finishing and cleanup

- · Public Works
 - 1. Clearing
 - 2. Excavation
 - 3. Compacting trench floor
 - 4. Pipe installation, filling trench
 - 5. Finishing and cleanup.

Defining the construction phases as above allows us to account for the variation in site noise output with time. By inventorying the equipment which is to be found at each site in each phase, we can derive a representative source level for each phase by the process described below.

2.1.2 Equipment noise characteristics

Despite the variety in type and size of construction equipment, similarities in the dominant noise sources and in patterns of operation permit one to assign all equipment to a very limited number of categories. These categories are described below and are indicated in Fig. 1, together with corresponding noise level data. Corresponding spectra and the sources of this data are given in Appendix A.

Equipment Powered by Internal Combustion Engines

The most prevalent noise source in construction equipment is the prime mover, i.e., the internal combustion engine (usually of the diesel type) used to provide motive and/or operating power. Engine-powered equipment may be categorized according to its mobility and operating characteristics, as (1) earthmoving equipment (highly mobile), (2) handling equipment (partly mobile), and (3) stationary equipment.

Earthmoving equipment includes excavating machinery (backhoes, bulldozers, shovels, front loaders, etc.) and highway

				NOISE L	EVEL (dba) AT 50 FT	r
\vdash	T -	CONPACTERS (DOLLERS)	50 <u>7</u>				
		COMPACIERS (RULERS)	 		ļ		
E S		FRONT LOADERS		 	├	ļ	
NGIN	Stilv.o	BACKHOES		 -		+1	
110	TH IAC	TRACTORS					
Isue	EAF	SCRAPERS, GRADERS				<u></u> 1	
102	ļ	PAVERS			н		
ERNAI		TRUCKS			I	1	
Y INTE	9.417	CONCRETE MIXERS					
ED 8	HAND	CONCRETE PUMPS			н		
OWER	SIALS	CRANES (MOVABLE)		· F			
NI F	I/ATE	CRANES (DERRICK)			н		
UP MI	A.R.	PUMPS	P	1			
ů.	ATION	GENERATORS					
	ST	COMPRESSORS					
	ŀ-Z	PNEUMATIC WRENCHES			├		
VPAC	3M G II	JACK HAMMERS AND ROCK DRILLS			}	 	
=	בסר	PILE DRIVERS (PEAKS)					
158		VIBRATOR			 {		
) fo		SAWS		I	4		

Note: Based on Limited Available Data Samples

.

FIG. 1. CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT NOISE RANGES.

building equipment (compactors, scrapers, graders, pavers, etc.). Internal combustion engines are used for propulsion (either on wheels or tracks) and for powering working mechanisms (buckets, arms, trenchers, etc.). Engine power varies from about 50 hp to over 600 hp. Engine noise typically predominates, with exhaust noise usually being most significant and with inlet noise and structural noise being of secondary importance. Other sources of noise in this equipment include the mechanical and hydraulic transmission and actuation systems, and cooling fans (often very significant). Typical operating cycles may involve one or two minutes of full-power operation, followed by three or four minutes at lower power.

Noise levels at 50 ft from earthmoving equipment range from about 73 to 96 dB(A). The greatest and most direct potential for noise abatement here lies in quieting the engine by use of improved mufflers.

Engine-powered materials-handling equipment such as cranes, derricks, concrete mixers, and concrete pumps, is used in a moreor-less fixed location; mobility of this equipment over the ground is not part of its major work cycle. Although noise from the working process (such as the clanking of aggregate in the concrete mixing bin) often is the most "identifiable" noise component, the dominant source of noise generally is the prime mover. Noise levels at 50 ft range from about 75 to 90 dB(A). The greatest potential abatement for noise again lies in engine quieting, with treatment of power transmission and working mechanisms being of secondary importance.

Stationary equipment, such as pumps, electric power generators and air compressors, generally runs continuously at relatively constant power and speed. Noise levels at 50 ft range

from about 70 to 80 dB(A), with pumps typically at the low end of this range. Stationary equipment, because of its fixed location and constant speed and/or load operation, may be quieted more easily than mobile equipment; engine mufflers can be more effective, and use of enclosures becomes feasible. [In fact, noise from some air compressors, has already been reduced by about 10 dB(A) by use of appropriate enclosures.]

The greatest near-term abatement potential for all current equipment powered by internal combustion engines lies in the use of better exhaust mufflers, intake silencers, and engine enclosures (in conjunction with appropriate cooling system and fan design). Reductions of 5 to 10 dB(A) appear to be achievable, usually without great difficulty. Practical long-term abatement [of about 15 to 20 dB(A)] can probably be achieved by basic engine design changes. Of course, replacement of the internal combustion engine by a quieter prime mover, such as a gas turbine or electric motor, would eliminate the reciprocating-engine noise source altogether.

Impact Equipment and Tools

Conventional pile drivers are either steam-powered or dieselpowered; in both types, the impact of the hammer dropping onto the pile is the dominant noise component. With steam drivers, noise is also generated by the power supply (a boiler) and the release of steam at the head; with diesel drivers, noise is also generated by the combustion explosion that actuates the hammer. Noise levels are difficult to measure or standardize, because they are affected by pile type and length, but peak levels tend to be about 100 dB(A) (or higher) at 50 ft. Impact-noise is absent in the so-called "sonic" (or vibratory) pile drivers. These do not use a drop hammer, but vibrate the pile at resonance. The noise associated with pile vibrations typically occurs around 150 Hz and is barely audible. The power source, which generally consists of two gasoline engines, is the primary noise source.

Abatement can be accomplished best by substituting use of a sonic pile driver for an impact machine where possible. (Unfortunately, sonic pile drivers are useful only for some soils.) Impact noise reduction at the source generally is very difficult. Substitution of nonimpact tools offers the best practical abatement potential; otherwise, reductions of perhaps 5 dB(A) may be obtained by use of enclosures.

Most impact tools, such as jack hammers, pavement breakers, and rock drills are pneumatically powered, but there are also hydraulic and electric models. The dominant sources of noise in pneumatic tools are the high-pressure exhaust and the impact of the tool bit against the work. Noise levels at 50 ft typically range from 80 to 97 dB(A).

An exhaust muffler on the compressed air exhaust can lower noise levels from the exhaust by up to about 10 dB(A). Pneumatic exhaust noise, of course, is absent in hydraulic or electric impact tools. Reduction of the impact noise from within a tool can be accomplished by means of an external jacket, which can contribute perhaps a 5 dB(A) reduction. Reduction of the noise due to impact between the tool and material being worked upon generally is difficult and requires acoustic barriers enclosing the work area and its immediate vicinity. Depending on the impacted structures, such barriers may reduce noise by 3 to 10 dB(A). Small hand-held pneumatic tools, such as pneumatic wrenches, generate noise of levels between 84 and 88 dB(A) at 50 ft. The exhaust and the impact are the dominant noise sources. Because of the obvious weight and size limitations to which hand tools are subject, only small and light mufflers can be used with them, limiting the achievable noise reduction to 5 dB(A) at best. The best practical means for reducing the noise from impact tools consists of using other types of tools to accomplish the same functions.

2.1.3 Site noise characteristics

いたというなどの

「日本語のない」

11.13

1000

÷,

前前

To characterize the noisiness - i.e., the average noise annoyance potential - of the various types of construction sites during each phase of construction, a Noise Pollution Level (NPL) was calculated for each type of site and each construction phase. The NPL used here was taken as the same measure that was used for similar evaluation of traffic noise [2]. The NPL (in dB) is defined as the sum of the A-weighted average sound pressure level and 2.56 times the standard deviation of the A-weighted sound pressure level*; thus, NPL accounts for the effect of steady noise, plus the annoyance due to fluctuations.

Although a thorough study relating NPL to subjective descriptors of annoyance (e.g., acceptable, unacceptable) has not been accomplished, a provisional interpretation of NPL in such terms can be suggested. On the basis of an evaluation of domestic and

^{*}A-weighting refers to a standard weighting of the various frequency components, approximating the behavior of human hearing. The average sound pressure level is computed on the basis of the time-average root-mean-square sound pressure, whereas the standard deviation is calculated from the time-variation of the dB(A) values.

foreign social surveys and psycho-acoustic studies, the Department of Housing and Urban Development has adopted a set of "guideline criteria" [3] for outdoor noise levels in residential areas as shown in Fig. 2 [4]. According to this chart, the community noise situation is evaluated by comparing a measured distribution of A-weighted levels with the criteria curves. The situation is categorized by the region of least desirability penetrated by the actual noise distribution. Since this criterian is based on level distributions, the boundaries between regions of acceptability may be defined in terms of the NPL. Thus, the following descriptors of NPL values may be used in interpreting the site noise NPL levels used in the remainder of this report.

Clearly Acceptable: The noise exposure is such that both the indoor and outdoor environments are pleasant.

NPL less than 62 dB

Normally Acceptable: The noise exposure is great enough to be of some concern but common building constructions will make the indoor environment acceptable, even for sleeping quarters, and the outdoor environment will be reasonably pleasant for recreation and play.

Normally Unacceptable: The noise exposure is significantly more severe so that unusual and costly building constructions are necessary to ensure some tranquility indoors, and barriers must be erected between the site and prominent noise sources to make the outdoor environment tolerable.

Clearly Unacceptable: The noise exposure at the site is so severe that the construction costs to make the indoor environment acceptable would be prohibitive and the outdoor environment would still be intolerable. NPL between 62 and 74 dB

NPL between 74 and 88 dB

NPL greater than 88 àB





We must emphasize that these criteria have not been officially or unofficially adopted by HUD or any other government agency. They are presented here solely to enable the reader to interpret NPL values computed in this report.

The aforementioned averages of noise annoyance potential. were calculated on the basis of information obtained on (1) the number of each item of equipment typically present at a site (in a given phase), (2) the length of the duty cycles of this equipment, and (3) the average noise levels during operation. For purposes of site characterization, the noisiest piece of equipment was assumed to be located at 50 ft from an observer, and all other equipment was assumed to be located at 200 ft from the observer; ambient noise, of levels depending on the surroundings of the site, was taken to be present in addition to the equipment noise. (Note that pile driver noise was not included in the NPL calculations, because its repetitive impact character makes its intrusion characteristics different from the more continuous noises for which the NPL concept was developed.) Clearly, this construction noise model is not entirely realistic; however, it may be expected to fulfill its intended purposes - that of yielding at least a relative measure of the noise annoyance associated with each type of site and phase for the most adverse conditions likely to be associated with each phase.

Table I shows NPLs calculated for each of five phases for each of four types of construction. For residential housing and public works construction, two NPL values are given in the table; one pertains to a noisy [70 dB(A)] background characteristic of urban conditions, the other to relatively quiet [50 dB(A)] ambient conditions found in suburban environments. As one may expect, the values indicated in the table reflect the fact that a given intruding noise is more annoying if it occurs in a quieter environment.

TABLE I-a. TYPICAL RANGES OF NOISE LEVELS AT CONSTRUCTION SITES WITH A 50 dB(A) AMBIENT TYPICAL OF SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL AREAS

والمرجد فترافد العنبان وتعريفه الموتدر بالمرمات فالتاريف الراد

and an and a second second

Non-Alignetic garage and the second second

	Domestic Housing		Office ing, Hosp School, Wo	Office Build- ing, Hotel, Hospital chool, Public Works		Industrial Parking Garage, Religious, Amusement & Recreations, Store, Service Station		c Works & High- Sewers, renches	
	I	11	I	ΙI	I	II .	I	II	
Ground Clearing	83 8 103	83 15 122	84 7 101	84 16 123	84 9 106	83 16 124	84 8 103	84 8 104	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
₽Excavation 9	88 8 109	75 14 111	89 6 105	79 2 85	89 6 105	71 2 77	88 7 106	78 3 86	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Foundations	81 10 107	81 17 124	78 3 84	78 3 86	77 4 87	77 5 90	88 8 108	88 8 108	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Erection	81 10 107	65 9 87	87 6 99	75 2 79	84 9 107	72 7 91	79 9 103	78 11 108	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Finishing	88 7 106	72 12 104	89 7 107	75 8 97	89 7 105	74 10 100	84 7 101	84 8 104	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL

I - All pertinent equipment present at site.

التداوري المتقاد بالوادر بدرك فتحتص ممحا فتتحد فوتجا

II - Minimum required equipment present at site.

And the second second

. . .

	Dome Hou	estic sing	Office ing, Hosp School, Wo	Build- Hotel, ital Public rks	Indus Parking Reli Amuse Recre Store, Sta	trial, Garage, gious, ment & ations, Service tion	Publi Roads ways, and T	c Works & High- Sewers, renches	
	I	II	I	II	I	II	I	II	
Ground Clearing	84 6 100	83 8 103	84 6 99	84 8 103	84 6 101	87 8 103	84 6 100	84 7 101	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Excavation	88 7 106	76 5 88	89 6 104	79 2 85	89 7 106	74 1 77	89 6 105	79 2 85	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Foundations	81 7 99	81 7 100	78 3 85	78 2 85	78 3 85	78 3 85	88 8 108	88 8 103	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Erection	82 6 97	71 1 75	85 5 97	76 1 79	85 7 103	74 2 80	79 88	79 4 88	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL
Finishing	88 7 106	74 4 84	89 6 104	76 4 86	89 6 104	75 3 84	84 6 1.00	84 6 100	Energy Average dB(A) Standard Deviation NPL

TABLE 1-b. TYPICAL RANGES OF NOISE LEVELS AT CONSTRUCTION SITES WITH A 70 dB(A) AMBIENT TYPICAL OF URBAN AREAS

and the product of the second s

en a come come

I - All pertinent equipment present at site.

II - Minimum required equipment present at site.

الهجا المحمدة بسواء ووكموته فتدخب وافعواتها الكاوات المتدر بمقافته أتتنا

20

-

The NPL values shown in Table I obviously depend on the previously described model of site noise. For this model, the average sound pressure level depends strongly on the one or two noisiest pieces of equipment, whereas the standard deviation depends largely on the numbers and duty cycles of the less noisy equipment and on the ambient noise level.

As evident from Table I, in building construction, the initial ground clearing and excavation phases tend to be the noisiest, the subsequent foundation and erection phases tend to be somewhat less noisy, and the final finishing phase again tends to be relatively noisy. In public works construction, on the other hand, NPLs are more nearly the same for all phases, except that the erection phase tends to be less noisy.

Table II lists the two noisiest types of equipment for each site type and phase, together with the average A-weighted noise levels (at 50 ft) for this equipment. Inspection of this table indicates that rock drills, which typically are the noisiest equipment, are prevalent in the excavation and finishing phases; trucks, on the other hand, are somewhat less noisy than rock drills or similar equipment but are present in nearly all phases.

Effect of Equipment Quieting

To assess the effect of some quieting strategies on the previously described site noise model, we recalculated the NPL for three "strategies" for each type of site and each phase:

Strategy 1:

Sec. 6

• Only the noisiest piece of equipment being quieted by 10 dB(A), with this equipment remaining at the previously specified 50 ft distance from the observer.

TABLE II. NOISIEST EQUIPMENT TYPES OPERATING AT CONSTRUCTION SITES*

.

	Construction Type												
	Domestic Hous			ing Office Bldgs.			<u>Public Works</u>						
Ground Clearing	Truck	(91)	d'enck	(91)	Truck	(01)	Truck	(01)					
	Scraper	(88)	Scraper	(88)	Scraper	(88)	Seraper	(88)					
Excavation	Rock Drill	(98)	Rock Drill	(98)	Rock Drill	(98)	Rock Drill	(98)					
	Truck	(91)	Truck	(91)	Truck	(91)	Truck	(91)					
Foundations	Concrete M:	ixer (85)	Jack Hamme	•(88)	Jack Hamme	r(88)	Truck	(91)					
	Pneumatic 🤉	Fools (85)	Concrete M.	lxer (85)	Concrete M:	ixer (85)	Scraper	(88)					
Erection	Concrete Mi	lxer (85)	Derrick Cra	ine (88)	Derrick Cra	ine (88)	Paver	(89)					
	Pneumatic 3	Cools (85).	Jack Hammer	r(88)	Jack Hammer	r(88)	Scraper	(88)					
Finishing	Rock Drill	(98)	Rock Drill	(98)	Rock Drill	(98)	Truck	(91)					
	Truck	(91)	Truck	(91)	Truck	(91)	Paver	(89)					

*Numbers in parentheses represent typical dB(A) levels at 50 ft. See Table I for definition of construction types.

Construction Phase

والمعادية والمعادية

Strategy 2:

• Only the noisiest piece of equipment being quieted by 10 dB(A), with this equipment moved to 200 ft and with the next noisiest equipment (unquieted) moved to 50 ft from the observer position

Strategy A:

Section 19

• All items of equipment quieted by 10 dB(A).

The results of these calculations are shown in Table III, together with the NPL values previously obtained without any quieting (Strategy O). It appears that quieting only the noisiest piece of equipment generally reduces the site NPL relatively little, if other types of equipment can also operate near the observer (compare Strategies O and 2). On the other hand, quieting the noisiest equipment and letting no others operate near the observer may result in significant reductions (compare Strategies O and 1). Of course, quieting all equipment (Strategy A) results in the lowest NPL values; however, these values are often only slightly lower than those obtained by quieting only the noisiest item (Strategy 1).

The site noise model used here initially assumes the noisiest equipment to be located nearest the observer. It can happen that quieting the noisiest equipment, moving it away from the observer, and moving the second noisiest equipment near the observer (Strategy 2) results in an *increase* in the NPL, if the second noisiest equipment is used more frequently than the noisiest. This peculiarity of the noise model, where equipment quieting seemingly increases the noise, is evident at several places in Table III.

TABLE III. NOISE POLLUTION LEVELS IN dB(A) OF CONSTRUCTION SITES, VARIOUS EQUIPMENT QUIETING STRATEGIES*

		Domestic Housing								Office Building			Industrial				Public Works								
	Ambient		Urban			[Rural			Urban			Urban				Urban				Rural				
_	Quieting Strategy**	0	1	2	A	0	1	2	A	0	1	2	A	0	1	2	A	0	1	2	A	0	1	2	A
Phase	Oround Clearing	100	88	98	85	103	91	101	94	99	86	96	85	101	87	97	85	100	84	87	85	103	87	91	91
5	Excavation	106	93	109	92	109	93	111	100	104	91	105	91	106	92	103	91	105	91	98	92	106	92	99	95
cti	Foundation	99	81	81	81	107	86	83	96	85	80	94	76	85	82	98	76	108	87	96	90	108	89	96	99
tru	Erection	97	82	88	81	107	105	102	93	97	84	85	85	103	88	84	86	88	81	89	77	103	89	90	84
Cons	Finishing	106	93	99	92	106	93	99	95	104	91	98	92	104	91	97	89	100	89	94	85	101	88	95	92

* See text for site noise model; see Table I for construction type and ambient noise definitions.

** 0 - No quieting

24

- 1 Noisiest equipment, at 50 ft from observer, quieted by 10 dB(A).
- 2 Noisiest equipment quieted by 10 dB(A) and moved to 200 ft from observer; second-noisiest equipment (not quieted) moved to 50 ft from observer.

.....

A - All equipment quieted by 10 dB(A).

.

Other Means for Site Noise Control

The NPL generated by a construction site also may be reduced by means other than quieting the equipment:

- Replacement of individual operations and techniques by less noisy ones - e.g., using welding instead of riveting, mixing concrete offsite instead of onsite, and employing prefabricated structures instead of assembling them on site.
- Selecting the quietest of alternate items of equipment e.g., electric instead of diesel-powered equipment, hydraulic tools instead of pneumatic impact tools.
- Scheduling of equipment operations to keep average levels low, to have noisiest operations coincide with times of highest ambient levels, and to keep noise levels relatively uniform in time; also, turning off idling equipment.
- Keeping noisy equipment as far as possible from site boundaries.
- Providing enclosures for stationary items of equipment and barriers around particularly noisy areas on the site or around the entire site.

Equipment Noise Reduction Potential

Table IV lists the present average noise levels in dB(A) for the various types of construction equipment discussed previously; also listed are the noise levels expected to be achievable in a relatively short time, with limited cost and performance penalties. In addition, the table shows the most significant noise sources for each type of equipment and assigns a numerical "usage" factor to each item, on the basis of which one can assess the significance of quieting of the various individual items. From
TABLE IV. IMMEDIATE ABATEMENT POTENTIAL OF CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT

Equipment	Noi in dB(Present	se Level A) at 50 ft With Feasible Noise Control ¹	Important Noise Sources ²	Usage ³
Earthmoving front loader backhoes dozers tractors scrapers graders truck paver	79 85 80 88 88 85 91 89	75 75 75 80 75 80 75 80	E C F I H E C F I H E C F I W E C F I W E C F I W E C F I T E D F I	.4 .16 .4 .4 .4 .98 .4 .1
Materials Handling concrete mixer concrete pump crane derrick	85 82 83 88	75 75 75 75	E C F W T E C H E C F I T E C F I T	.4 .4 .16 .16
Stationary pumps generators compressors	76 78 81	75 75 75	EC EC . ECHI.	1.0 1.0 1.0
Impact pile drivers jack ha mers rock drills pneumatic tools	101 88 98 86	95 75 80 80	W P E P W E C W E P P W E C	.04 .1 .04 .16
Other saws vibrator	78 76	75 75	W W E C	.04 .4

Notes:

1. Estimated levels obtainable by selecting quieter procedures or machines and implementing noise control features requiring no major redesign or extreme cost.

2, In order of importance:

T Power Transmission System, Gearing 9 Cooling Fan

C Engine Casing E Engine Exhaust

- W Tool-Work Interaction H Hydraulics
- I Engine Intake P Pneumatic Exhaust
- 3. Percentage of time equipment is operating at noislest mode in most used phase on site.

-- , .`

this table, one may determine that control of engine noise, and particularly of engine exhaust noise, will affect many items of equipment with high usage factors and thus should be given high priority.

Table V presents a brief listing of the noise control techniques applicable to the sources indicated in Table IV, together with an estimate of the noise reductions that may readily be achieved by means of these techniques.

2.2 Home Appliances

The use of convenient and sometimes necessary appliances constitutes a growing noise problem within the home. Almost without exception, appliances could be significantly quieter. However, manufacturers offer three primary arguments for opposing quieter redesign; they believe

- that the public associates the noise generated by a device with its power;
- that quieter appliances would be marketed at a price disadvantage and since the public has not objected to noise, that the public, in general, is satisfied;
- that since appliances are generally controlled by the operator, the option, as with air conditioners, "to have quiet or to be cool" is "option enough".

Yet, in keeping with the public's growing awareness of noise, many appliances are advertised as being "noiseless", "quiet", "vibration-free".

Although many manufacturers have made detailed acoustic measurements of the noise output of their appliances, very little data has been reported in the open literature. Some of the

TABLE V. NOISE CONTROL FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT

i

. .

Source	<u>Control Techniques</u>	Probable Noise <u>Reduction in dB(A)*</u>
Engine		
exhaus t	improved muffler	10
casing	improved design of block	2
	enclosure	10
fan (cooling)	redesign	5
	silencers, ducts and mufflers	5
intake	silencers	5
Transmission	redesign, new materials	7
	enclosure	7
Hydraulics	redesign, new materials	7
	enclosure	10
Exhaust		
(pneumatic)	muffler	5-10
Tool-Work		
interaction	enclosure	7-20
	change in principle	10-30

*Note that noise reductions are not additive. Incremental reductions can be realized only by simultaneous quieting of all sources of equal strength.

literature (especially "nonacoustic" reporting) presents insufficient information to enable utilization of the reported measurements in this study. For example, in one report [5], the noise levels are described as being "recorded at operator's or housewife's normal ear distance"; for those appliances not requiring continual operation, the distance from the exposed person to the appliance is not specified. In other examples drawn from newspapers, trade journals, and magazines measurements are not qualified as to distance from the source, type of instrumentation, and weighting network (if any) that was used. In the following sections, only the literature found to be well-documented and considered accurate will be used in appropriate discussions.

2.2.1 Measurements

Because of the scarcity of reliable data, we measured the noise from thirty types of home appliances and eleven types of home shop tools. Sound levels were measured in dB(A) at a distance of 3 ft from the appliance and a height of 5 ft; this measurement position approximates the location of the operator's ear for those appliances requiring an operator. For those appliances noise levels in the vicinity of the appliance. Noise levels in the reverberant field of the room in which the appliance is being operated may be on the order of 2 to 3 dB(A) less than the measurement at 3 ft.

Noise levels in adjacent rooms with the interconnecting door open may be as much as 10 dB(A) less than the levels at 3 ft or as much as several dB(A) greater than the 3 ft levels, depending upon the details of the installation. For the appliances that are used near the ear (e.g., an electric-shaver), the noise level at the ear may be as much as 10 dB(A) greater than the 3 ft mea-

surements. Figure 3 summarizes the noise measurements made by BBN and some of those reported in the literature. Each noint represents a single measurement. Several measurements are given for a single appliance that operates in different modes. The solid circles represent noise levels generated by American appliancies; foreign brands are represented by the squares. Problems arise in evaluating this data because the appliances were manufactured in different years by different companies, were scattered through the lines offered by the manufacturers, and may be providing different features. For example, a recently built refrigerator may be frost-free and may have special devices such as ice makers; therefore it may generate more noise than earlier · refrigerators. Figure 4 presents octave band spectra for refrigerators that were manufactured through 1958 [8] and in 1965. 1967, and 1970 [7]. Noise generated by this sample of refrigerators demonstrates the problem of data comparison: the unit that was old in 1958 was the noisiest, while the 1970 unit was second noisiest. The quietest refrigerator is the 1965 model. However, there is considerable difference between the physical size of the units, and the newer models incorporate such features automatic defrost, ice-cube maker, water dispenser, and humidified compartment.

2.2.2 Noise abatement potential

The thirty appliances and eleven shop tools surveyed exhibited no apparent acoustical problems that could not be abated through the diligent application of noise control technology. Achieving a cost-effective solution that can be incorporated into the design of an appliance is more difficult but still possible. Standard noise control techniques are readily available; wrapping, damping, flexible connections, vibration isolation, better

FREEZER REFRIGERATOR HEATER, ELECTRIC HAIR CLIPPER TOOTHBRUSH, ELECTRIC HUMIDIFIER FAN DEHUMIDIFIER CLOTHES DRYER AIR CONDITIONER SHAVER, ELECTRIC WATER FAUCET HAIR DRYER CLOTHES WASHER WATER CLOSET DISHWASHER CAN OPENER, ELECTRIC FOOD MIXER KNIFE, ELECTRIC KNIFE SHARPENER, ELECTRIC SEWING MACHINE ORAL LAVAGE VACUUM CLEANER FOOD BLENDER COFFEE MILL FOOD WASTE DISPOSER EDGER AND TRIMMER HOME SHOP TOOLS HEDGE CLIPPERS LAWN MOWER, ELECTRIC

÷

1

1

and the second second



FIG. 3. A SUMMARY OF NOISE LEVELS FOR APPLIANCES MEASURED AT A DISTANCE OF 3 FT.



FIG. 4. SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OF VARIOUS REFRIGERATORS (MEASURED AT 3 ft)

balance, and smoother mechanical connections. Since many appliances have similar mechanisms, noise control techniques used on one appliance can often be applied to another.

After reviewing the operating characteristics and mechanical properties of appliances, we ranked the noise sources in order of their contribution to the total noise generated by an appliance (see Table VI). Definitive measurements are not available to enable a quantitative breakdown of the contribution of individual components. However, in general, motors, fans, knives (or other cutting blades), and air flow are the most frequent sources of noise. Noise radiated from the casing or panels of the appliances and noise radiated from walls, floors, cabinets, sinks (set into vibration by solid structural connections) are also of major importance.

We review here in some detail the noise generating mechanisms of several appliances that have high enough noise levels and exposure time to be considered annoying. Included in this review are air conditioners, dishwashers, food waste disposers, vacuum cleaners, and toilets. Other appliances are discussed in Appendix A.

Room Air Conditioners

Figure 5 is a schematic view of a typical room air conditioner. Basically, warm air in the room or from outside is drawn through a dust filter, blown across cold evaporator coils and distributed back into the room. Fluid in the evaporator, heated by this action, flows to the condenser coils. Outside air is blown across these coils by the propeller fan. The fluid is then compressed and flows back to the evaporator.

	Source	Air Flow	mbustion Roar	Compressor	Fan	Gears	Knives utting Blades)	Motors	Panels	дшл	tructureborne	Water Noîse	
мриталсе			2				0)				Ś		
Can Opener, electric						1		l	2				
Clothes Dryer			1					1	2				
Clothes Washer								2	2	2		1	
Coffee Mill													
Dehumidifier		1		3	1			l	2				
Dishwasher					3			3	2	2	2	1	
Edger and Trimmer							1	2					
Fan		1			1			2					
Food Blender							1	1	2				
Food Mixer							1	l	2				
Food Waste Disposer							1	2			2	1	
Freezer				1	1			1	2			-	
Hair Clipper						1		1					
Hair Dryer		1			l			2					
Heater, electric		1			1			1	2				
Hedge Clippers						2		l					
Hope Shop Tools					1	1		l	1		2		
Humidifier		1			l			1					

TABLE VI. SOURCES OF APPLIANCE NOISE

Source	Air Flow	Combustion Roa	Compressor	Fan	Gears	Knives (Cutting Blades	Notors	Panels	Pump	Structureborne	Water Noise	
					1		1					
							1					
					1		1	1				
							1		1			
			1	1			1.					
	1		2	2			2	3		3		
							1					
					1		1					
										2	1.	
					1	1.						
	1			1			1	2				
										2	1.	
	Source	Source T Air Flow	Source T Air Flow Combustion Roa	Source Air Flow Combustion Roar I Compressor	Fan	l l Source Source 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	I I Source 1 1 Nir Flow 1 1 1	l lotors or compressor load	Panels 1 1 1 1 2 Panels 1 1 1 1 1 Panels 1 1 1 1 Panels 1	1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Surveture Structure	Note: Noise of the second seco

TABLE VI (continued)

e

Carl Contractor

l Rither and 2.1



FIG. 5. SCHEMATIC VIEW OF A TYPICAL ROOM AIR CONDITIONER.

The major sources of noise in this process are the motor, the blower (evaporator fan), the propeller fan (condenser fan), the compressor, and the air flow across the evaporator colls. In addition, panels of the housing radiate noise, as does the structure upon which the air conditioning unit is mounted. The character of this noise is complex, consisting of pure tones, pulsating sounds, intermittent clicks, buzzes and rattles, all superimposed on broadband noise [8]. The tonal components and broadband noise represent the primary noises that require noise control treatment; for the most part, buzzes and rattles (often caused by loose parts), intermittent clicks (caused by spring activated thermostat controls and relays), and pulsating noises (generated by the capillary tube and evaporator valves) have been controlled in current models so that they do not dominate the total noise level.

Pure tones may be generated by (1) the motor at multiples of the rotation speed, (2) the compressor at multiples of the pumping fundamental frequency (the speed in revolutions per second times the number of pumping cycles per revolution), and (3) the propeller fan at blade-passage frequency (the speed in revolutions per second times the number of blades). Whether or not these pure tones appear in the spectrum heard indoors depends upon the structural connections between the components and the enclosure panels as well as on connections to supporting structures. In Fig. 6, noise levels measured on a particular unit with the fan on high speed, with and without the compressor, illustrate this concept; the increase in the one-third octave band centered at 63 Hz is due to a lack of sufficient vibration isolation of the compressor from its case and/or insufficient isolation of the casing from the wall supporting it.



FIG. 6. SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM AIR CONDITIONER ON HIGH COOL AND HIGH FAN SETTINGS (MEASURED AT 3 ft)

Broadband noise is generated by the blower, the flow of hir through the evaporator coils, and the deflection of the air into the room. Often the blower can operate at several speeds; the slower the speed, the lower the noise level from both the blower and the air flow (see Fig. 7).

Noise control means that can be applied to motor and compressor noise include better vibration isolation of the motor and fans from the housing through use of rubber or neoprene mounts. Compressors, usually hermetically-sealed, can be mounted on springs internally, and on rubber or neoprene pads externally. A more thorough isolation of the motor, fans, and compressor from the casing and of the complete unit from its support could result in a noise reduction of about 5 dB in the low-frequency region controlled by tonal sounds from these components.

The broadband noise generated by the centrifugal blower and the air flow can be reduced by

 reducing the air velocity by using the low-speed fan (if maximum cool is not required);

「自己などのようなりたい」たいたい

and the second

1.1

- reducing the air velocity by increasing the area of the evaporator coils (perhaps increasing the total size of the unit);
- incorporating sound absorbing material, such as open-dell polyurethane foam, between the evaporator coils and the deflection grids and in the duct passage between the blower and the evaporator coils and the blower and the dust filter; and
- tightening the gasketing system to eliminate rattles.

Broadband noise can be reduced by 10 to 15 dB through effective use of these techniques. Coupled with more effective isolation



SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM AIR CONDITIONER ON TWO SETTINGS (MEASURED AT 3 ft) FIG. 7.

of the compressor, motor, and fand, a total noise reduction of 10 to 15 dB(A) is not unreasonable. Perhaps an appropriate design goal for high cool operation is 40 dB(A) at 3 ft.

Dishwashers

A dishwasher is essentially a tub equipped with a water spray system that is driven by a motor-pump assembly. Heating coils and a blower are provided to assist in the drying operation. A complete wash may consist of as many as thirteen cycles: minse, fill, wash, drain, fill, minse, drain, fill, minse drain, fill, minse, drain. Figure 8 plots the noise level in dB(A) as a function of operation [2]. In this example, the wash and minse cycles are noisier than the drain and fill cycles by about 8 dB(A). Figure 9 presents octave band measurements made during the wash cycle on five different dishwashers. The data varies 5 to 20 dB between the quietest and holsiest dishwasher measured in 1971, depending on the frequency band of interest, representing about 10 dB(A) difference between the quietest and the noisiest. Although the data sample is small, this figure also illustrates, that some newer dishwashers are noisier than older ones.

The noise generating mechanisms in a dishwasher include the impingement of water against the sides and top of the tub, the motor, the pump, the excitation of panel casings, structural connections to water supply, water drain and cabinet, and the blower.

Broadband "water noise" is most important in the frequency range above 300 to 400 Hz; motor-induced noise, often pure tones at the motor rotation frequency and harmonics thereof, dominate the lower frequencies. The kick panel below the loading door on a dishwasher installed in a typical kitchen-cabinet also transmits noise from the motor enclosure into the room.



LEVELS OF A DISHWASHER.





Through the use of experimental splash curtains, which prevent impingement of the water spray on the tub walls, water noise has been reduced by 6 to 8 dB(A) [11]. The motor-pump assembly is often isolated from the tub by rubber mounts; however, the effectiveness of these mounts can be reduced in the installation process by an insufficient clearance between the motor and the floor.

Often, the sides and top of a dishwasher are brought into contact with the cabinet. A clearance of 1/2 in. all around the machines, with neoprene isolation pads insuring the clearance, will reduce the noise radiated by the cabinet as well as the noise transmitted to other parts of the house. The use of rubber hoses for supply and drainage are an improvement over the copper tubing often provided. The incorporation of acoustic material in the motor-pump enclosure and a kick panel that is sealed (no air leaks) would also reduce the noise. It is anticipated that if

- water noise were reduced (e.g., by installing splash curtains);
- effective vibration isolation of the motor-pump from the tub were ensured;
- effective vibration isolation of the dishwasher housing from the floor, cabinet walls and top were ensured;
- rubber hoses were used;
- acoustical absorption material were installed in the motor enclosure; and
- · the kick panel were sealed air-tight -

the noise levels of a typical dishwasher could be reduced by some 10 to 15 dB(A), from a level in the mid sixties to one in the low

fiftles. Because of its intermittent operation, a goal of 45 to 50 dB(A) at 3 ft is probably acceptable.

Food Waste Disposers

Continuous-feed and batch-feed disposers are chambers in which food waste is ground by a motor-driven wheel with cutting edges. Figure 10 presents one-third octave band sound pressure level data for four different disposers. Although the details of the spectra differ, each has a major peak at 125 Hz and several minor peaks at higher frequencies, all superimposed on broadband noise. The peak at 125 Hz is primarily motor noise. The minor peaks can be attributed to the blade-passage frequency of the grind wheel, multiples thereof, and resonances in the sink. The broadband noise is generated by the sloshing of water and waste against the housing of the chamber.

Noise is transmitted up through the mouth of the disposer. Batch-feed disposers, which require the sink cover to be in place before operation, have the potential for being quieter. Continuous-feed units sometimes have partial rubber closures at the mouth of the unit (primarily to prevent food waste from being expelled); for these closures to be effective in controlling noise, they must overlap to shut off the entire opening.

Basic noise control treatments that have been moderately successful include vibration isolation of the disposer from the sink and the enclosure of the chamber and motor with a double wall construction. It is estimated that the noise levels generated by disposers could be reduced by about 10 dB(A) with the following treatments:

- effective vibration isolation of the disposer from the sink;
- damping of the sink;



FIG. 10. SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FOUR FOOD-WASTE DISPOSERS (MEASURED AT $3 \cdot ft$)

 flexible connections between the disposer and the drain pipe, which will also reduce the noise transmitted to other rooms and/or apartments;

. flexible electrical connection;

- ' enclosure of both the grinding chamber and motor, with appropriate ventilation; and
- effective closure of the mouth of the disposer.

Vacuum Cleaners

Canister vacuum cleaners consist of a tank (either horizontal or vertical) that provides suction, a connecting hose, and appropriate nozzles. Some recently manufactured canister units also have powered rotating brush attachments for cleaning carpets. Figure 11 presents sound pressure levels measured in onethird octave frequency bands for four canister units. As with other appliances, the peak at 125 Hz is motor-induced noise. The peaks in the 800 to 1600 Hz range are probably caused by the blade-passage frequency of the blower and/or resonances of the unit structure. Through the use of better blower design, more thorough vibration isolation of the motor and blower(s) from the structure, and damping and sealing of the canister structure, the noise generated by canister units could be reduced by 10 dB(A).

In addition to a motor-blower assembly, upright vacuum cleaners have a mechanism (either vibrating agitators or rolling brushes) that beats the carpet to bring dirt to the surface where it is sucked away. Figure 12 presents one-third octave band sound pressure level data for two upright vacuum cleaners - a large unit with a beating mechanism and a small one without a beater. For the larger unit, the low frequency noise is again







FIG. 12. SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OF TWO UPRIGHT VACUUM CLEANERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

motor-induced. The peaks in the higher frequency range are caused by fan(s) and/or structural radiation. The difference between the two units in the low-frequency bands is due to the difference in capacity as well as to the lack of a beater on one model. Noise control for upright cleaners will be more difficult to achieve than for the canister units because of the location of the beater and the limitations on size. It is anticipated that a 5 dB(A) noise reduction could be achieved on the typical unit.

Water Closets

Water closets are either of the tank type or the valve type and are either floor-mounted or wall-mounted. Figure 13 illustrates the time history of the sound pressure level in the 250 Hz octave band for operation of a tank water closet [12]. Time Period A represents the valve opening and releasing water in the tank to flow into the bowl through an opening in the base of the bowl. The water produces a swirling action in the lower half of the bowl (Time Period B). The valve closes (Time Period C) and the tank and bowl are refilled (Time Period D).

Figure 14 illustrates the time history of the sound pressure level in the 250 Hz octave band for a flush valve water closet [12]. The valve opens (A); air and then water are forced out of the rim supply (B); the valve closes (C) and the bowl is refilled (D). A comparison of these two figures suggests that flush valve water closets generate somewhat higher initial noise levels during an operating cycle but that the noise does not persist as long as with tank water closets. Since the character of the sounds is different, it is not clear at this time which would be more desirable.



FIG. 13. TIME HISTORY OF THE SOUND PRESSURE LEVEL IN THE 250 HZ OCTAVE BAND FOR A TANK WATER CLOSET.

ц Ц



FIG. 14, TIME HISTORY OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVEL IN 250 HZ OCTAVE BAND FOR A FLUSH VALVE WATER CLOSET. Figure 15 presents peak octave band data for a sampling of tank water closets and Fig. 16 for flush valve water closets. A comparison of these two figures shows that it is possible to have relatively noisy or quiet operation with either type of water closet provided. For tank water closets, water flow control and inlet water pressure are both important variables in the noise generated [12]. For flush valve closets, bowl design was found to be of major importance, with valve type (exposed flush vs recessed flush) and mounting (floor vs wall) of lesser importance. Resilient mounting of water closets and piping was found to be more important for some fixtures than for others - e.g., a range of several dB(A) to 15 dB(A) for valve-operated water closets.

2.3 Building Equipment

ł

とうたいないでは、「ないない」になった。 ないないないないない

The proper operation of large buildings requires a number of different types of electrical and mechanical equipment. In this section, we review the noise levels generated by electrical and mechanical equipment, present noise levels for a typical multistory building, and discuss the possibilities of noise control through architectural modification. Detailed descriptions of additional building equipment types are given in Appendix A.

2.3.1 Types of equipment

The majority of electrical and mechanical equipment in buildings is used to supply the building occupants with a suitable quantity of air at a comfortable temperature and moisture content. In addition, pumping and piping systems are used for water and fluid circulation, elevators and escalators are used for movement of personnel, and various conveyance systems are used for moving material.





i.],



そうたいになったたいが、 いろにんない



.

Figure 17 presents the typical range of sound levels in dB(A) at 3 ft for building equipment. Much of this equipment is hidden in mechanical equipment rooms, above ceilings, in walls, or behind cabinet type exterior enclosures. Table VII, which summarizes the exposure of occupants to the noise generated by building equipment, shows that occupants are *directly* exposed to the noise of only about eight different types of equipment. The noise generated by these units is thus of special interest since there are no intervening walls to provide attenuation. The noise generated by building equipment hidden from view can be sufficiently attenuated through the proper use of current architectural techniques. In practice, such techniques are not always implemented.

2.3.2 Noise levels within a typical multistory building

Although details of the frequency spectrum are of considerable importance in selecting noise control treatments, the model presented in this section is keyed, for simplification, to dB(A); it is not intended that this method be used for actual situations. Figure 18 presents a cross-section of a multistory building, locating a typical occupant with respect to building equipment. Figure 19 summarizes the noise exposure in dB(A) of an occupant to individual sources. The higher level in each case is representative of the sound level near the source -e.g., at 3 ft. The lower level is representative of the level to which the contribution from a particular source is reduced through proper implementation of noise control techniques. The treatments include;

E - enclosure of noise source

 D - ductwork lined with acoustically absorbing material

W - wall



÷

100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100



.

and the second sec

the second s

Maria Maria

57

•

	1	Type Of Exposure									
Building	Location		Indirect								
Edaibueur		pirect	Through Mechanical Distribution System	Through Walls, Floors, etc.							
Air Conditioning											
	MER		×	×							
	Roof, Unit	1	x	x							
	Wind, Unit	x									
Absorption Machines	MER		l	×							
Air Compressor	MER			x							
Ballasts	Room	x									
Boilers	MER			x							
Boiler Feed System	MER			x							
Chillers	MER			x							
Condensers	Rooftop			x							
Cooling Towers	Reoftop			x							
Dehumidifiers	MER		x	x							
Diesel Eng.	MER			x							
Diffusers	Room	x									
Electric Motors	MER			×							
Elevators	Varies	×	x	×							
Escalators	Varies	x	x	x)							
Fans	MER		* X	x							
	Room	x									
Furnaces	MER	:		x							
Oas Turbines	MER			x							
Heat Pumps	MER			x							
Humidifiers	MER		×	x]							
Mixing Boxes and Air Control Units	Varies	x	×								
Pneumatic Transporter System	Varies		Y	, l							
Pumps	MER		â	Ç (
Steam Valves	MER			î l							
Transformers	MER			î l							
Unit Vent and Unit Heat	Room	x									

TABLE VII. EXPOSURE OF BUILDING OCCUPANTS TO THE NOISE OF BUILDING EQUIPMENT

*Mechanical Equipment Room



FIG. 18. CROSS-SECTION OF A TYPICAL MULTISTORY BUILDING SHOW-ING BUILDING EQUIPMENT.



SOUND LEVEL AT 3 FT FROM SOURCE O SOUND LEVEL AT OCCUPANT'S POSITION

الهيمور فالالته فتكم فيتدو مرتبد التممم الهيام بالح

FIG. 19. RANGE OF BUILDING EQUIPMENT NOISE LEVELS TO WHICH PEOPLE ARE EXPOSED.

60

and the second second

- R roof slab
- S intervening story e.g., the penthouse mechanical equipment floor
- V vibration isolation.

Goals for acceptable noise levels vary with the activities to be held in a space. If one is interested in increasing the speech privacy within an office, then a higher noise level of an appropriate spectral shape would be appropriate. On the other hand, if one is performing certain types of tests or listening to critical sounds, a quieter environment is required. Through the use of current technology, it is possible to achieve virtually any noise goal, if the owner of the building is willing to bear the cost and space requirements of the treatment. Of course, by specifying quiet equipment, the owner may minimize these requirements.
3. IMPACT

3.1 Noise Level Criteria for Impact Evaluation

In this report, the impact of noise exposure upon people is evaluated primarily in terms of three direct effects and secondarily in terms of a number of indirect consequences. The three major effects are hearing-damage risk, speech interference, and sleep interference. The rationale for emphasizing these effects is twofold. First, they are among the most salient and tangible consequences of noise exposure and thus can be most readily interpreted in nontechnical terms. Evidence that they are widely understood by the public may be found in their frequent mention in noise complaints. Secondly, research on these three effects has been more extensive than on other noise effects; therefore, clearer predictions can be made with greater confidence.

Although the three primary effects are used to summarize the major impact of noise exposure, the indirect consequences of exposure also demand consideration. These effects include physiological stress, annoyance, startle, and task interference. They are termed "indirect" in that they are not produced exclusively by noise, nor are they simple functions of the physical magnitude of noise exposure. Further, relatively little systematic information about these effects is available; thus, specification of precise levels of noise exposure leading to particular levels of effect is a somewhat speculative matter. However, one may not assume that these secondary consequences are unimportant merely because they are difficult to quantify.

The following table presents the physical levels at which it is felt that each of the above-mentioned effects of noise exposure achieves (1) a moderate level of effect and (2) an appreciable level of effect. The decisions leading to these specifications are discussed below.

TABLE VIII. ESTIMATES OF MAGNITUDES OF NOISE EFFECTS [IN dB(A)]

Effect	<u>Moderate Level</u>	<u>Appreciable Level</u>
Hearing Damage Risk	70	90
Speech Interference	45	60
Sleep Interference	40	70
Physiological Stress	×	90
Startle	*	110
Annoyance	40	60
Task Interference	55	75

3.1.1. Hearing-damage risk

ها جا د جد دید او از ا

The hearing-damage risk levels specified in Table VIII were selected on the basis of eight hours of daily exposure. Exposure durations of this order are chosen as representative of the amount of time usually spent in home and work environments. Since hearing-damage risk is cumulative over long periods of time [13], the recommendations are intended to account for prolonged noise exposure over a period of years.

The estimate of the level at which hearing-damage risk commences was determined on a rather stringent basis. The Walsh-Healey Public Contracts Act, as amended to include noise limits for hearing conservation, is based on a CHABA report [14], which permits permanent threshold shifts up to 10 dB at frequencies

^{*}Effects at low levels are at best weak functions of the physical intensity of noise. They are determined far more strongly by factors such as the meaning associated with the acoustic signal, attitudes toward the source, rise time of the signal, unexpectedness of the signal, and so forth. It therefore makes little sense to specify discrete levels in these cases.

below 1000 Hz; up to 15 dB at 2000 Hz, and up to 20 dB at frequencies above 3000 Hz. Hearing losses of these magnitudes are considered inconsequential in the sense that they are ineligible for compensation under the terms of the locialation. Even these surprisingly lax limits are based on the questionable assumption of a sixteen-hour daily recovery period of little or no noise exposure [13]. Further, the CHABA report [14] is intended to afford this partial protection to only half of the population exposed to noise. Clearly, these criteria are neither applicable to individual circumstances nor capable of protecting many people from sizeable hearing losses.

Kryter's published redefinition of the hearing-damage risk criteria [15] maintains that no permanent threshold shift whatever is tolerable at frequencies below 2000 Ez and that no more than a 10 dB shift is tolerable at higher frequencies. Kryter also applies the protection afforded by his definition to 75% of the population rather than 50%. He states that the "threshold" of hearing-damage risk for eight hours of daily exposure is 67 dB(A). Cohen et al [13] operating under similar assumptions specify 75 dB(A) as the level at which hearing-damage risk commences. Miller [16] believes that a level of 70 dB(A) represents a level of noise exposure above which hearing-damage risk becomes nonnegligible. In Miller's terminology, habitual exposure to levels between 70 and 30 dB(A) represents yellow (i.e., cautionary) risk of hearing damage exposure to levels between 80 and 90 dB(A) entails "orange" risk; while exposure to levels in excess of 90 dB(A) involves "red" (serious) risk.

The estimate of Table VIII for the onset of hearing-damage risk agrees with Miller's estimate. The estimate of the level at which appreciable risk of hearing damage occurs agrees both with Miller's estimate and the provisions of the Walsh-Healey Act. The latter criteria, based on a report of the NAS-NRC Committee on Hearing, Bioacoustics, and Biomechanics [14], indicates that eight hours of daily exposure to levels in excess of 90 dB(A) constitutes a serious risk of hearing damage to one-half of the population.

3.1.2 Speech interference

h

The levels specified in Table VIII for speech interference are the most straightforward and readily defensible of all of the estimates. A criterion for adequate verbal communication in the home was taken to be comprehension of 98% of all sentences or an equivalent rate of comprehension of 85% of the words of a standard phonetically balanced (PB) list. In terms of nominal vocal effort [approximately 65 dB(A) at a distance of one meter], such a level of speech intelligibility would be sustained at a speakerlistener distance of approximately five meters in a noise background of 45 dB(A) [17]. Five meters was taken to be the maximal distance at which conversation in normal levels might reasonably be expected to be held in a quiet outdoor (nonreverberant) environment.* The level of appreciable effect specified in Table VIII was derived by assuming that noise-induced speech interference would be intolerable if conversation at nominal levels of vocal effort were precluded at speaker-listener distances greater than one meter. Such conditions prevail in noise environments in excess of 60 dB(A) [17].

^{*}Greater speaker-listener distances would be possible indoors at the same levels of vocal effort and speech intelligibility, because sound pressure levels diminish more slowly than predicted by the inverse square law.

It should be pointed out that selection of the above criterion represents a belief that the 70% comprehension of PB words suggested by Webster [17] and Beranek [18] does not provide for a reasonable standard of communication in the home. Webster's criterion was established for "barely adequate communication" and is inappropriately applied to the home environment. The levels recommended in this report are thus 6 dB lower than Webster's.

3.1.3 Sleep interference

Two principal ways in which noise exposure can interfere with sleep are to delay the onset of sleep and to shift sleep "stages". Scores of studies are available on the sleep-delaying and stage-shift effects of noise exposure. Although there is frequently broad agreement among studies, detailed agreement is lacking. Discrepancies among outcomes of similar studies are attributable to incomparable control conditions, differences in experimental design, and the host of individual differences which beset sleep research.

For example, it is universally observed that the initial time required for subjects to fall asleep increases monotonically with exposure to increasing noise levels. Unfortunately, different studies produce estimates of the sleep-delaying effects of noise that are more than 35 dB apart. Thus, two studies report delays in onset of sleep from 20 to 90 minutes [19, 20], corresponding to exposure to continuous noise at levels of 35 dB(A) and 50 dB(A), respectively. Other studies, [21-23] however, report that subjects can fall asleep in as little as twelve minutes despite exposure to noise levels of 70 dB(A).

Further, prolonged exposure to high noise levels can produce tinnitus (ringing in the ears), which has been claimed to delay

the onset of sleep [24]. In other words, aftereffects of noise, even in the absence of any noise exposure at bedtime, can impede sleep. It is also claimed in the literature that levels as low as 35 dB(A) can either induce a shift from a "deeper" to a "lighter" level of sleep or awaken certain people [25]. Pronounced differences in sensitivity to noise during sleep have been observed as a function of age as well.

An absolute criterion for noise exposure levels in sleeping quarters is obviously unjustifiable on the basis of extant research. A conservative criterion for noise exposure (from the point of view of minimizing sleep interference) might be based on the lowest levels at which sleep interference have been reported. According to the Wilson Report [26], levels of 40 dB(A) have been known to awaken approximately 25% of the sleeping population, while levels of 45 dB(A) appear to keep about 20% of the population from falling asleep immediately. These considerations have led to the adoption of 40 dB(A) as a criterion level for the onset of sleep interference effects. According to the Wilson Report data, a little more than half of the population may be awakened by noise exposure to levels of 70 dB(A), while a little less than half of the population will find some difficulty in falling asleep when exposed to such levels. These data led to adoption of 70 dB(A) as the level at which sleep interference effects become considerable.

3.1.4 Physiological stress

Wellington a second second the

The amount of stress produced by low-level acoustic signals is primarily determined by their meaning. A footfall in one's bedroom at night, or a growling animal, or one's boss's voice can excite stress mechanisms by virtue of their implications rather

than their physical attributes. Since it is the learned and instinctive associations to sounds which are largely responsible for their ability to create stress, no level of minimal effect has been specified.

At high noise levels a somewhat stronger case may be made for specification of a criterion. Studies of physiological correlates of noise-related stress in animals suggest that noise levels in the vicinity of 90 dB(A) produce strong effects [27]. Pupillary dilation, increased pulse pressure and heart rate, and pulse volume changes have been observed in humans exposed to noise levels of approximately 70 dB(A) [28]. There can be little argument that at even higher levels noise stimulation induces stress in and of itself, rather than as an exclusive function of its meaning. Extremely intense noise fields can cause auditory and bedily pain. Such intense fields commonly are associated with strong vibrational components, which can also be harmful.

3.1.5 Startle

The arguments above about the relative roles of meaning and levels of acoustic signals in determining stress also apply to startle. For the same reasons, therefore, no minimal level of effect can be specified.

A major obstacle to establishing a firm criterion for the startling effects of high level noise is the phenomenon of habituation. In general, humans display a marked decrease in sensitivity to repeated exposure to startling sounds. Expectedness, regularity, familiarity, arousal level, and numerous other factors strongly mediate startle effects. Even at high absolute noise levels, startle is as much affected by signal-to-noise ratio considerations as it is by the level of the startling signal.

Thus, an exploding paper bag would almost certainly produce more startle in a library than in a boiler factory.

The level recommended in Table VIII is therefore chosen to represent a noise level sufficiently rarely heard and of a signalto-noise ratio sufficiently great to make a significant startle reaction highly probable.

3.1.6 Annoyance

The levels recommended in Table VIII for gauging annoyance effects are intended to reflect the lowest level at which any of the other tabled effects can occur. In other words, one is expected to be annoyed by a noise sufficiently intense to produce sleep interruption, speech interference, etc.

It is, of course, also true that long-term exposure to very low level noises can be annoying. A dripping faucet or a chalk squeak can be exceptionally irritating. Once again, however, it is the meaning of the acoustic signal rather than its level per se which plays a major role in determining the magnitude of annoyance. Also, the spectral composition and temporal density of noise heavily influences its annoyance value. Unfortunately, temporal and spectral factors cannot be adequately expressed in dB(A).

3.1.7 Task interference

Sec. 1

The literature on the effects of noise on human performance contains numerous conflicting and inconclusive reports. By and large, high-intensity, aperiodic, intermittent noise is reported to impede efficient work to a greater extent than low-intensity, steady-state noise [29]. Nonetheless, numerous studies find no effects of noise on performance, while a few studies find

paradoxical improvements in performance attributable to noise exposure [30]. Of course, improvements in performance when an environment is changed (presumably worsened) are often due to changes in the level of attention perceived by the subject and their attendant reaction. The nature of the task at hand and the duration of noise exposure also influence the extent of task interference.

It is our feeling that the most sensitive and complex tasks (of the nature of brain surgery, diamond cutting, etc.) might be sensitive to interference from noise at levels as low as 55 dB(A). Although most published studies which report task interference give levels in the vicinity of 90 to 110 dB(A), it is felt that certain tasks might prove susceptible to appreciable interference at approximately 75 dB(A).

3.2 Construction Noise

3.2.1 Extent of exposure

Our determination of the impact of construction noise on the American public is based on information obtained about the number of people exposed to such noise and the extent of their exposure. This information was gathered in four steps:

- We determined the number of construction sites of various types in various geographical regions.
- We determined the density of people in the geographical regions (two classes of people were considered: stationary population such as workers and residents and transient population such as drivers and pedestrians).
- We postulated a model of sound propagation around a typical construction site.

• We combined the information obtained in the first three steps with the site source level data presented in Sec. 2.1 to determine the number of people exposed to given levels of noise.

For the purpose of gathering and analyzing population and construction site statistics, we divided the U.S. into five regions. These regions are based on those defined by the U.S. Bureaus of the Budget [31] and of the Census [32]. A key to understanding the rationale used for establishing these regions is the concept of Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area (SMSA). An SMSA is a group of contifiguous counties which contains at least one central city of 50,000 inhabitants or more, or "twin cities" with a combined population of 50,000 or more. There are 233 SMSAs containing 65% of the nation's population and about 10% of the land area. The population density in the nonmetropolitan areas is too low to create much construction noise exposure or to allow meaningful computation of the exposure that does exist. This study, therefore, restricts itself to construction occurring within the SMSAs (see Table IX).

Classification of Construction Sites

As explained in Sec. 2.1, four major categories of construction were studied:

- Residential buildings
- Nonresidential buildings
- Municipal roads
- · Public works

Certain heavy construction and large civil works, such as dams and bridges, were omitted because this type of construction

TABLE IX. METROPOLITAN REGIONS CONSIDERED IN CONSTRUCTION NOISE EXPOSURE ESTIMATE; STATISTICS AS OF 1970 *

	Population (thousands)	Area <u>(sq. mi.)</u>	Population Density (people per sq. mi.)
Large High-Density Central Cities** (12) 22,250	1,468	15,160
Large Low-Density Central Cities (14) 10,530	2,389	4,410
All Other SMSA Central Cities (186) 25,820	6,981	3,710
Urban Fringe	49,680	14,707	3,380
Met. Area Outside Urban Fringe	22,320	179,276	125

*Population figures are extrapolated to 1970 from 1969 Census figures according to recent growth rates.

**Large cities are those whose metropolitan area population exceeded 1,000,000 in 1960.

High-Density: Baltimore, Boston, Buffalo, Chicago, Cleveland, Detroit, New York, Philadelphia, Pittsburgh, San Francisco, St. Louis, Washington.

Low-Density: Atlanta, Cincinnati, Dallas, Denver, Houston, Kansas City, Los Angelos, Milwaukee, Minneapolis-St. Paul, Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, New Orleans, St. Petersburg-Tampa, San Diego, Seattle-Tacoma.

rarely takes place in heavily populated areas. The residential and nonresidential building categories were further subdivided into specific types of buildings to account for variations in the duration of construction and the mix of machinery at different kinds of sites.

The Number of Construction Sites

Data on the annual number of building sites on which construction was begun in 1970 was collected from the U.S. Business and Defense Services Administration [33] and from unpublished compilations made by the Bureau of the Census. Data for large central cities and for the nation as a whole were directly available; sites were ascribed to "other central cities", "urban fringe", and "nonurbanized metropolitan area" on the basis of population distribution. The number of residential and nonresidential building sites in the five metropolitan-area regions is shown in the first two columns of Table X, as well as the average cost of construction for each case. A more detailed breakdown by type of building is given in Appendix B.

Data on total municipal road construction [34] was apportioned among the various metropolitan regions by assuming a constant ratio of miles of road constructed to miles of road in place. The number of miles of such work performed in 1969 is shown in the third column of Table X.

Unlike the case with buildings and roads, data on construction and maintenance of public works such as severs and water mains is not collected on a national basis. The extent of this construction, therefore, has been estimated first by determining the ratio of sever construction to street construction for several cities in the Boston area and then by using this ratio to

73

Sec. And a

TABLE X. ANNUAL CUNSTRUCTION ACTIVITY -	· 19/0*
---	---------

Metropolitan Regions	Residential Buildings (no. of sites)	Nonresidential Buildings (no. of sites)	Municipal Streets (miles)	Public Works (miles)
Large high-density central cities	8,708	1,952	273	398
Large low-density central cities	21,578	4,903	2,150	3,140
Other central cities	102,559	12,021	6,000	8,700
Urban fringe	262,800	30,915	11,800	16,865
Met. area outside urban fringe	118,779	13,758	21,700	31,550
Total	514,424	62,549	41,923	60,653

* All figures are in thousands.

74

The second s

estimate the miles of sewer construction nationwide for 1970. These figures are contained in the fourth column of Table X. A more detailed description of this computation is contained in Appendix B.

Construction Phases

Construction of buildings and other works is carried out in discrete stages, each of which has its own characteristic mix of equipment. Because of the items of equipment on a site chance as construction progresses, the noise output from the site also changes with time. As explained in Sec. 2.1, we have characterized the noise output from each site according to construction phase:

- · Clearing and demolition
- Excavation
- · Placement of foundations
- Erection of frame, floors, roof, and skin
- · Finishing and cleanup.

These phase descriptions are used for road and sever construction, even though the actual operations are different from those for buildings, so as to allow a consistent analysis of the various types of sites. (See Sec. 2.1 for a more complete description.) A list of the equipment commonly found in each phase is given in Table A-1.

Number of Individuals Exposed

We obtained the number of people exposed to various levels of noise from construction sites by combining information on population density, the number of sites active per year, and the sound propagation model described below.

We revised the population figures in Table IX, which represent the residential distribution of the U.S. population, to reflect the net transfer [35] of people from suburbs to central city during the average working day, the period when most construction noise is produced. These revised density figures are given in Table XI in terms of people per square mile and people per one-eighth mile of street (assuming the entire metropolitan area to be divided into city blocks one-eighth of a mile long).

TABLE XI. GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF WORKING-DAY POPULATIONS

	People per	People per 1/8 mile of street (approximate)
Large high-density central cities	16,650	120
Large low-density central cities	4,860	40
All other central cities	4,070	32
Urban fringe	3,100	24
Met. area outside urban fringe	224	

Note that the number of people per city block in the metropolitan area outside the urban fringe is negligible and therefore is disregarded in the following discussions.

In addition to the working-day population density estimate given in Table XI, we must also account for the number of passersby who are exposed to construction noise. Since there are no data on typical driver and pedestrian distributions, a definitive estimate of this type of exposure is not possible. We have, however, made an order-of-magnitude estimate on the basis of some survey work performed by the Boston Traffic Department (1970). Although incomplete, these surveys report seemingly reasonable numbers, which are therefore offered in Table XII as preliminary estimates.

TABLE XII. NUMBER OF PEOPLE PER DAY PASSING A CONSTRUCTION SITE

	I	Drivers and Passengers	<u>Pedestrians</u>
Large	high-density central cities	3000	1000
Large	low-density central cities	3000 .	1000
Other	central cities	1500	500
Urban	fringe	500	100

日本は日本にはため、日本に教育を知られたが

Taka Sandara

te de la companya de

Table XIII presents the total number of building construction sites active in 1970 (see Table X) for all metropolitan regions. In the case of roads and sewers, the definition of a "construction site" is somewhat obscure, since such projects extend linearly for some distance with construction usually occurring one section at a time. The area of influence of construction on one section is about one-eighth of a mile. We therefore consider each eighth-mile of street and sewer construction as an independent site.

TABLE XIII. LEVEL OF ANNUAL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY

Type of Site	(National Total)
Residential Building	514,424
Nonresidential	62,549
Municipal Streets	336,000
Public Morks	485,000
	しん しん 特許の 時間

The level of exposure to noise from a construction site depends on one's distance from the site and the nature of his immediate environment. In city streets, it has been found experimentally that sound intensity decreases as the inverse square of the distance from the source [36]. In logarithmic units, this amounts to a 6 dB reduction per distance doubled. This model has been adopted for open-air propagation, which is significant in the case of pedestrians. In addition, a factor of 20 dB(A) attenuation has been included for people who are inside buildings with closed windows and 15 dB(A) for people inside cars with closed windows [37]. Construction noise is assumed to propagate along the street adjacent to the site, but to be heavily attenuated in the direction transverse to the street; in effect, only the people along the street adjacent to the site are affected by the noise. A further assumption is that the sound is reduced 10 dB(A) when one crosses a street intersection [36].

Using these parameters, we illustrate in Fig. 20 a representative geometry for a building construction site and contours. of attenuation for observers. Details of the computations involved in constructing this diagram are given in Appendix B. Assuming a uniform distribution of observers along the sides of



くたいたいの対映の

5

行為に対け

 FIG. 20. CONSTRUCTION SITE GEOMETRY AND ATTENUATION CONTOURS FOR A STATIONARY POPULATION WITHIN BUILDINGS. (SEE APPEN-DIX B FOR METHOD OF COMPUTATION.)

the street, we can determine the fraction of people within each set of attenuation contours. These proportions, which are shown in Table XIV below, apply only to observers in buildings with closed windows adjacent to the street on which building construction is taking place; drivers and pedestrians move relative to the site, crossing contours as they go.

TABLE XIV. DISTRIBUTION OF STATIONARY OBSERVERS RELATIVE TO ATTENUATION CONTOURS

<u>Attenuation Interval</u>	<u>Percent of Observers</u>
26 - 29 dB	15%
29 - 32 dB	35%
32 - 35 dB	32%
35 - 40 dB	18%

All observers more than 40 dB away from the site have been disregarded, as they are assumed to be unaffected by the noise. The actual number of people within each pair of attenuation contours can be obtained by multiplying the percentages in Table XIV by the number of people per 1/8 mile of city street for the appropriate metropolitan area (as given in Table XI).

In the case of street and sewer construction, operation is typically distributed along the length of the street and cannot be modeled as a point source. Accordingly, all the people in the eighth-mile of city street adjoining the site are assumed to be exposed to the same noise level. This level is taken to be the source level of the site diminished 20 dB to account for attenuation within buildings with closed windows. The noise exposure of pedestrians and drivers cannot be computed by the above model, since, as noted above, their distance from the site varies with time. In these cases, we consider the peak exposure experienced by the transient observer. For pedestrians, this exposure is 6 dB less than the site source level referenced to 50 ft; for drivers, it is 20 dB less.

Noise Exposure Estimates

The above figures on observer densities, number of sites, and attenuation have been combined with the data on average and peak site source levels presented in Sec. 2.1 to determine the number of people exposed to particular levels of noise. Table XV shows the national noise exposure of the stationary population due to residential building, nonresidential building, municipal street, and public works construction. The noise levels are broken down into the five phases of construction described above.

To compute exposure of drivers and pedestrians, one multiplies the number of people per day passing each site by the number of sites. This gives the number of passersby exposed per day of site operation. Multiplying this number by the average number of days each site is operated gives the total annual number of instances in which an individual passes a construction site and is thus exposed to noise. For this computation, we use the number of sites from Table X and the number of passersby from Table XII. The duration of construction on the average site is not available from survey data but the following figures are considered typical:

- Residential buildings (single-family only) 27 days
- Nonresidential buildings and multifamily dwellings 170 days
- Streets and Public Works 7 days.

	Average Levels					Pe	ak Leve	els		
<u>Number of People</u>		Const	ruction	Phase	<u>!</u>		Constr	uction	Phase	<u>•</u>
	I	ΙI	III	ΙV	V	I	II	III	ΙV	v
			RESI	IDENTI	AL BUIL	DING CO	NSTRUC	TION		
1,725,000	56.5	54.5	54.5	47.5	54.5	63.5	70.5	57.5	57.5	70.5
4,025,000	53.5	51.5	51.5	44.5	51.5	60,5	67.5	54.5	54.5	67.5
3,680,000	50,5	48.5	48.5	41.5	48.5	57.5	64.5	51.5	51.5	64.5
2,070,000	47.5	45.5	45.5	38.5	45,5	54.5	61.5	48.5	48.5	61.5
11,500,000										
	NONRESIDENTIAL BUILDING CONSTRUCTION									
225,000	56.0	57.5	50.5	51.0	56.5	63.5	70.5	60.5	60.5	70.5
525,000	53.0	54.5	47.5	48.0	53.5	60.5	67.5	57.5	57.5	67.5
480,000	50.0	51.5	44.5	45.0	50.5	57.5	64.5	54.5	54.5	64.5
270,000	47.0	48.5	41.5	42.0	47.5	54.5	61.5	51.5	51.5	61.5
1,500,000										
		MUNI	CIPAL S	TREET	AND PU	BLIC WO	RKS CO	NSTRUCI	ION	
14,500,000*	63.0	65.0	68.0	58.0	64.0	71.0	78.0	71.0	69.0	71.0
			FEDERAL	. AND	STATE H	IGHWAY	CONSTR	UCTION		
7,000,000*	63.0	65.0	68.0	58.0	64.0	71.0	78.0	71.0	69.0	71.0
		· .								

TABLE XV. AVERAGE AND PEAK EXPOSURE LEVELS TO CONSTRUCTION NOISE

الم المراجعة ومقاطعة ومقاطع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع ا

the second s

e.

*Assuming homogeneous exposure of all people indoors with windows shut.

.

82

1

The estimated number of occasions per year in which a driver or pedestrian passes a site is shown in Table XVI below. These figures do not represent the number of people who pass construction sites, since one person may pass many sites, or one site many times. If one divides the grand total of Table XVI, 24.7 billion passings, by the total national metropolitan population "of 137 million, it is seen that the average inhabitant of metropolitan areas passes a construction site approximately 180 times per year.

3.2.2. Impact assessment

Determining the impact of construction noise on people is a multistage process. The procedures by which estimates of levels and durations of noise exposures were derived are discussed in the preceding section (3.2.1). Development of the criteria by which the severity of noise effects are judged is discussed in Sec. 3.1. In this section, we explicitly combine the exposure data with the criteria; Appendix B contains a number of important comments on the inferences which may be prudently drawn from the findings reported here.

Table XV of Sec. 3.2.1 and Table XVII of this section provide an overview of the exposure data as they pertain to impact assessment. The tables contain information about the number of people who receive primary and secondary exposure to construction site noise and the levels of noise to which they are exposed in their listening environments. Estimates of the duration of noise exposures are also presented in the tables. The following discussion is organized according to strength of impact.

TABLE XVI. ESTIMATED ANNUAL PASSINGS OF CONSTRUCTION SITES -ALL METROPOLITAN REGIONS* (MILLIONS OF OCCURRENCES)

	Residential Buildings	Nonresidential Buildings	Municipal Streets and Public Works	<u>Total</u>
Drivers and Passengers	8,300	8,160	1,980	18,440
Pedestrians	2,760	2,700	882 Grand Total	<u>6,342</u> 24,782

*A "passing" is defined as one person passing one site by car or foot.

Speech Interference

14 T 20

a de la

Perhaps the single most obvious effect of exposure to construction site noise is speech interference. Even cursory examination of Table XV reveals that in almost all phases of construction, noise levels associated with construction activity are capable of degrading speech communication. In many instances specifically, those in which construction noise produces levels approaching or exceeding 60 dB(A) in the listening environment degradation of speech communication is severe. When one considers that the "average" levels of Table XVII are energy averages, it is clear that peak levels of construction noise, although infrequent, can preclude speech communication completely.

It is apparent from Table XVII that for those people who live or work in the vicinity of construction sites (i.e., those who receive primary exposure to construction noise), the duration of speech interference effects can be considerable. It seems safe to state that approximately 34 million people suffer a total of several hundred hours of speech interference yearly as a result of exposure to construction site noise in the United States. Approximately 20 million of these people must communicate in noise environments which seriously degrade speech intelligibility and/or demand significantly increased vocal effort.

In contrast to those who must endure such speech interference on a relatively long term basis, there are many more people who suffer the same effects on a briefer time scale. These people are the passersby who are exposed to construction site noise for a matter of minutes daily. Although the actual number of different individuals who pass by construction sites on foot or in vehicles is difficult to estimate, there are probably on the order of 25 billion such brief encounters yearly. The prin-

TABLE XVII. ORDER OF MAGNITUDE ESTIMATES OF YEARLY DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION NOISE EXPOSURE

Source	Number of People	H 	lours d Consti	of Expo ruction	sure b <u>Phase</u>	y <u> </u>
		I	ΙI	III	IV.	V
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to Domestic Construction Noise	11,500,000	24	24	40	80	40
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to All Other Building Con- struction	1,500,000	80	320	350	480	160
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to All Other Construction in SMSA Areas	14,500,000	8	8	16	16	8
Municipal Public Works		12	12	24	24	12
Federal and State Highway Subtotal	7,000,000	250	250	500	500	250
Secondary (Passerby) Exposure of Pedestrians to Construc- tion in All SMSA Areas	6,342,000,000*	Five m levels higher	inute: appro than	s' expo ximate those	osure t ely 30 of Tab	o dB le XV
Secondary (Passerby) Exposure of Drivers and Passengers to All Construction in SMSA Areas	18,440,000,000*	Thirty levels higher	secor appro than	nds' ex oximate those	posure ly 15 of Tab	e to dB le XV
Subtotal						

"These figures represent the number of annual occurrences of exposure, defined as the product of the number of people exposed and the frequency of their exposure.

a construction of the second second

and which have been a set of the set of the

May in grand construction to a second second second

cipal effect of such transient exposure to construction noise is probably interruption of conversation.

Applying state-of-the-art noise reduction technique's to the major sources of construction noise could provide a meaningful reduction of both the severity of speech interference and the number of people exposed to speech interference effects. Quieting all construction equipment by 10 dB(A) would lower peak construction noise levels by an equivalent amount and average levels by a somewhat lesser amount (due to overlapping temporal patterns of use). Nonetheless, speech interference effects increase sharply in the range between 40 and 60 dB(A), so that a noise reduction of about 10 dB(A) could be highly beneficial. Interestingly enough, the advantages of reducing construction noise an additional 10 dB(A) might not be as great. Although 20 dB(A) reduction of construction noise would clearly result in even less speech interference than would a 10 dB(A) reduction, at the resulting levels construction noise might well be submerged in background noise a good part of the time. Additional reductions [beyond the first 10 dB(A)] might be necessary for the benefit of those who operate the equipment, however.

Sleep Interference

To the extent that construction activity and sleep do not commonly occur during the same hours, construction noise does not interfere with sleep. However, daytime sleeping needs of the very young, the sick, and people working irregular or night hours, and emergency and other nighttime construction work must be taken into account. The total number of adults so affected by construction is estimated to be about 3 million. Judging from the ratio of people exposed to construction noise to the total population of the country, approximately 15% of the children four years of

87

1 : 1

age or younger, or about 2.5 million, might also be exposed to sleep interference from construction noise.

The 5.5 million people attempting to sleep during exposure to construction noise are likely to encounter substantial interference. Even at relatively great distances from construction sites, levels in the vicinity of 50 dB(A) are encountered. Such levels are capable of significantly lengthening the time required to fall asleep and of awakening roughly 40% of sleeping persons.

Nonetheless, the usefulness of reducing average construction noise levels by 10 dB(A) (possible through state-of-the-art noise reduction procedures) appears marginal. The number of people whose sleep is disturbed by construction noise is relatively small, and the shallow slope of the function relating the number of people awakened to noise levels argues that construction noise would have to be reduced by much more than 10 dB(A) to effect a significant reduction of sleep interference.

Hearing-Damage Risk

The risk of hearing damage from construction noise for those not directly concerned with construction activity does not seem very great. In most cases the distance between the construction site and people exposed to its noise and the transmission loss of the buildings or vehicles are sufficiently great to minimize the probability of hearing damage. It is possible that peak noise levels from construction sites might present some risk to those who are frequently in close proximity to the site. The greater number of such people (presumably pedestrians), however, are subject only to short exposure durations.

If state-of-the-art noise reduction techniques were applied to the major sources of construction noise, exposure levels would probably be sufficiently reduced to render hearing damage a remote risk. In short, construction noise does not pose a major hearingdamage risk for the public.

Other Indirect Effects

Without doubt, a major consequence of exposure to construction noise for many people is annoyance. Both those who are exposed to construction noise on a regular, long-term basis as well as those who are exposed to it on a transient basis are annoyed by their exposure. Annoyance is particularly great if the noise intrusion from the construction site is perceived as unnecessary or inappropriate. People who must endure weeks or months of construction noise exposure may exhibit some form of habituation to the noise, but despite the commonly expressed attitude toward noise of "you get used to it", it is doubtful that construction noise ever loses all of its annoyance value.

In relative terms, annoyance from construction noise probably represents less of a problem than annoyance produced by aircraft or traffic noise. Nonetheless, both individual complaint behavior and community action could conceivably result from the annoyance of exposure to construction noise.

One measure formulated to provide some degree of quantification for annoyance due to noise exposure is the Noise Pollution Level [2]. Table I contains NPL's encountered in the immediate vicinity of construction sites. Unfortunately, interpretation of NPL's is not a straightforward procedure. Relative interpretations of two or more noise situations are readily enough made through use of the NPL index. Few grounds exist, however, for absolute interpretations. It has been suggested that long-term exposure to noise levels characterized by an NPL value of 72

(computed from A-level measurements) is "acceptable" [2]. By this criterion, noise levels in the immediate vicinity of construction sites are clearly "unacceptable" on a long-term basis. However, the bulk of exposure to construction noise of such high levels is of a transitory nature. Residents or transients exposed to construction noise would be exposed to levels about 30 dB lower. Although it would be tempting to assert that such exposure (to NPL's in the range of 60-70) would be marginally acceptable, only meager evidence could be marshalled to support such a claim.

It is distinctly possible for exposure to construction noise to result in task interference. It seems plausible that among the approximately 20 million people exposed on a long_term basis to the highest levels of construction noise (Table XV), some might be engaged in exacting manual or mental work which could be sensitive to interference. Such tasks might include medical operations, library use, scholarly activities, and the like. Unfortunately, one cannot quantify the amount of task interference produced by construction noise by applying the usual procedures of estimation and assumption.

Similar comments apply to the potential startle and physiological stress produced by exposure to construction noise. Although startle does not seem to be a very common consequence of exposure to construction noise, it is nevertheless possible for startle to result from unexpectedly or intermittently high-level noise. The size of the standard deviations of distributions of construction noise levels discussed in Sec. 3.2.1 makes the occurrence of unusually high noise levels reasonably probable events.

As for the stressful consequences of exposure to construction noise, we can offer only informed conjecture. Noise-induced physiological stress is known to be cumulative, and exposure to construction noise is only one determinant. Perhaps some of the people who are faced with exposure to construction noise at work every day for months must also face noisy home environments. For such people, exposure to construction noise could constitute a major source of stress.

Tables XVIII and XIX summarize the impact of construction noise on people. A composite quantity intended to reflect both the extent and duration of exposure to specific noise sources was developed to permit concise summation. The quantity is defined as the product of the estimated number of people exposed to noise from a particular source and the estimated duration of individual exposure to the same source. The statistic expressing the quantity is called (for lack of a better term) the "person-hour".

Extreme caution must be used in interpreting figures expressed in terms of person-hours. First, figures so expressed are intended only as order-of-magnitude estimates rather than as precise quantities. Second, inferences about the equivalence of number of people and duration of exposure in assessing psychological or physiological impact are completely unjustified. No compensatory model of number of people exposed and exposure duration is intended. Third, comparison of person-hour figures for exposure to noise from one source with person-hour figures for exposure to noise of another source is without theoretical foundation. Thus, comparisons of impact among different sources expressed in common terms of person-hours should be performed in a fashion similar to "addition" of apples and oranges. In other words, inferences about severity of impact may be drawn only withint person-hour estimates of similar origin.

TABLE XVIII. ORDER-OF-MAGNITUDE ESTIMATES OF CONSTRUCTION NOISE EXPOSURE IN MILLIONS OF PERSON-HOURS PER WEEK

and the second second

Source	Millions of Person-Hours Per Week
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to Domestic Construction Noise	46
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to All Other Building Construction	39
Primary (Stationary) Exposure to All Other Construction in SMSA Areas Subtotal	<u>16</u> 101
Secondary (Passerby) Exposure to Pedestrians to All Construction in SMSA Areas	10
Secondary (Passerby) Exposure of Drivers and Passengers to All Construction in SMSA Areas	0.3

.

TABLE XIX. ORDER OF -MAGNITUDE ESTIMATES OF IMPACT OF PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EXPOSURE TO CONSTRUCTION NOISE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF PERSON-HOURS PER WEEK

Application of the second secon

<u>Speech Inte</u> Moderate	<u>rference</u> * <u>Severe</u>	<u>Sleep Int</u> <u>Slight</u>	<u>terference</u> * <u>Moderate</u>	<u>Hearing D</u> Slight	amage Risk <u>Moderate</u>
(45-60)	(>60)	(35—50)	(50—70)	(70—80)	(80—90)
44			2	0	
38			5	0	
14			l	0	
	10	0			10
		0			0.3
	Speech Inter Moderate (45-60) 44 38 14	Speech Interference* Moderate Severe (45-60) (>60) 44 38 14 10 0.3	Speech Interference* Sleep Interference Moderate Severe Slight (45-60) (>60) (35-50) 44 38 14 14 10 0 0.3 0 0	Speech Interference* Moderate $(45-60)$ Sleep Interference* Slight $(35-50)$ Moderate $(50-70)$ 4423821411000.30	Speech Interference* Moderate (45-60)Sleep Interference* Slight (35-50)Hearing D Slight (70-80)4420382014101000.30

*Entries in these columns may not be interpreted directly as person-hours of direct speech or sleep interference (see text).

93

An a particular program of the second second second

With these restrictions firmly in mind, the reader is referred to Tables XVIII and XIX for a concise summary of the impact of construction noise on people. Table XVIII expresses the impact of construction noise in terms of millions of person-hours per week. (It may be useful to bear in mind that a week in the United States contains approximately 35 billion person-hours.) Table XIX relates the impact of construction noise directly to the principal criteria of Sec. 3.1 in terms of person-hours per week. Entries for speech interference and sleep interference effects reflect the number of person-hours of potential impact, which may be interpreted as upper bounds.

3.3 Appliances

3.3.1 Extent of exposure

This section is concerned primarily with power tools and household appliances whose volume cannot be controlled by the user. Therefore, volume-controllable equipment such as televisions, radios, and stereos are not included, nor are gasolineengine powered outdoor equipment and audible signaling mechanisms (bells, alarms, etc.). It should be noted, however, that noncontrollable noise-producing devices often raise the background level of noise to such a degree that volume-controllable sound has to be increased in level to be heard and, hence, is more apt to affect neighbors. An estimate of the number of noncontrollable noise-producing devices being used in the United States in 1971 is given in Table XX.

To determine the extent of exposure to home appliance and tool noise, we gathered three kinds of data: The distribution of appliances and tools over family units, the time that the devices are typically in use, and the exposure of people who are

TABLE XX. NONCONTROLLABLE HOUSEHOLD NOISE SOURCES (1971) [31]

ia 1

1117月の12月1日のような、第二年の時代は、前に行いては年の「西部のはいね」は自己は自己は自己なない。これは国家のの時間には、前には国家になった。それをするのかでも、また

Section 2.

· ·

	<u>Number (thousands)</u>	<u>Percent of Homes</u>
Wired Households	62,800	100
Complete Plumbing	58,000	93
Major Appliances		
Refrigerator Clothes Washer Vacuum Cleaner Clothes Dryer Freezer Air Conditioner Dishwasher Food Disposer Trash Disposer	62,600 57,600 56,900 25,300 20,000 18,000 14,900 14,400 (introduced	99.8 91.9 90.7 40.3 30.0 29.6 23.7 22.9 in 1970)
Other Appliances		
Food Mixer Can Opener Sewing Machine Food Blender Electric Shaver Slicing Knife Floor Polisher	51,200 27,100 31,300 19,900 25,000 25,000 10,000	81.7 43.2 50.0 31.7 40.0 40.0 16.0
Power Tools		
Saw, Drill, etc.	12,500	20.0
Outdoor Equipment		
Electric Mower Edger Trimmer	2,000* 1,000 4,000	3.2 1.6 6.4
Building Equipment (residential)		
Fan Humidifier Dehumidifier	50,000 4,600 4,200	80.0 7.4 6.7

*There are approximately 37 million powered mowers in use.

in the home. In collecting this information, we found that the variables, particularly with regard to personal behavior, covered a very large range. We therefore created a simplified model to show the extent of household noise.

Data were obtained from a variety of sources. Statistical information was collected from government sources, such as the Bureau of the Census. Of particular help was information provided by Cornell University's College of Human Ecology on domestic living patterns. Industry information was obtained from various trade and business publications. Individual company material was used in instances where the material was applicable to the whole industry and was available to the public. Various organizations representing consumers and home economists were contacted. We also conducted our own survey of appliance use in 20 households.

Appliances, Tools, and Building Equipment

The dimensions used by industry to analyze household appliance purchase and use patterns usually include home ownership, age of the head of the family, size of family, and family income. Since these dimensions are interrelated, we chose only one family income level - for our analysis. We treat the time that appliances are used as a function of the age of the homemaker and of the number of school and pre-school children in the family. Figure 21 shows the trend toward greater use of home appliances and power tools. Figure 22 gives the distribution of some common appliances as a function of income level.

Noise-producing devices used in and around the home are usually classified as



FIG. 21. PERCENT OF HOUSEHOLDS WITH SELECTED NOISE-PRODUCING APPLIANCES AND TOOLS.


FIG. 22. ESTIMATED PERCENT DISTRIBUTION OF MAJOR APPLIANCES BY INCOME LEVEL.

.

,

- Major Appliances (including clothes washers, clothes dryers, refrigerators and freezers, air conditioners, dishwashers, vacuum cleaners, disposers, dehumidifiers, and compactors)
- · Other Household Appliances
- · Power Tools
- Outdoor Equipment
- Building Equipment

Other convenient classifications are based on time mode of operation (continuous or intermittent) and method of operation (manual or automatic).

Analysis of the noise-producing building equipment used in homes is complicated by interaction of the equipment with the structure of the house, by do-it-yourself modifications of equipment, and by differences in the adequacy of equipment maintenance. Size of housing is also a factor in noise level. Smaller housing units are apt to be noisier because of reverberant buildup of sound levels. Larger housing units on the other hand, frequently reflecting a higher standard of living, tend to have more appliances and more frequent exposure but lower noise levels for any particular appliance owing to the larger space and to the room separation from the various sources. Multiple-family housing units are subject to higher levels of noise from the building equipment.

In heating systems either the heating source or distribution system or both are common sources of noise; however, the number of factors involved is too great to allow a precise analysis of the extent of heating noise. Electric heating, which is essentially noiseless, is currently being used by 4.4 million customers.

(It should be noted, however, that electric heating customers are likely to be high users of electric appliances. Furthermore, humidity control, ventilating, and/or air cleaning, which are often used in conjunction with electric heating, require air circulation; therefore, fan noise is present where these additional functions are performed.) The more common heating systems generate burner noise, fan/duct noise (in hot-air systems), and pipe, valve, and pump noise (in hot water and steam systems).

Twenty-one percent of all households have one or more room air conditioners. Location of these air conditioners is distributed approximately [38]:

Living Room	35%	Kitchen	7%
Master Bedroom	27%	Playroom	4%
Other Bedroom	5%	Other	22%

All dehumidifiers and many humidifiers are substantial noise sources. Frequently, dehumidifiers are located in the basement and therefore direct exposure to the noise is small. Dehumidifiers are used in 6.7% of homes; humidifiers in 7.4% [38].

Living patterns, equipment installations, etc. are variables that make it difficult to estimate the extent of plumbing noise. The typical range of toilet flushes is 10 to 50 per day. Complete plumbing (not and cold water, bath or shower, toilet) is found in 82% of all rental units and in 93% of all owner-occupied units in the United States.

The number of fans being used in this country far exceeds the total number of households. Many fans are part of other appliances, but many are used for immediate air circulation (i.e., cooling fans, kitchen fans, etc.).

Use of Domestie Appliances and Tools

The extent to which appliances are used is an important factor in assessing the total noise exposure. Statistical information is scarce, but we have found the following sources useful:

- BBN survey (in-depth study of noise levels and appliance use in 20 homes).
- New York State College of Human Ecology, Cornell University (both published and unpublished data gathered as part of a 1296-household survey of Syracuse, New York).
- Department of Agriculture information based on studies of home activities (a long-term interest, which is now being continued under the Agriculture Research Service Division of the Department of Agriculture).
- Potomac Electric Power Company (an informal survey conducted by their Home Services Department).
- · Manufacturer's industry information.

Although many factors affect the range of appliance use, there is a tendency for people in the family-raising years to have increased incomes, own their homes, and possess more appliances. The time a homemaker spends in household activities is a strong function of age, number of children, and the presence of pre-school children, as shown in Table XXI. Table XXII presents the information on which we base our estimate of typical use of appliances; Table XXIII gives our estimate of appliance use in two typical households; appliance operating times are estimated from Table XXII. Using the values of appliance use (total minutes per week) and of average noise levels given in Table XXIII, we present in Fig. 23 a schematic illustration of the noise levels of the two typical households.

TABLE XXI. AVERAGE HOURS PER DAY SPENT ON HOUSEHOLD WORK BY 1296 HOMEMAKERS, ACCORDING TO NUMBER OF CHILDREN AND AGE OF YOUNGEST CHILD, SYRACUSE, NEW YORK AREA, 1967-68 [39]

	Hours
All homemakers	7.3
Number of children	
0	4.8
1	6.8
2	7.8
3	7.7
4	8.2
5 or 6	8.5
7 to 9	9.2
Age of youngest child	
Under 1 year	9.3
l year	8.3
2 to 5 years	7.7
б to ll years	7.1
12 to 17 years	6.0

Level of Exposure

We have selected two criteria to show different measures of exposure. A *potential exposure* represents the number of people likely to be exposed to an appliance and depends solely on an average distribution of the population and the percentage of households that possess the particular appliance. A *primary exposure* is estimated by the normal mode of operation, the location TABLE XXII. APPLIANCE USAGE SOURCE DATA (TIMES PER DAY UNLESS INDICATED)

Appliance		Percent of homes with appliance	Percent used var- ~0 ious day (of .5 1296)] Uni tate i	vers Coll Numbe whici l	ity ege er o [.] h ap 2	Data of H f day plia 3	, 12 uman /s ir nce f	96 Hi Eco None Was	omes logy e we used 6	*) * 7	Potomac Electric Co., Home Services Dept. (informal estimate for home with 2-3 children)	BBN estimate of use for family with 3 Children
Clothes washer [†] Clothes dryer			62 43	135	104	167	197	163	163	178	189	2	1.5 1
Dishwasher Food disposer Vacuum cleaner Room air conditioner Trash disposer Food mixer Food blender } Can opener Sewing machine	30 24 97 17	22 48	931 1002 111	4 1 211	5 5 275	13 2 260	33 5 164	25 3 76	14 10 80	272 268 119	2 6-7 3/wk	1.5 6 3/wk	
	98	28	277	226	286	207	153	80	28	39	1—2/wk 3/wk 2	2/wk 3/wk 2 1/wk	
Floor polisher Electric shaver Power tools (saw,	etc.)	48	3	1161	107	17	б	l	0	0	4		1/wk 1/mo 1 2/mo
TNO. OF Loads	Loads	0	1	2	2	h	5	б	7	8	Ave		1/ WK
on One Day	Homes	502	210	263	159	82	4 4	18	6	4	1.50		.•

*Sample selected to give equal numbers of homes with different number of children; therefore, sample shows homes with more persons than national average.

103

TABLE XXIII. USE OF NONCONTROLLABLE NOISE-PRODUCING APPLIANCES AND TOOLS IN TYPICAL HOUSEHOLDS

.l.

		Household No. 1*				Household No. 2 ¹			
	Average dB(A) ¹	Times Used Per Week ²	Minutes Per Use ³	Total Minutes Per Week	Times Used Per Week	Minutes Per Use	Total Minutes Per Week		
Major Appliances									
Clothes washer Vacuum cleaner Clothes dryer Room air conditioner Dishwasher Food disposer	64 70 57 58 65 70	10.5 3 (full-t 10.5 6	30 30 30 :1me — sea 45 0.2	315 90 210 asonal) 472 1	7 2	30 25	210 50		
Household Appliances									
Food mixer	69 60	2 1/1	5	10	3	5	15		
Sewing machine Food blender Electric shaver Slicing knife Floor polisher Trash disposer	72 76 64 71	1 3 7 1 1 1 1 4	15 1 2 1 10 1	15 3 14 10 14	0.5	15	15		
Power Tools									
Saw, drill, etc. Mower Edger Trimmer	83 81 81	0.5 1 0.75 0.25	20 30 5 15	10 30 4 4					
*2 Adults 3 children (nre-sch	nol age)	fomily i	ncome \$16	000				

*2 Adults, 3 children (1 pre-school age), family income \$16,000. †2 Adults, family income \$8,000. ¹Measurements taken 3 ft from source during BBN household survey. ²Based on data from BBN survey, Cornell Univ. survey of Syracuse, N.Y., and Potomac Electric Power Company information. ³Based on average cycle times of current model appliances.

104



FIG. 23. NOISE PROFILES FROM APPLIANCE FOR TYPICAL HOUSEHOLDS PER WEEK (AT 3 ft) No. 1: AVERAGE-INCOME FAMILY WITH CHILDREN No. 2: LOWER-THAN-AVERAGE-INCOME FAMILY WITHOUT CHILDREN

105

of the appliance, and the number of operators and observers likely to be exposed to noise when the appliance is operating. Table XXIV gives these two kinds of exposure for each appliance; Table XXV relates exposure to income level.

3.3.2 Impact assessment

The estimates of the extensiveness of distribution, duration of exposure, and noise levels of a variety of building equipment and home appliances are discussed here with a view toward assessing the impact of noise from these sources on people in the home environment. To approximate the environment in which noises are heard, we had to adjust the noise levels from the standardized values used in previous sections (i.e., levels recorded at a measurement position 3 ft from the source). Thus, 10 dB was added to the noise levels of hand-held appliances, such as electric shavers, to obtain a fair representation of noise levels at the user's ear. Similarly, 2 dB was subtracted from levels for exposure to noise in a highly reverberant field, such as a kitchen or bathroom; 3 dB from standardized measurements to account for noise exposure in less reverberant spaces, such as carpeted (living room) or open areas; 10 dB from the standard values to. compensate for exposure in adjacent rooms connected by open doors; and 20 dB to represent the transmission loss of a typical frame house to noise from external sources (such as powered yard tools). Levels for about thirty typical home appliance and building noise sources adjusted in this manner appear in Table XXVI.

Table XXVII classifies the noise sources discussed in the previous section of this report into four categories: (1) Quiet Major Equipment and Appliances, characterized by operating levels lower than 60 dB(A); (2) Quiet Equipment and Small Appliances,

TABLE XXIV.NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS EXPOSED TOINDICATED APPLIANCES (MILLIONS - 1970) [39]

	Potential Exposure	Primary Exposure
Major Appliances		
Refrigerator Clothes washer Vacuum cleaner Clothes dryer Freezer Air conditioner Dishwasher Food disposer Trash disposer	199 183 181 80 63 60 47 46	70 65 66 28 23 21 17 17
Household Appliances		
Food mixer Can opener Sewing machine Food blender Electric shaver Slicing knife Floor polisher	163 86 100 63 80 80 32	59 31 23 25 80 40
Power Tools		
Saw, drill, etc.	40	13
Outdoor Equipment Electric Mower Edger Trimmer	6 3 12	2 1 1
Building Equipment (residential)		
Fan Humidifier Debumidifier	160 15 13	90 5 1

107

 $\sum_{i=1}^{n-1} a_i$

TABLE	XXV. E	STIMATED	NUMBER	0 F	INDIVIDUA	LS	EXPOSED	ΤO
	DOMESTI	C APPLIAN	CE NOIS	5E (MILLIONS -	- 1	965)*	

1.1.1.1.1

, ·

				Potentia	1 Primary	Exposure	Total
Family Income (\$ thousands)	Typical Appliance Possession	Total House- holds	Potential Secondary Exposure	"Home- makers"	Children Under 6 yrs.	Night Workers	Persons Primary Exposed
Under 5	Mostly only essential	12.6	41	12.6	2.9	0.6	9.9
$5 - 10 \\ 10 - 15 $	Wide variety of appliances	21.2 16.8	71 55	21.2 16.8	6.0 5.0	1.0	18.8 14.4
15 and over	Often most appliances	12.0	39	12.0	3.8	0.6	10.5
Total		62.8	200	62.8	17.7	3.0	83.5

*Calculated from average distributions and income information in Ref. 36.

.

e e

•

......

108

.

TABLE XXVI. SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OF HOME APPLIANCES AND BUILDING EQUIPMENT ADJUSTED FOR LOCATION OF EXPOSURE [IN dB(A)]

Noise Source	Level of Operator <u>Exposure</u>	Level of Exposure to People in Other <u>Rooms</u>
Group I: Quiet Major Equipment and Appliances		
Refrigerator Freezer Electric Heater Humidifier Floor Fan Dehumidifier Window Fan Clothes Dryer Air Conditioner	40 41 50 52 55 55 55	32 33 37 43 44 45 47 48 48
Group II: Quiet Equipment and Small Appliances		
Hair Clipper Clothes Washer Stove Hood Exhaust Fan Electric Toothbrush Water Closet Dishwasher Electric Can Opener Food Mixer Hair Dryer Faucet Vacuum Cleaner Electric Knife	60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 6	40 52 53 54 56 56 57 51 51 60 60
Group III: Noisy Small Appliances		
Electric Knife Sharpener Sewing Machine Oral Lavage Food Blender Electric Shaver Electric Lawn Mower Food Disposal (Grinder)	70 70 722 75 75 76	62 62 65 55 55 68
Group IV: Noisy Electric Tools Electric Edger and Trimmer Hedge Clippers Home Shop Tools	81 84 85	61 64 75

Sauce.

ł

109

. . .

TABLE XXVII. ORDER	-OF-MAGNITUDE ESTIM	ATES OF THE	EXTENT AND DURATION	0 F
EXPOSURE	TO BUILDING EQUIPM	ENT AND HOM	E APPLIANCES	
NOISE SOURCE	PRIMARY EXPOSURE*	<u>DURATION[†]</u>	SECONDARY EXPOSURE*	<u>DURATION [†]</u>
Group I: Quiet Major Equipment and Appliances				
Refrigerator Fans Air Conditioner Humidifier Clothes Dryer Freezer	70 90 21 5 28 23	25 10 3 0.5 0.25	200 178 80 15 80 20	10 5 1 5 1 0.50
Group II: Quiet Equipment and Small Appliances				
Plumbing (Faucets, Toilets) Vacuum Cleaner Dishwasher Clothes Washer Electric Food Mixer Electric Can Opener Electric Knife	200 66 17 65 59 31 80	2 1.5 5 0.15 0.03 0.02	200 181 47 183 163 86 80	. 5 1.0 8 1 0.10 0.02 0.01
Group III: Noisy Small Appliances				
Sewing Machine Electric Shaver Food Blender Food Disposer Electric Lawn Mower	36 25 23 17 2.0	0.25 0.25 0.02 0.10 0.50	100 80 63 46 4	0.10 0.10 0.02 0.05 0.25
Group IV: Noisy Electric Tools				
Home Shop Tools Electric Yard Care Tools	13 5	0.10 0.10	10 10	0.10 0.10
*In millions of persons [†] In hours per week				

and the second second

characterized by noise levels between 60 and 70 dB(A); (3) Noisy Small Appliances, characterized by noise levels between 70 and 80 dB(A); and (4) Noisy Electric Tools, characterized by noise levels in excess of 80 dB(A).

Group I: Quiet Major Equipment and Appliances

 \mathbf{H}

یک اور با استخاب از استخاب کرد.

Group I contains the noise sources to which people are exposed for the greatest lengths of time in the home environment. Most building climate-control equipment, food-refrigeration appliances, and clothes dryers fall into this category. In view of the widespread distribution of equipment in Group I, it is indeed fortunate that this equipment is among the least noisy in the home.

In general, due to the low levels of noise produced by equipment and appliances in Group I, effects of exposure are either negligible or mild. Noise sources in Group I present no appreciable risk of hearing damage under conventional operating conditions. Under certain conditions, however, these noise sources can affect sleep. Of the noisier sources in Group I, only fans and air conditioners are likely to be present in sleeping quarters at night. These devices are characterized by nearly steadystate spectra because of their continuous operation. Differences in levels among operating cycles are small, so that peak noise levels are usually within a few dB of average levels. As such, these devices may delay the onset of sleep, but are unlikely to awaken many people. They may, in fact, facilitate sleep for those directly exposed to their noise, since they function as sources of masking noise which can suppress interference from other sources.

The major effect of exposure to noise from Group I equipment is speech interference. Conversations in the immediate vicinity of the noisier sources of Group I would have to be conducted in somewhat higher than normal levels, or at slightly shorter than normal speaking distances.

The annoyance value of exposure to noise from Group I appliances is also minimal. The steady-state nature of their amplitude and frequently spectra are highly conducive to rapid habituation. Only rarely does one become sufficiently aware of refrigerator noise, for example, to become annoyed by it. Indeed, it is the noise sources of Group I which define the background noise environment of many homes.

Exposure to Group I noise sources has little or no bearing on startle and stress. Very few people are startled by the noise of their air conditioners or feel menaced by the implications of their regrigerator's whirring.

Considering the mild nature of most of the effects of exposure to noise from Group I sources, noise reduction is not an urgent need. Many appliances in Group I already operate at or near the level of background noise in the home, so that submerging them further into the background noise environment would serve little purpose. Those few noise sources in Group I which do produce noise levels appreciably above background levels could probably profit greatly from approximately 10 dB(Λ) of quieting. Such noise reduction, well within the capabilities of existing technology, would alleviate the undesirable effects of noise exposure from this group of appliances.

Group II: Quiet Equipment and Small Appliances

Most of the noise sources of Group II are found in many American homes, although not all of the sources are as common as the major equipment and appliances of Group I. Noise levels in Group II are sufficiently elevated to render certain appreciable effects, particularly speech interference and annoyance. Fortunately, the typical pattern of exposure is an infrequent, brief encounter.

Of the three major effects by which noise impact is gauged in this report, noise sources in Group II produce only speech interference in significant measure. Hearing-damage risk is negligible, both for operators and for others who may experience secondary exposure. Since most of the appliances in this group require an operator, sleep interference is not a serious consequence of primary exposure. Secondary exposure probably affects daytime sleeping to some slight extent. Secondary exposure to plumbing noise in multi-unit residences could conceivably awaken as many as 35% of sleepers, although habituation probably reduces the percentage dramatically.

Operators of the appliances in Group II would find speech communication during operation quite difficult; conversations would have to be conducted with significantly greater than normal vocal effort or at very short ranges, and the intelligibility of fixed level speech (such as radio or television) would become marginal. The obvious mitigating circumstances, however, is the brevity of noise exposure typical of this group of appliances. In practical terms, the most likely consequence of exposure to this sort of short duration appliance noise is a temporary interruption of conversation.

Annoyance is the most significant of the indirect consequences of exposure to noise from Group II appliances. While the operator may be summarily annoyed by the brief speech interference effects, people experiencing secondary exposure may be equally, if not more, annoyed. The annoyance of these people (such as neighbors in multi-unit residences or other family members in different rooms) is conditioned in part by the intrusive nature of the exposure and in part by feelings of lack of control of the noise source. Feelings of helplessness, exasperation, or frustration are themselves unpleasant and can produce further annoyance. Should secondary exposure become unduly or unreasonably common, physiological stress from emotional arousal might develop.

Primary exposure to the noise of these appliances is not likely to result in much task interference. This is true simply because it is the undemanding and highly practiced task at hand that is generating the noise. Exposure to appliance noise for people other than the operator could interfere with certain highly sensitive tasks. Generally, however, considering the usual brevity of exposure, such task interference would be the exception rather than the rule.

A 10 dB(A) reduction of noise levels produced by appliances of Group II would be a useful and worthwhile endeavor. Many of the effects of secondary exposure would become negligible, while the speech interference effects for the operator would be considerably reduced. It is clear from Table XXVII that the single most common source of noise exposure in the home is plumbing. Better design of plumbing fixtures would have a gradual but significant effect in making multifamily residences less noisy. Sales resistance to less noisy products (including the muchdiscussed "quiet vacuum cleaner") may be expected to diminish as the public becomes more noise conscious.

Group III: Noisy Small Appliances

The distribution and exposure patterns of noise sources in Group III continue the trend observed in Group II. Group III appliances are found in fewer homes than the appliances of the preceding group. Exposure to their noise is for equally brief periods at long intervals. Both of these factors tend to moderate the impact of the relatively high-level noise developed by these appliances.

Hearing-damage risk can no longer be dismissed as of minor importance for this group of noise sources. While it is true that average exposure is measured in fractions of hours per week, it is very likely that certain elements of the population are exposed to one or another of Group III source for prolonged periods of time. Home seamstresses, for example, could easily be exposed to several hours of sewing machine noise daily. Yard care specialists might be exposed to equivalent amounts of lawn mower noise. Although even these exposure durations would not constitute an imminent hazard to hearing (in the sense that they would be unlikely to lead to sizeable permanent threshold shifts for many years), they would nevertheless hasten eventual hearing damage in the context of cumulative exposure from many sources. In Miller's [16] terminology, noise sources in Group III would be rated "yellow" (cautionary) with respect to hearing-damage risk.

Speech interference is severe. Operators receiving primary exposure to noise sources of Group III would not attempt conversation during the brief periods in which the appliances are used, although communication by shouting would still be possible. Secondary exposure to the noise of Group III sources would also interfere somewhat with verbal communication. The principal

115

a particular a factor of a first state of the second state of the

form of interference, however, would be degradation of speech intelligibility rather than more severe disruptions of conversation.

Since appliances of Group III require operators, sleep interference effects of primary exposure to their noise are negligible. Sleep interference effects of secondary exposure to this set of appliance noises also tend to be low, both because the noise exposure often occurs during hours during which sleep is uncommon and because the very brief periods of exposure occur only infrequently. Of course, the tendency for more mothers to be employed outside the home during the day constrains their use of appliances to evening hours, when the attendant noise levels may interfere with family social activities and the sleep of young children.

Annoyance is once again the chief indirect effect of exposure to noise from Group III sources. The operator himself may find the noise signature of the appliance unpleasant, particularly if it contains pure tone components or a highly variable temporal distribution of levels. Secondary exposure to these noises is also likely to be annoying, particularly if the people exposed to the noise feel that they are deriving none of the benefits of the appliance's use.

Task interference, startle, and stress reactions are all plausible consequencies of exposure to this sort of noise. As usual, however, difficulties in assessing the unexpectedness of the intruding signal or the nature of background activity make precise prediction of the magnitude of these effects impractical.

Reduction of noise produced by appliances of Group III could substantially reduce the levels of hearing-damage risk and speech interference. The operator's annoyance with the noise signature of an appliance could also be affected by noise reduc-

tion, but special attention would have to be paid to the spectral characteristics of the appliance. All of the effects of secondary exposure to noise from this appliance group would be significantly lessened by a 10 dB(A) reduction of noise output levels.

Group IV: Noisy Electric Tools

となるのでしたが、自然のなど、自然のなどないである。 したいれんない かんしょうほう

Group IV contains the appliances which produce the highest levels of noise exposure in the home environment. Considering the potentially serious effects of exposure to such levels, it is fortunate that the distribution of sources is quite restricted. As may be seen from Table XXVII, only about 250,000 electric yard care tools have been sold, and only about 12 million electric shop tools are in use. Further, the use of such tools is probably concentrated in nonurban areas where secondary exposure effects are not as widespread as they might be in multi-unit residences.

Hearing-damage risk can be great if exposure to the noise levels of Group IV sources is habitual or prolonged. Hobbyists who engage in regular use of power tools are likely to receive considerably more than the average six minutes per week exposure noted in Table XXVII. Many such tools (saws, drills, routers, etc.) are operated within a few feet of the user's ear, making hearing-damage risk even more probable. In Miller's (1971) terminology, such tools can produce "orange" or even "red" hearing damage risk if exposure is prolonged. It is doubtful that any major risk of hearing damage is encountered in secondary exposure, owing to the much lower levels experienced.

Speech interference effects of exposure to noise of Group IV sources can be of sufficient magnitude to preclude verbal communication in any form other than shouting directly into the

ear. Even the speech interference effects of secondary exposure can be great enough to require conversation to be conducted at high levels of vocal effort or at very short distances. As was pointed out earlier, however, relatively few people are affected by such secondary exposure, and those who are affected are exposed for very brief intervals.

Steep interference effects of exposure to Group IV sources would be quite serious were the hours of use of Group IV appliances to coincide with hours of attempted sleep. Primary exposure, of course, is not a problem here, but even secondary exposure can reach levels in the vicinity of 60 to 70 dB(A). Data from the Wilson report [26] may be interpreted as predicting that such levels will awaken one-half of all sleepers and about onethird of all people would find it difficult to fall asleep. Use of electric yard care tools at night is unlikely, but home shop tools are often used at night.

To the extent that noise exposure to such high levels is perceived as avoidable or unnecessary, annoyance effects are probably quite pronounced. A neighbor's noise, particularly at such high levels, is rarely welcome. The high noise levels produced by these tools may also interfere with the very tasks the operators are attempting to accomplish. If noise levels are sufficiently high to mask warning signals or other unexpected acoustic signs of danger, the safety of the operator and his efficiency may be compromised. Stress produced through prolonged exposure to noise levels characteristic of Group IV tools may be appreciable, particularly if exposure is involuntary.

Considering the seriousness of the effects of exposure to noise of appliances in Group IV, application of noise reduction techniques is urgently needed. Reduction of noise levels by as

little as 10 dB(A) would have immediate benefits in reducing the hearing-damage risk to the operator and reduction of the speech interference and annoyance-related effects for those receiving secondary exposure.

Summary of Effects of Appliance Noise on People

Tables XXVI and XXVII summarize the impact of appliance noise on people in concise terms. Table XXVII contains an account of the extent and duration of noise exposure from all four appliance groups in terms of millions of person-hours per week. The reader is reminded of the cautions expressed in the summary of Sec. 3.2.1 for the interpretations of figures expressed in person-hours. Table XXVIII relates person-hours of exposure directly to the major criteria of Sec. 3.1.

3.4 Projections of Construction and Appliance Noise to the Year 2000

11 22

1.1.1

特許ないが

 $\frac{1}{2}$

andread a state of

Projecting conditions to the year 2000 involves a number of uncertainties. One of these is the exponential rate at which technology is evolving and affecting society. As pointed out by Sir Arthur Clark*, life in the year 2001 will be as different from the present as the present is from 1890. Who - in 1890 could have realized the impact that electricity and the automobile would have both on life style and on the environment? Technological innovation, however, is not the only factor to be considened. One simply cannot account for future changes in social attitudes. Although a few far-sighted technologists may have predicted in 1940 the capability to transport passengers at

^{*}Lecture to the Arlington Library Association, Arlington, Mass. (Sept. 1970).

and the second second

TABLE XXVIII. ORDER-OF-MAGNITUDE ESTIMATES OF EXPOSURE TO HOME APPLIANCE AND BUILDING EQUIPMENT NOISE EXPRESSED IN MILLIONS OF PERSON-HOURS PER WEEK

Noise Source	Speech Interf Moderate (45-60)	erence* Severe (>60)	Sleep Inter Slight (35-50)	ference* Moderate (50-70)	<u>Hearing</u> Slight (70-80)	Damage Risk Moderate (80⊷90)
Group I: Quiet Major Equip- ment and Appliances						
Fans Air Conditioner Clothes Dryer Humidifier Freezer Refrigerator	1200 242 94 10 0		0 121 10 15 0 0			
Group II: Quiet Equipment and Small Appliances						
Plumbing (Faucets, Toilets) Dishwasher Vacuum Cleaner Electric Food Mixer Clothes Washer Electric Can Opener Electric Knife		535 461 280 222 215 117 1	267 4 0.5 1 0.5 0.2 0.1			
Group III: Noisy Small Appliances						
Sewing Machine Electric Shaver Food Blender Electric Lawn Mower Food Disposer		19 6 2 1 0.5		0.5 1 0.2 1 0.5	9 5.5 0.3 0.5	
Group IV: Noisy Electric Tools						
Home Shop Tools Electric Yard Care Tools		5 1.5		2 .1		1 0.4

*These figures are not directly interpretable in terms of person-hours of lost sleep or speech interference (see text).

المراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمنافع المراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع

......

120

ومردبيا والمشاهير والردو والمقر دوهم فالوحات

.

supersonic speeds, it is doubtful that they could have predicted that such a technologically feasible system would be abandonded largely because it was expected to make too much noise.

Although any long-term predictions are fraught with such difficulties, one can still make educated guesses with a reasonable level of confidence. Rather than merely extrapolate existing conditions to the indefinite future, we try to be somewhat quantitative by projecting the impact of construction and appliance noise on the basis of existing forecasts of population, family size, gross national product, and trends toward urbanization. Construction activities will continue to follow such growth patterns, although the character of construction may change significantly with greater use of prefabricated materials and the introduction of new kinds of equipment. Similarly, ownership of appliances has been found to be a function of family income level, and we use their relationship to project the growth of appliance use in the generally more affluent households predicted for the year 2000. Also, rather than trying to account for conflicting trends and changing attitudes, we project the extent of exposure with the assumption of no change in noise level for a given equipment or appliance type and consider only major trends that can be easily identified.

We use the following data, taken from the U.S. Census Bureau, for projecting the increase in exposure to construction and appliance noise:

	1970	2000	<u>Ratio</u>
GNP (billions of 1958 dollars)	720	2240	3.2
Total Population (millions)	200	293	1.45
Total Number of Households (millions)	63	104	1.65
People per Household	3.17	2,8	0.9

3.4.1 Construction activity

Given the predicted increase in population and in financial resources, one can expect fairly extensive building activity. However, the urban areas have limited space available for new building; thus, the trend is for areas outside those now identified as central cities to become urbanized. Figure 24 illustrates this trend for single-family, multi-family, and nonresidential construction activities. With available land becoming more and more scarce within the central city, the building of single-family and multi-family dwellings will continue to decrease sharply. In 2000, we can expect to find approximately one-third the number of residential construction sites as were active in 1970. Nonresidential building is expected to increase. In areas outside the central cities, both residential and nonresidential construction should increase significantly. Nonresidential building activity is expected to increase by over 50% as the present suburbs become urbanized. With this general trend in mind, we use the data given above to project the expected increase in exposure to noise from construction activities.

Nonresidential

We assume that the level of nonresidential construction activity in any given year is proportional to the real Gross National Product (GNP) for that year. To find the nonresidential construction activity for any particular year, the ratio of the GNP for that year to the 1970 GNP is multiplied by the number of nonresidential sites built in 1970 (Table X). The resulting total construction figures are apportioned between "central cities" and "other metropolitan areas" in the same proportions as occurred in 1970. Despite the expected decrease in total con-



struction site within the central city, nonresidential sites are expected to increase.

Residential

We assume that the population and population density of central cities will remain at their present levels until the year 2000, and that most residential construction in central cities will be for the purpose of replacing decayed units rather than for housing new population. The number of construction sites will decrease due to the established trend toward an increasing population of multi-family dwellings over single-family dwellings. (Two- to four-family houses, which represent a negligible fraction of total construction, are here included in the total for single-family housing.)

For metropolitan areas other than suburbs, the number of units constructed in any one year is assumed to be proportional to the population increase in the previous ten years. To estimate this increase, we project the total metropolitan population by multiplying the projected total national population by the estimated proportion of the population living in metropolitan areas. All the increase in metropolitan areas population for a particular year is ascribed to noncentral city areas.

Roads

A simple but plausible indication of road construction activity, is the population level. Clearly additional people will require additional roads, the capability of rapid transit being small at present. However, the urban areas have limited space for new roads, and urban residents are expressing increasing opposition to new road construction on grounds of aesthetics,

pollution, and the community dismemberment concomitant with the installation of limited access highways. Thus, it would seem unlikely that road construction will rise as fast as other measures such as the GNP. We therefore project the future level by multiplying the present level of activity by the ratio of the projected population divided by the current population.

The number of people affected by construction sites is computed in the manner described in Sec. 3.2.1. Population densities for all metropolitan areas are assumed to be constant with time - 4500 people/sq mi for central cities and 2400 people/sq mi for other metropolitan areas. At any one site, people are apportioned to specific transmission loss intervals according to the method shown in Fig. 20. The resulting exposure to construction noise is given in Fig. 25 in person-hours. In this figure, multifamily residential construction has been included with nonresidential construction, since these types of building activities are quite similar. Note that the number of people exposed to noise from single-family dwelling construction declines steadily with time. This trend is more than compensated for by the rapid increase in nonresidential and multi-family sites - for which the duration of construction is typically six times greater than the duration for single-family houses. Thus, the number of person-hours of exposure is expected to increase by about 50% in the next 30 years.

3.4.2 Appliance use

We assume that the probability of future appliance ownership as a function of income level will remain the same and that appliance costs will remain approximately the same in current dollars. With these assumptions in mind, we base our approximation of appliance use on projected population, family income,



FIG. 25. PROJECTED CHANGE IN EXPOSURE TO CONSTRUCTION NOISE, ASSUMING NO CHANGE IN NOISE LEVELS.

and income distribution. This estimation is likely conservative as some appliances are continuing to increase their acceptance in all income levels, although their growth of acceptance is low at the higher income levels where some appliances have nearly saturated the market. For those appliances for which insufficient information is available on appliance possession at the various income levels to make the projection described above, we estimate future possession from current marketing information on percentage of replacement sales and on market penetration.

In projecting future impact, we estimate that the appliance usage will remain approximately at current levels. Supporting this assumption is the little deviation shown in average time spent by homemakers over the last forty years.

-1

いた。 約1月2日にはたい、「「「「「「「「「「「「」」」」」

したいなどなどのよう

Figure 26 illustrates the increase in exposure to appliance noise by plotting hearing-damage risk and speech and sleep interference in person-hours of exposure. As explained in Sec. 3.1, these three effects are among the most salient and tangible consequencies of noise exposure and thus can be most readily interpreted in nontechnical terms. As can be seen on Fig. 26, we project that number of person hours during which people will be exposed to the risk of hearing damage will more than double in the next thirty years, as will the number of person-hours during which normal conversation will be difficult and people will be either awakened or prevented from falling asleep.

As explained previously, we have not taken into account certain trends, discussed in Sec. 4, which are having some effect on the noise levels produced by construction equipment and appliances. However, one should note, when reviewing these projections, that industries are becoming sensitive to a growing concern about noise pollution among the general population. For



FIG. 26. PROJECTED CHANGE IN EXPOSURE TO APPLIANCE NOISE, ASSUMING NO CHANGE IN NOISE LEVELS.

example, construction equipment has become noisier as it has become more powerful; yet, one manufacturer has developed and is marketing a quiet air compressor. Conversely, refrigerators and air conditioners have become noisier as manufacturers have strived to meet market-place demands for extra features and smaller size. Thus, rather than try to account for an infinite number of variables, we have assumed no change in noise levels for both construction equipment and appliances. We feel that this method has resulted in reasonable near-term projections, if no noise control action is taken.

4. INDUSTRY EFFORTS

4.1 Introduction

Efforts by industry to quiet products are usually motivated by two factors: market place demand and government regulation. The consumer can exert pressure on industry by electing to buy or not to buy or by selecting a competitive brand that produces less annoying noise levels. This kind of "consumer regulation" can be very effective — particularly with regard to appliances — in that manufacturers are quick to respond to consumer tastes. However, consumer pressure can also subvert efforts a manufacturer may wish to make; for example, housewives often associate the noise produced by a vacuum cleaner with its ability to clean — the noisier the machine, the more satisfied a homemaker may be with its performance. In any event, the purchaser can apply direct pressure to the industry.

Public pressure, on the other hand, is usually very ineffective. The only recourse for people who do not own the noise sources to which they are exposed is to register a complaint. Such complaints have no effect whatsoever unless enough exposed people organize and concentrate their efforts on a particular source. This kind of community response may eventually result in government regulation.

Our analysis of industry efforts to quiet construction equipment, appliances, and building equipment was organized as follows:

• We constructed a matrix of common products and significant manufacturers.

- We rank-ordered products as to approximate magnitude of noise impact or need for quieting.
- We rank-ordered manufacturers as to their importance in the product area.
- We examined the resulting manufacturer/product "intersections" with a view toward organizing a number of interviews that would cover important products and leading firms and still be within the time and effort constraints of the study.
- We developed an extensive interview format both to guide the interview and to provide a standardized method of reporting. (Full use of this format was not possible within the constraints of this study; it could be useful, however, in the event that industry efforts are to be examined in more detail.)
- Under guidance of the format developed, we collected subjective data and objective observations; this information forms the basis for representative generalizations cited in this report.

As expected, the industry is concerned about releasing data which might disclose proprietary ideas or expose a competitively sensitive area of operations. Accordingly, identity of sources is carefully safeguarded herein. This need for corporate security has limited our collection of statistically meaningful data; the trends observed, however, are clear and, in themselves, undoubtedly represent the noise control environment in industry.

4.2 Construction Industry Efforts

We view the construction industry as consisting of two major sectors: equipment manufacturing and equipment operation (i.e., building construction). The functions of these two sectors of the industry are so different as to warrant separate discussion.

4.2.1 Equipment operation

Section 3.2 describes this sector of the construction industry in detail, identifying types and phases of site activity and describing the areas in which noise abatement can be achieved.

The industry has, in fact, done almost nothing to quiet site operations. Its attitude may be attributed in part to the fact that quiet equipment has not yet been made available on a cost-effective basis; however, a limited capability does exist for quieting a site by relocating or rescheduling equipment. This sector has not exercised its influence as a "consumer" to bring pressure to bear on the equipment manufacturers, nor has it responded to public complaints. Hence, regulatory measures may be the only solution to the problem of construction site noise, and such regulations are imminent.

4.2.2 Equipment manufacturers

There are approximately 2000 manufacturers* of construction equipment in the U.S. In total, these companies offer about 200 different products. For the purposes of assessing the state of noise control in this sector of the construction industry, we

*Defined by counting separately certain divisions of larger firms which have a highly identifiable product line.

categorized 48 general types of products that are potentially significant noise sources. We group these product types into three orders of classification: (1) class of noise problem anticipated, (2) relation of equipment to function at the site, and (3) specific equipment names.

- I. Engines and power trains
 - A. Excavating equipment
 - 1. backhoes
 - clamshells 2.
 - 3. dozers

1

「「「「「「「「「」」」」」」

シュージの時代に

- 4. draglines
- 5. loaders .
- 6. rippers
- 7. (power) shovels
- B. Highway equipment
 - 1. compacters
 - 2. graders
 - 3. pavers
 - pipe layers 4.
 - pulverizer/mixers
 - 5. 6. rollers
 - rotary borers and drills
 - rotary bo
 scrapers
 - 9. street sweepers
 - 10. trenchers and backfillers
- C. Equipment to handle finished materials
 - cranes 1.
 - 2. fork (and similar) lifts
 - 3. travel lifts

D. Mobile units

- tractors, crawler 1.
- 2. tractors, wheel
- 3. trucks

E. Power supplies

1. compressors

2. electric-power generators

133

الماد الإيران <mark>الموطف ورواللار منظر مصوطة وم</mark>اركين المركز المركز المركز المركز المركز المركز المركز المركز المركز
Interaction between equipment and materials (may .Il. include engines and power trains)

- A. Equipment to handle bulk materials
 - bins (and hoppers)
 concrete mixers
 conveyors
- B. Large impact tools
 - 1. drop hammers
 - 2. pile drivers
- C. Medium impact tools
 - 1. jack hammers
 - 2. rock (vibrating) drills
- D. Small impact tools (power)

 - impact hammers
 impact wrenches
 riveters

 - 4. stud drivers
- E. Rotary tools
 - 1. bench drills

 - grinders
 hand drills
 hand saws

 - 5. table saws
- III. Miscellaneous (may include sources characteristic of I and II above)
 - A. Pumps
 - 1. concrete pumps
 - 2. stripping pumps
 - 3. well-point pumps
 - B. Other
 - 1. burners and heaters
 - 2. sand blasters
 - 3. screeds

4. concrete vibrators

1.34

Two assumptions underlie the terminology selected: (1) equipment in transit under its own power is a truck or tractor, even though when working it may be a dozer or a crane, and (2) classification by function at the site is arbitrary since many types of equipment have several uses.

Manufacturers of construction equipment can be classified according to size/type of equipment produced as

- large companies producing large volumes of essentially similar, large items of machinery;
- medium-size companies producing "customized" production runs of more limited numbers, usually of smaller machinery; and
- manufacturers of power hand tools and pneumatic equipment.

Our interview program was organized to cover the two major acoustic source types (prime-movers and power trains) and the forty-eight types of products and three classes of companies identified above. We concentrated our efforts on significant leaders in the industry and companies producing a wide variety of products that have high levels of noise output:

- Of the ten manufacturers intensively interviewed, about eighty product analyses resulted.
- Eight of the firms produced equipment in which the prime-mover or power train is a significant source of noise; two companies produced only power hand tools.

الاست المراجع المراجع

- Three companies were high-production manufacturers; seven manufactured customized equipment.
- Three-quarters of all the products where subjected to specific analysis, covering all significant noise sources except impact tools and pumps.
- The ten firms represent a significant part of the industry: Of the two thousand firms nominally in the industry, about twenty comprise the industry "core". Eight of the ten interviewed are part of this core.

Our overview of the equipment manufacturing industry showed that:

1. Large companies closely resemble the Detroit assemblyline manufacturing concept. They tend to have large engineering staffs and are quite advanced in their efforts toward developing quieter products. They are aware of the competitive advantage of quieting equipment but are also sensitive to price competition from smaller companies and foreign manufacturers.

2. Medium-size companies producing "customized" items tend to feel more keenly the competitive pressures of the market place. Competition comes not only from domestic and foreign companies but also from other types of equipment that can perform the same operation. Engineering staffs tend to be small and product-oriented, interested only in improvements that incorporate new technology (e.g., hydraulic vs mechanical drive). Little effort has been made toward quieting products, with pressures of current and planned noise control legislation being passed on to their suppliers. They generally have no plans or see no need for developing greater noise control technology.

3. Manufacturers of hand power tools and pneumatic equipment fall into two categories: Large multiproduct companies which tend to mount considerable R&D efforts and smaller companies which are not so innovative but which do follow trends developed by the larger companies. Noise control has been pursued rather vigorously by these larger companies as part of their product improvement programs, but effective quieting of hand tools is difficult because of such practical constraints as size and weight.

Our in-depth interviews revealed that in the past the industry's concern with noise problems has been directed primarily to protection of the equipment operator. The impetus for this concern came largely from noise codes imposed by foreign countries, where some U.S. equipment has had to be "reworked" by foreign distributors. Three of the eight "large equipment" companies interviewed had previously quieted equipment to enter European markets. Switzerland and Belgium, for example, specify permissible noise levels for such machinery; in addition, foreign manufacturers make quieter machines and set a competitive pace in foreign markets. American manufacturers seem to have met this competition by custom-designing equipment for export. There is an implication here, of course, that many American machines marketed abroad have been quieter than counterparts that were marketed domestically; however, this implication has not been verified by this study.

Half the companies interviewed are currently undertaking programs to quiet their products for the domestic market for the first time. Many of the present programs have been started this past year and are aimed primarily at protecting operators, so as to conform to impending legislation/regulation regarding occupational health and safety. Only one of the companies indicated

137

للاست فحنه المنتاب المرجعين والمركوني

that purchasers complain about protection for operators on their own initiative, and only one case emerged where a union had lodged a formal complaint. Six of the eight companies described pressures on behalf of operators that originated with existing or proposed governmental action.

Many manufacturers feel that the efforts they are now making on behalf of equipment operators will pay off in meeting future noise limits designed to protect the public. Perhaps, one of the most promising future approaches has been taken by one of the manufacturers of large equipment, who has charged design teams with the responsibility of integrating noise control into the overall design of his next generation of products and has set up review boards to evaluate new designs from all standpoints, including noise.

Four of the eight companies specifically mentioned the recently enacted Chicago noise ordinance as contributing to their specific future objectives. The industry generally anticipates EPA-administered federal control; the visits of our interviewers reinforced this feeling. Two companies believe that pressures for quieting will increase with time - apparently as a result of an increasing public awareness of noise as an environmental pollutant.

Although the industry has become increasingly aware of the pressures for noise control and has already made some efforts in this area, manufacturers must cope with economic pressures that argue against noise abatement. Some companies feel that the intensity of competition sets the limits on what price the market will bear. One of the industry's leaders was concerned that purchasers will continue using old equipment if prices rise significantly. Other industry leaders point out that foreign-made machines (some of them already quieted) will enter

the American market if prices rise appreciably. One company predicted that a small rise in the price of truck-mounted concrete mixers would lead to the introduction of alternative methods for handling concrete delivery and production.

Companies who feel that the demand for their products is great enough plan to pass quieting costs onto the consumer, although such threats as foreign competition and alternative methods put limits on this process. The question here is how fast the industry dares to move. One limit on rapid movement is price competition. One company may be able to beat its competitors to the market with a quiet machine, but it does not dare raise prices substantially in the face of competition. Different companies approach this problem differently. Most express the intention to meet or exceed the competition, but they feel that any great competitive advantage they gain through an all-out effort to quiet their products would be shortlived. One company sees its competition as being extremely severe, and fears that it may not be prepared for the next round of quieting, while another company has actively launched a program designed to produce quieter machines than its competitors at lower costs than the competitor will incur.

This company and some others expressed the concern that often accompanies any industry leadership; i.e., a company may invest large sums in quieting which will thus increase the cost of products, while another company that refuses to quiet products keeps it prices low and may successfully challenge noise regulation in the courts.

and the second second

While all companies regard cost as an immediate - and perhaps as the ultimate - constraint, two other constraints become paramount if and as costs diminish: time and technology. Three companies, each in a different fashion, represented that costs can be traded for development time; i.e., more time for development would reduce the cost of competition, allowing quieting techniques to be integrated into planned engineering efforts and to be an integral part of the seasonal progression of models. The very company that is setting out to achieve the most quieting for the least cost is the one that feels that technology will eventually supercede cost as the principal factor that limits quieter equipment.

At another firm, the technical limitations are spelled out in terms of: (1) loss of equipment power through increased muffling; (2) increase in the difficulties and cost of maintenance; (3) fire hazards through using insulating materials that can become oil-soaked; (4) unsafe operation by suppressing or distorting the noise "signals" upon which operators depend for safety; and (5) ineffective operation, by disturbing these same "signals", thus hindering the ability of the operator to tell how effectively he is operating.

The industry also voiced concern over the feasibility of noise abatement where equipment and materials being worked interact to become prominent sources of noise; e.g., concrete mixers (where the structure may be the noise radiator); jack hammers (where the tool and its driving media may be the offender); riveters (where the structure of the building may be the primary source); and pile drivers (where both the structure and the media may be significant sources). This "interaction" type noise source may be very difficult to quiet.

However, no firm interviewed condemned noise limits out-ofhand, nor did they deny their inevitability. Six of the eight companies expressed the opinion that unless they quieted their products, their markets would disappear. Feelings varied from acceptance of inevitable reality to enthusiastic approval of the trend.

During the course of this study, members of the BBN team were actively engaged in the regulatory efforts of three cities and one state — Boston, Chicago, San Francisco, and Illinois. This work provided an insight into the mechanism of regulatory control from outside the construction industry. In addition, discussions were held with the Construction Industry Manufacturer's Association (CIMA) to obtain information about controls within the industry.

There are potentially four levels of regulatory bodies outside the industry: federal, state, city/town, and specialized local departments (city departments of health, air pollution control, zoning/building, etc.). The regulatory power exercised by these bodies is generally graduated into four steps: general standards (setting goals), enabling powers (granting power to a lower body), specific regulations (against which are judged infractions), and procedures (for measuring performance).

The target of the regulatory powers is either basic equipment performance (i.e., noise of new equipment as sold by manufacturer) or equipment operation (e.g., total noise emitted from a site). Regulations are usually aimed toward protecting (1) health (as in the hearing-protection section of the Federal Public Contracts Act) and (2) environmental quality (as in the construction site operating limits proposed for the city of Boston).

No fixed pattern has yet emerged which interrelates the regulatory bodies, nature of powers, targets, or degree of protection. Current activity at all levels, however, has alerted the industry that controls are imminent. One significant set of controls already in existence limits the noise from new construction equipment sold in Chicago; dual controls are being proposed in Boston, to limit site operation noise and to restrict noise from new equipment. Enabling legislation exists (as in the General Laws of the General Court of Massachusetts), and enabling powers have been passed on through city ordinance (again as in Boston). Even though the Federal Public Contracts Act does not apply to local construction, its philosophy is impressed on the industry, and its effect is increasingly noted in the carryover of standards into new federal occupational health and safety legislation.

In summary, the regulatory bodies outside the construction industry have begun to exercise some influence in the area of noise abatement.

CIMA and the national standards-setting bodies of ASTM/SAE are both actively addressing the problems of measuring equipment noise and recommending quieting standards. The equipment manufacturing industry would like to coordinate its activities with those of its closely related standards-setting bodies (see Appendix B for discussion of a paper prepared by CIMA). Self-regulation via industry-initiated standards is presumably somewhat hindered by federal anti-trust provisions.

As yet, no broad controls have been established. It is assumed that the example set by the City of Chicago equipment noise ordinance will stimulate other similar action, eventually resulting in a proliferation of standards put forth at the local level. As an alternative, the industry would welcome one comprehensive overriding standard. However, some anxiety was expressed as to the reasonableness of future legislation, specifically that sufficient time would not be allowed to conform to such a standard. Typical new product lead-times are on the order of five years. Industry believes it could meet noise goals without excessive cost to the consumer, if given enough time.

In general, it appears that industry is aware that it will be forced to comply with ever-tightening noise standards. While this fact seems to worry everyone to some extent, most manufacturers are confident that they will meet the limits set by current and anticipated legislation/regulations/standards. In fact, all but one of the companies interviewed stated their noise control goals in terms of such limits, frequently specifying either the levels stated in the Walsh-Healey Public Contracts Act for operators or those set forth by the Chicago ordinance for public exposure.

Early abatement efforts made by the manufacturers have been highly successful; thus, the industry is somewhat optimistic about its ability to cope with pressures for noise control. However, it is important to note that the industry has begun with the most obvious and the easiest tasks it must accomplish. Future tasks are apt to be far more difficult and costly; therefore, future struggles to comply with more stringent standards could possibly influence company attitudes, making them less receptive to regulation.

4.3 Building Equipment and Appliance Industry Efforts

Throughout this study we have viewed the home appliance industry as consisting of two major sectors: owner-controlled appliances and major building equipment (such as heating and plumbing systems in multifamily dwellings). We continue this division, since (even though certain large companies produce both types of equipment) the nature of the marketing and of the pressures for noise control are quite different.

4.3.1 Building equipment

The quieting of building equipment involves the contributions and decisions of an interdependent chain that consists of owner, regulatory body, architect, engineer (both mechanical and structural), equipment, and manufacturer. For purposes of analyzing industry programs, three sectors of this network are significant: (1) the equipment manufacturing sector; (2) the design sector, and (3) the control sector.

Overall, quieting of the equipment in a building thus becomes a compromise between the elements of the chain on matters of design, budget and technical performance.

Manufacturing Sector

Manufacturers of building environmental control and services equipment are currently aware of the significance of quieting their products; they realize that they have a role to play in quieting at the source. The manufacturer does not have complete control over the quieting of the finished system; here, he is dependent on the architect and the mechanical/structural engineers as to location, local architectural treatment, and surrounding structural design. Given this ambiguity, manufacturers in the past have been uncertain as to what to quiet, how much to quiet, and even how to measure progress in quieting. In a recent review of a wide variety of currently available equipment from a variety of manufacturers, several types of equipment showed spreads as large as 10 dB within the type. However, no line of equipment from a single manufacturer was characteristically noisy or quiet.

Currently, manufacturers are trying to solve problems of rating their equipment. This effort is being channeled largely through the trade associations and the technical societies. The fundamental aim of this effort is to furnish the architect and engineer with ratings that they can utilize in designing their equipment layouts and in specifying their equipment.

In the compressor industry this step has been substantially achieved. The result is that competitive criteria have become clearer and that the major technical barrier to quieting is common to the industry as a whole. (It is the blade-rate scream from the impeller.) It is apparent that if a manufacturer could make a technical breakthrough in this area, he would achieve a strong competitive advantage. There is some question, however, as to whether any single manufacturer can afford the development costs that such a breakthrough would entail.

When rating methods have been developed and when, as a result, the technical problems become better defined, manu-facturers of building equipment will face three basic alternatives in reducing the noise from their products that reaches the building's occupant: (1) redesign of the equipment, (2) enclosure of the noise source by the manufacturer and (3) passing the problem along to the building designer.

Design Sector

The mechanical engineer is starting to add acoustic performance of equipment to the list of building specifications. These specifications are passed back to equipment manufacturers.

The mechanical and structural engineer interface with the equipment manufacturer in the area of containment of noise vs quieting at the source. Trade-off between the two approaches must be considered on both sides. Enclosures, if chosen often become a manufacturer's problem because of the need to bring proper controls and services through the enclosure.

The same two factors face each other regarding size of equipment. The design sector wants compact equipment in order to increase usable space as well as be able to move through doors, while the manufacturer tends toward larger equipment to favor quieting.

The architect meets the manufacturer at another interface that concerns equipment location, local architectural treatment and selection of structural system. Acoustically remote spaces are often not possible to be allotted to house equipment in view of the high cost of building space and the attendant desire to maximize revenue-bearing space. Architectural taste for openness in design and novel structural systems can often make the isolation of equipment spaces more expensive.

The designer faces a unique combination of equipment for every structure he designs. These combinations create unique problems of design. They also create unique patterns of emission. Thus in one building, the designer may be able to afford a fairly noisy piece of equipment because it will operate by itself or because it will operate in relative isolation. In another

building he may require a very quiet piece of equipment to perform the same function because it may be operating alongside other noisy machinery or in a location that makes the building users vulperable.

Control Sector

Controls regarding building equipment acoustic performance emanate from four sources: (1) trade associations within the building equipment industry; (2) specialized technical societies also within that industry; (3) generalized professional technical societies (such as ASME, IEEE, etc.) serving all U.S. equipment industries; and (4) regulatory bodies (Federal, state and local).

The role of the trade associations is to set standards for rating the performance of equipment and to evolve guidelines for proper application of the equipment. Among the most active in dealing with noise control are:

- · Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Institute
- · Air Moving and Conditioning Association
- . Air Diffusion Council
 - Compressed Air and Gas Institute
 - American Gear Manufacturers Association
 - · National Fluid Power Association
 - Hydraulic Institute
 - National Electrical Manufacturers Association

In contrast, the technical societies both within the building equipment industry and outside, serving all industries, are dedlcated to developing measurement procedures and standardizing the

techniques for making measurements and reporting results. Most active in the measurement area are:

- American Society of Heating and Refrigerating and Air Conditioning Engineers
- Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
- · American Society of Mechanical Engineers
- American National Standards Institute
- · American Society for Testing Materials

Government agencies exercise control in three ways: (1) as regulatory agencies concerned with occupational health; (2) again as regulatory bodies concerned with community noise; and (3) as significant purchasers of equipment for use in public buildings or publically financed projects. The occupational health and noise control aspects of the Walsh-Healey Public Contracts Act has served as a pace-setter for establishing targets for the building equipment industry, although the federal act itself generally has little direct applicability to most of equipment currently sold.

As state and local governments extend their protection against occupational health hazards, they are tending to adopt the Walsh-Healey criteria. These enactments tend to put pressure on manufacturers and designers alike. The most active current issue arises from the establishment of a stringent specification (80 dB(A) at three feet) by the General Services Administration for machine noise in federal buildings.

Manufacturers are having difficulty meeting the G.S.A. standards through quieting at source, but G.S.A. replies that containment will solve the problem. In one instance, however, a substantial federal building project has not been able to attract qualified equipment bidders. Minimum property standards for FHA-assisted dwelling units have been in effect for a number of years. Some lattitude regarding enforcement appears to be permitted to the directors of regional offices.

In total, the criteria for acoustic performance of building equipment are still in a state of evolution. More detailed discussion of standards is contained elsewhere in this report. Measurement procedures are still under development, and the current acoustic performance of standard equipment is still not fully understood within the various sectors of the industry. A system for rating equipment by category is seriously needed to give the control sector, designer and manufacturer a common language. The divergence of the city codes that do exist (15 dB spread) needs to be eliminated to reduce customizing requirements on the equipment manufacturers.

Summary of Pressures For/Against Quieting

a. For

- Quieting deemed a "necessity", no longer a "luxury"; tenants now in second or third generation of air conditioned buildings, and attitude toward quiet has matured to this point of view.
- Architectural desire for openness of design, new lightweight structural systems and economy of nonrevenue bearing space places premium on quieting of source.
- Mechanical engineers increasingly aware of need for quieting, hence now specifying acoustical performance.
- Occupational health and safety pressures spreading, following example set by Walsh-Healey Act.

- · Codes at city level to enhance community quiet.
- Quieting generally becoming cost-beneficial in eyes of building owners.
 - b. Against
- Technical barriers make next step too expensive for single manufacturer to attempt by himself.
- Lightweight and small equipment desired to fit into small allocated spaces and remain tolerant of light foundations.
- Specific quieting goals are not clearly set, and codes and regulations are confusing and contradictory.
 - c. Trade-off Must be Examined
- Containment via enclosure vs quieting source which is more cost effective?

4.3.2 Home appliances

There are approximately 70 to 80 important manufacturers* of home appliances in the U.S. These companies offer 30 to 40 different products that are potentially significant noise sources. For the purposes of assessing the state of noise control within this industry, we rank-ordered specific appliances according to their relative importance with regard to noise abatement in and around the home.

- air conditioners,
- dishwashers,
- water closets,

*Defined by observing company names and appliance categories in various well-established consumer journals.

- other major appliances (clothes washers, dryers, refrigerators), and
- appliances whose noise output is interpreted as a measure of its efficiency (vacuum cleaners, blenders).

The industry is characterized by four major company/product mix categories:

 large, multidivisional companies producing a broad range of products;

3

- medium-size companies formerly specializing in a well-known product but now branching out to take advantage of a good name in the consumer market;
- small and medium-size firms who maintain a certain leadership character through continued specialization; and
- companies manufacturing "private label" appliances to be sold by others, usually by large retailers who contract for and control the product policies of a large volume of home appliances.

Our interview program was organized to cover leading manufacturers of a range of equipment as well as retailers and industry associations. We interviewed eleven manufacturers (or manufacturing divisions of large companies), two major retailers, and two industry associations. Twenty-nine products and ninety-six product/manufacturers were covered by this survey.

Our overview of the industry's attitude toward noise control shows it to be so direct a function of market place pressure that noise control technology often exceeds application. Appliance manufacturers tend to maintain sophisticated R&D and product engineering staffs that are capable of delivering more noise reduction than market strategy can justify. In fact, some companies have tried - unsuccessfully - to market quiet products, such as air conditioners, vacuum cleaners, blenders, and hair dryers; others have developed a number of quiet prototypes that were not put into production. · P

Consumer research shows low noise levels are not highly valued by most customers. Several companies keep systematic track of customer correspondence, while the industry itself maintains a Major Appliance Consumer Action Panel (MACAP) that acts as a clearinghouse for complaints. These records, all of which concern major appliances, show relatively little complaint about noise. For example, only 5% of the letters to MACAP in the first eight months of 1971 were about noise.

The objectives for quieting household appliances seem to vary with the market pressures on particular products. With this observation in mind, we organize our discussion of noise control efforts around the "problem" appliances identified above.

Air Conditioners

There is probably more market pressure to quiet air conditioners than to quiet any other household appliance. Since air conditioners emit noise both indoors and out, they frequently affect not only the purchaser and his family, but also neighbors and passersby. Both kinds of emissions generate pressures for

noise reduction. Pressure from neighbors takes the form of local noise ordinances that specify maximum sound-emission levels at a property line; this pressure is passed on to the manufacturer, as one company pointed out, by dealers or marketing men who are aware of the ordinances.

11

Dollar sales of room air conditioners grew almost eight-fold in the decade of the 1960's; during that time, indoor quiet emerged as a competitive dimension. Several manufacturers are currently engaged in competitive advertising campaigns to sell the quietness of their room air conditioners and are giving their products brand or model names that imply the quietness. Two large appliance manufacturers independently volunteered the opinion that quiet is becoming more important to purchasers every year. One of these indicated that the fact that air conditioning allows one to close the house against outside noise may soon become a sales argument in air conditioner merchandising. However, one leader in the current "quiet" race indicated that their top-line model is not selling well.

Most quieting effort for air conditioners takes place in modest engineering laboratories that are attached to the local production facilities. One such laboratory reports spending three man-years per year on air conditioner noise control; one man-year per year was a more frequently mentioned level of effort. While the product policy people generally reported that they were making maximal use of available quieting technology, the study project acousticians who initiated the interviews felt that current state-of-the-art technology was not being universally applied.

Two estimates we received indicate that quieting room air conditioners adds 10 to 15% to their price. There may also be an inherent trade-off between quietness and efficiency (since one way to reduce air noise is to decrease air velocity). Sometimes, quieting results in increasing the air conditioner's physical dimensions, thus detracting from appearance as well as from convenience and ease of installation. There may also be a trend toward model lines differentiated by noise output - i.e., an expensive quiet air conditioner and a cheaper noisier model. One manager pointer out that there are anti-trust constraints against organizing industry consensus on noise levels.

Dishwashers and Food Disposers

The mechanical differences between dishwashers and disposers do not alter the fact that noise control pressures are similar and that the manufacturers' approach to quieting is similar. Thus our survey indicates that these two appliances logically group together.

Quiet is a saleable characteristic of dishwashers and disposers, although the pressures for quieting are not so great as for air conditioners. While we are aware of no advertising campaigns built exclusively on quiet, it is advertised with the same prominence given to power and reliability.

Noise levels from dishwashers and disposers are not currently under public regulation, hence the incentive for quiet comes almost exclusively from the purchaser. This gives rise to marked differences between models; if one wishes, one can buy an inexpensive, noisy dishwasher or disposer. Reports from the industry indicate that landlords frequently do just that. Noise emissions from these two appliances are not so completely under the control of manufacturers as in the case of other appliances; the manner of installation greatly influences structureborne and plumbing-borne noises.

Dishwashers, however, present a promising example of industry's response to the purchaser's desire for lower noise levels. In a 1970 survey by the United States Steel Co., 48% of dishwasher owners had no complaints about their appliance, but of those who did, more complained about noise than about any other aspect of its operation. Both survey data and marketing "lore" indicate that the purchaser who has previously used these appliances puts a higher value on quietness than does the new user.

The costs of quieting were estimated by one dishwasher manufacturer to be 10% and by another to add \$1 to \$2 to manufacturing costs. A disposer manufacturer felt that quieting would add 12% to a product cost, whereas a retailer of disposers estimated 18%. Quieting these machines might deny their availability to those least able to pay.

「日本の」の日本の日本の日本

In the case of dishwashers, one manufacturer indicated the possibility of trade-offs between noise and maintenance costs, and reliability. Another indicated a trade-off between water velocity and quiet but expressed the opinion that there are no serious technical restraints to quieting dishwashers.

In the case of disposers, industry claims inherent problems with water and grinding noise (especially with the noise of grinding bones). Some noise is considered necessary to the user's safety, so he will know when the disposer is operating and when it has finished grinding.

So far, a number of sophisticated techniques have been applied to dishwashers: isolation, damping, and parts re-design. Manufacturers of both dishwashers and disposers have tried to improve the quality of installation by providing carefully drawn instructions and flexible fittings. One company has reduced noise on its top-line dishwasher from 82 to 76 dB(A) (at an unspecified distance) since 1967 and plans a further reduction in the next few years. Another manufacturer expressed only the desire to keep abreast of the competition; this company tests each machine for noise, rejecting something under 1%.

None of the manufacturers interviewed intends to give up his noisier "economy" lines; goals did not seem to be appreciably influenced by the prospects of noise regulation.

The companies interviewed claimed to have adequate acoustic test facilities, although the efforts devoted to testing and to development varied widely in quantity and quality.

Water Closets

If evidence from mail order catalogues is reliable, quietness in water closets is a marketable attribute. Two topline, "low profile" models prominently feature quiet in their advertising. One manufacturer indicated in an interview that placement of the height of the tank involves a trade-off between quiet and efficiency, and indicated that quiet designs may be less reliable, less efficient, and more expensive. Like dishwashers and food-waste disposers, economy-models are noisier than more expensive ones.

Currently, one company is trying to eliminate a water hiss that occurs when the tank is full.

Other Major Appliances

「「「「「「「「」」」を見ていた。」という

CONTRACTOR OF THE

Quieter clothes washers, clothes dryers, and refrigerators tend to be by-products of engineering originally undertaken with other objectives in mind. The classic case is a washing machine model that was incidentally quieted when two gears were removed from the power train to save cost. In the context of product improvement, noise is generally treated as a secondary design goal, although manufacturers are concerned that engineering changes may produce noisier products. For example, refrigerators are becoming larger and noisier as manufacturers seek to meet the demand for special options such as ice makers; a spinner-type washing machine produced higher noise levels when spinner speed was increased to 2000 rpm.

Two of four manufacturers interviewed make quiet models of washing machines that sell at a \$10 to \$20 premium; sales for both lines are disappointing. None of the other models of these companies is marketed on the basis of quiet nor do the mail-order catalogues feature quiet. The single exception is a spinner-type washer in which "quiet operation" appears in the small-type description. There is, then, relatively little evidence of pressure for quieting appliances of this type.

Yet, despite the weakness of market pressures, considerable quieting effort has gone into the design of these appliances, especially washing machines. One manufacturer mentioned six different quieting projects that have recently been completed or are underway. A refrigerator manufacturer mentioned an effort to avoid strange or unidentifiable noise. No specific efforts to quiet dryers were uncovered.

Vacuum Cleaners

The manufacturers of vacuum cleaners believe that the market pressures are for noisy machines. The three manufacturers and one large retailer interviewed are all convinced that customers use noise as the basis for judging a machine's power. For example, after concentrated technical effort, a manufacturer had significantly reduced the noise from a canister model without reducing its cleaning capability. Housewives who participated in a marketing trial wanted to know "if the machines were really cleaning".

Neither of the large "private label" retailers we consulted mention quiet as a design goal. In fact, in advertising a nap adjuster, one company writes "... just slide the bar across until you hear the right cleaning purr". One company that carefully analyzes its correspondence from customers finds virtually no noise complaints about vacuum cleaners or any of its other portable appliances.

A reasonable level of engineering effort has produced feasible solutions to vacuum cleaner noise problems; according to all interviewed, however, these solutions are not being applied to products that are sold, because vacuum cleaner manufacturers and retailers do not sense a demand for quieter products. In fact, the sale of upright cleaners, whose beaters make them noisier, is growing at the expense of the sale of canister models. Apparently, the beater action of upright cleaners can better handle the new deep-pile weaves that make modern carpets harder to clean. There are technological limits to the quieting of upright vacuum cleaners, because of the interaction between the beater and the carpet, but the noise levels of production models seems to be determined by customer usage demand rather than by technological limitations.

The company that developed the quiet canister cleaner employs a physicist who works full-time on noise-control studies. The company calls in noise consultants about four times a year and samples its customers at six-month and two-year intervals. They have given considerable attention to the problem of beater noise and estimate that solutions that would not reduce a machine's efficiency would add 50% to its price.

Another large company made a study ten years ago (at a cost of about \$30,000) in which they developed ways of reducing vacuum cleaner noise in middle and high frequencies by about 10 dB(A). They have just contracted for a study of their competitors' canister machines and of the effect of using alternate motors in their own machines. Although they have available technical staff and laboratory facilities in-house, they have never applied the results of their studies to the products they market because of customer attitude toward noise.

Small Appliances

ł

Ī

During the interviews incidental information was gathered from five different companies concerning eleven small appliances: blenders, can openers, coffee mills, electric knives, fans, hair dryers, ice crushers, knife sharpeners, mixers, oral lavages, and electric tooth brushes. Manufacturers feel that there is public pressure for these appliances to sound as though they are "really doing their jobs". One manufacturer offered the generalization that, in the small appliance field, the quality of the sound is more important than the quantity. An appliance must sound "right". Some must sound powerful, some reliable, and none as though they are malfunctioning or undergoing excessive wear. This manufacturer expressed the belief that an accurate interpretation of the customers' desires in these areas is a condition for remaining in business.

This market pressure leads to diverse noise-control objectives, both among companies and between product lines produced by a single company. Customer complaints were reported about the noise from fans and hair dayers, and one marketing executive was quoted as believing that quiet is a saleable aspect of mixers. One company which does not manufacture the ice crusher that is sold under its label put a fairly high value on quietness in selecting the model it sells. Yet, none of these small appliances was described as quiet in either of the two mail-order catalogues that we examined. Blenders and electric can openers were specifically described by the managers inverviewed as being appropriately noisy. A company which we did not interview was cited as having quieted a blender; in so doing, they slowed it down so that it became less efficient. At least one laboratory is seeking entirely new ways of comminuting foods that could be both quieter and cheaper than blenders. Another is designing a screw-type crushing tool that will substitute a growling sound for the raucous sound of the chipper that current ice crushers employ.

There is also a search for fan blade configurations that will eliminate certain predominant frequencies and produce a more pleasing sound. In addition to room fans, this experimentation includes hair dryers, where quieter designs for air passages are also being sought.

Rubber feet have been added to electric coffee mills to reduce vibration noise, but shielding is not being used because of its adverse effects on costs, size, and aesthetic design. Plastic beaters for mixers promise to reduce both noise and costs. Many of these appliances are powered by universal-type motors, which are inexpensive, powerful for their size, but noisy. The size-power ratio considered important in such appliances as hand mixers, electric knives, can openers, and motorin-the-bonnet hair dryers. Conventional hair dryers also embody a trade-off between speed and quiet; one hair dryer model that was marketed as "quiet" took 30 to 75 minutes longer to dry hair than faster, noisier models.

Speed or the potential power that speed permits was cited as important to electric knives, can openers, and blenders. In the case of blenders, one engineer argued that, if they were slowed down, the intensity of the noise would simply be traded for noise duration with no lessening of resulting impact. There is also reported to be a trade-off for electric tooth brushes between noise and cleansing effectiveness.

Cases of limitations on quieting were pointed out for knife sharpeners where there is grinder-blade interaction, as well as for blenders where rotating knives are essential and a glass casing is necessary if the housewife is to monitor the process visually. In the case of blenders, there is hesitation to experiment with consumer preferences since the already intense domestic competition is being raised by the entrance of Japanese products into the market.

Small appliance manufacturers make frequent use of subjective noise judgements in their developmental work. Their product laboratories tend to be less sophisticated than those for major appliances, although many have access to central acoustical laboratories of great sophistication. One small appliance manufacturer tests new products in his employees' homes. If employees object to the noise the new model makes

they are asked if they would be willing to pay for a quieter product. The general result of this approach is to make this manufacturer pessimistic about the economic pay-off from quieter products.

Although specific noise goals are hard to identify in the appliance industry and although some manufacturers seem discouraged with the return on their efforts to date, all those interviewed plan to persist in quieting efforts. Technological limits have not yet been reached. One manufacturer believes that the earlier competition which emphasized compactness has now been replaced with an emphasis on quiet. Accordingly, industry generally plans to hold the size of future models constant and to concentrate on producing quieter models, while presumably keeping prices within competitive limits.

5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This report has presented a broad range of facets concerning the noise characteristics of construction, appliances, and building equipment, the influence of this noise on our lives, and the nature of the industries producing and using this machinery. In this section, we summarize our findings and recommend what we believe to be a balanced noise abatement program that may be pursued by EPA.

5.1 Conclusions

-i

1Ê

计计算机 化合物合金

One of the most striking factors to emerge from this study is the monumental complexity of the physical, social, and industrial system that we have attempted to understand. There is a wide spectrum of noise-producing machinery types utilized for many different purposes in a nearly endless number of situations. This heterogeneity makes a characterization of even the average properties of the sources and transmission paths difficult at best. Of course, nobody is exposed to average conditions but rather to some part of a multi-variable distribution of circumstances, making some notion of the range of source/path/receiver situation desirable. Furthermore, human response to noise varies widely among individuals and depends not only on the readily measurable aspects of sound such as level and spectrum, but also on such factors as attitudes, predispositions, the information content of the sound, and concurrent nonauditory stimuli. The industrial situation is equally complex, the judgement of industrial leaders and their concommitant directives being influenced by marketplace and legislative demands, as well as by their own personal attitudes. In presenting what we feel are the salient features of this complex system, we claim to have observed no more than the top of the iceberg - and even that at some distance.

.163

5.1.1 Sources

Despite the tremendous range of equipment, the noise-producing mechanisms are often similar and may be identified as part of a much smaller class. The principal source of noise in many types of construction equipment, for example, is the diesel engine. Exhaust noise is most readily identifiable with structural sound radiation and inlet noise is also of importance. Additionally, the hydraulics, fans, and transmissions of construction equipment generate loud and identifiable noise levels. Such heavy equipment often creates levels in excess of 90 dB(A) at 50 ft. Drilling and cutting machinery are also extremely noisy as are impact tools such as riveters, pavement breakers, certain powered wrenches, and most pile drivers. Noise from jack hammers and rock drills often lies between 80 and 100 dB(A) at 50 ft; pile driver noise can exceed 100 dB(A). Almost invariably, construction equipment, regardless of its size, is noisy.

In evaluating the control technology of construction noise, one finds that approximately 10 dB(A) of noise reduction are generally achievable using state-of-the-art techniques; 20 dB(A) could no doubt be achieved with a certain level of technology development. Of course, these are average values. For some equipment, such as that sold without exhaust mufflers, greater noise reduction would probably be easily achieved; for others, such as riveters, considerable effort would be required to meet these objectives.

The noise levels of home appliances span a much broader range than those of construction equipment. Certain appliances such as food freezers or refrigerators are rather quiet at 30 to 40 dB(A), measured at 3 ft; other items such as food blenders can be as noisy as 80 to 90 dB(A) depending on the type, speed,

and food being processed. Garbage disposers may even exceed 90 dB(A). By and large, the noisiest classes of home equipment are powered garden and shop tools. Noise from electric lawn mowers, hedge trimmers, and grass edgers all measured between 80 and 90 dB(A). Some shop tools generated nearly 100 dB(A).

Noise from appliances is attributable to electric motors and cooling fans, plus the components being driven by the motors. For refrigeration equipment, these components are compressors and blowers; for food-waste disposers, they are grinders; for shop tools they are typically cutting or grinding elements, often connected to the motor by roise-producing gears. As with construction equipment, noise reduction levels of 10 dB(A) are generally achievable with state-of-the-art techniques; 20 dB(A) often requires either extensive application of existing techniques or the development of new technology to obtain the same results at less cost.

Building equipment probably has as large a range of noisemaking devices and noise levels as construction and appliances combined. Diesel engines, gas turbines, and large electric generators or motors are all utilized, especially in so-called "total energy systems" which supply both electric power and temperature control for buildings. Refrigeration and heating equipment, blowers, diffusers, and fluorescent light transformers all generate noise. Fortunately, the noisiest sources of building equipment are usually remotely located, typically in mechanical equipment rooms. Isolating people from this noise is mainly done through architectural treatment.

5.1.2 Impact

We have tried to measure the impact of noise on people in terms of the levels to which they are exposed, the duration, and the number of people. In a one year period approximately 30 million Americans will find themselves living or working near a construction site. The noise from this site will be sufficiently high to interfere with their conversation most of the day. Three million workers with night shifts and 2.5 million children under four who may require maps live near these sites. Many will either find it more difficult to fall asleep or be awakened during their sleep because of construction noise. On the average, a metropolitanarea resident or worker passes a construction site every other day. Pedestrians can be exposed to noise levels in excess of 90 dB(A). Automobile drivers and passengers will often close their windows, thereby reducing the exposure to approximately 80 dB(A). Although many operators of heavy construction equipment are losing their hearing because of noise [29], hearing damage to persons in the environ's of construction sites does not appear to be a substantial problem. Most people residing or working in buildings neighboring construction sites are exposed to less than 70 dB(A) most of the time. Some pedestrians are exposed to levels that could contribute to hearing loss particularly if these people are exposed to high noise levels during other times of the day.

One of the most significant aspects of construction noise is that, in any year, 15% of the population are exposed roughly eight hours a day, five days a week for many weeks or months. They have no control over the noise nor do they have much respite from it. The argument that construction is temporary has little appeal to people living near a several year project or one series of projects after another located all around them - after all, they argue, life itself is temporary.

Appliances have an impact on people in a rather different way. Most appliances affect only the people using them and only for a relatively brief time while they are in operation. For example, a food blender may generate 80 dB(A), but only for 30 seconds, at the end of which the user has a desired product. This leads to quite different attitudes toward appliances vis à vis construction equipment as bothersome noise sources. Of course, not all appliances affect only the user and his family. Appliances which affect neighbors are typically those which are built in to the home structure or plumbing and those which are used outside. Thus, food-waste disposers, dishwashers, water valves, and toilets are found to annoy and sometimes interfere with the sleep of people in multifamily dwellings. Powered garden tools such as lawn mowers, hedge clippers, and edge trimmers as well as power tools used outdoors (e.g., circular saws, drills, sanders) also generate sufficiently high noise levels to awaken or annoy neighbors.

の時間に見ていたのであるというない。日本ののように

One of the most striking aspect of appliances is their number. Roughly one billion appliances now are used in homes throughout the U.S. Virtually everyone owns at least some; e.g., 99.8% of homes are equipped with a refrigerator, over 90% have vacuum cleaners. By and large, people in the upper socio-economic stratum have more appliances. However, the generally increasing affluence of the nation coupled with the relatively constant price of appliances over the past 15 years (despite the inflationary growth of most other consumer items) has stimulated the profusion of appliances into homes at every economic level. This large number of appliances and their year-round use (with certain obvious exceptions) has made the exposure to appliance noise very large indeed. In fact, appliances account for more person-hours of speech interference, sleep interruption, and hearing damage than construction.

167

However, the impact in terms of annoyance is probably not so great, owing in large part to the controllability of many appliance operation times. For example, one does not have to run the dishwasher while listening to T.V., but it is difficult to ask the pile driver operator outside to cease work until a program of interest is over.

5.1.3 Industry programs

Industry activities in product quieting can best be understood by first considering the pressures they perceive. Demand for quiet appliances reaches manufacturers directly from the purchasers in the marketplace. The people who are exposed to noise, for the most part, are also those who purchase the appliance, or at least influence its selection. Demand for quiet construction equipment is also made by people living or working near construction sites. They generally have no economic influence on the building contractor or equipment manufacturer. Hence, their demands have largely gone unheeded and have been redirected through legislative bodies. A few successes in this arena have begun to create a marketplace demand for quiet equipment by contractors who "see the handwriting on the wall" and are willing to pay something of a premium for equipment that will not be illegal to operate in a few years when anticipated widerranging legislative controls are enacted.

The response to pressure for quiet has varied within and across the appliance and construction industries. Some appliance manufacturers have made a credible effort to develop capabilities to deal with noise-control problems and to design appropriate noise-control measures into their products. This has been especially true in the major appliance industry where air conditioners

and, more recently, dish-washers and food-waste disposers are being treated. As one might expect, the objective of disposer treatment is to reduce noise within the kitchen containing the unit. We know of no disposer designed to reduce transmission of noise through plumbing and into adjacent apartments. The disposers that incorporate airborne sound suppression are topof-the-line items designed for use by the purchaser. Bottomof-the-line disposers often have no noise treatment whatsoever and are usually installed in multifamily dwellings. Generally speaking, when noise control is introduced in appliances, it is in top-of-the-line items. There, it serves partly as an added luxury and partly as a test of market acceptability. If successful, it will often be introduced in other line items; if unsuccessful (for whatever reason) the notion will often develop and persist that consumers simply do not care about noise.

The construction equipment industry also shows a spectrum of levels of response to pressure for product quieting. A very few companies have foreseen the demand for quiet equipment and have begun a line of products that are significantly quieter than competitive models. Some companies have conducted experimental noise control projects, often with only a modicum of success. Several companies appear to have given noise-control very little effort (e.g., some heavy construction equipment does not even use exhaust mufflers for diesel engines). On the whole, noise has only begun to become a serious factor in the construction industry, which lacks much of the expertise required to deal successfully with it.

「おける」「おける」、「おける」」、
5.2 Recommendations

Most of the work presented in this report is of the nature of background material that must be applied to the problem of noise reduction to be of real value. Our recommendations therefore relate to the application of this information and the steps that we feel ought to proceed from it.

There appear to be two primary means by which the EPA can influence industry to bring about noise control. The first is to regulate the maximum allowable noise levels that can be produced by new equipment. The second is by instituting a mechanism for disseminating information to the consumer: namely, requiring the labeling of noisy products. In situations where the party exposed to noise is not the purchaser of the noisy equipment and is not in a position to influence the noise level or operation of the equipment, it appears that noise standards must be generated and applied to bring about noise reduction. This is largely the case in the construction industry, where the principal recourse to construction noise control by the community has been through local legislation. On the other hand, when the purchaser is, for all practical purposes, the only party affected by a noisy source and that source is not likely to contribute seriously to hearing damage, then standards appear to constrain unnecessarily one's freedom of choice. Rather it would seem appropriate to ensure that the purchaser is informed of the levels to which he will be exposed, but that he be allowed the freedom to weigh noise against other factors (e.g., price, size, durability) in reaching a decision among alternative products.

Setting standards and labeling requirements is no mean task. There are technical issues that must be resolved involving the conditions under which noise is to be measured. For example,

the type of sink in which a garbage disposer is installed and the character of food waste being disposed of, must be carefully specified to obtain meaningful and uniform results. Somewhat more difficult is the task of determining the maximum allowable levels for different kinds of equipment. In a sense, these levels invariably represent a compromise between desired values and values that are economically acceptable. This concept may be illustrated qualitatively by Fig. 27 in which we plot cost vs noise reduction. Cost is used to include capital, operation, and maintenance expenditures owing to the application of noise control treatment and whatever performance degradation might occur because of such treatment. Automobile mufflers are a good example; they increase the price of an automobile, often require replacement during the life of an automobile, and slightly degrade engine performance. Results achievable by application of state-of-the-art noise-control techniques are represented by an exponentially increasing curve. The first few dB of noise reduction are typically achieved at low cost; costs gain substantially as greater levels of quieting are sought. Also shown in the Fig. 27 is a cost vs noise reduction curve that might be achievable subsequent to noise-control research and development. In fact, it can probably be said that the sole objective of R&D should be to lower the state-of-the-art curve. The third curve in Fig. 27 shows a relation between cost and noise reduction deemed acceptable by the decision-makers. The curve is concave downward illustrating the notion that as a machine is made quieter, each increment of noise reduction is worth less and less. The intersection of the state-of-the-art curve with the acceptable cost vs noise reduction curve determines the noise reduction one is willing to specify. If this level of reduction is inadequate,

4

Contraction of the second second



it is necessary to conduct R&D to achieve a lower state-of-theart curve and increase the level of noise reduction that can be justified economically.

Each party has its own view of the level of the acceptable cost vs noise reduction curve. For equipment manufacturers who find little marketplace demand for quiet products, the curve is low. People living or working near noisy equipment would naturally draw the curve at a higher level, especially if they did not have to bear a significant part of the cost for quieting the machinery. One of the problems that EPA will have to face is to develop an acceptability curve that is, in some sense, fair to all parties. Although it is difficult, if not impossible, to develop such curves quantitatively, it will be necessary for a decision maker to be aware of the pertinent relations between cost and noise reduction and to account for them in selecting the levels to be achieved. To assist in this process, we recommend here studies of the technology and economics of noise abatement, the economic impact of noise control, the type of improved noise criteria that ought to be developed, and socialindicator studies to measure the attitudes of the public to noise and noise control. First, let us consider which equipment ought to be regulated by standards and which by labeling.

5.2.1 Standards and labeling

ار گستخنده بستگیری روی

We recommend that noise sources having a significant impact on parties who derive little direct benefit from the source ought to be controlled by the establishment of maximum allowable noise levels. This would include most construction equipment, construction sites, and certain types of appliances. Among the items of construction equipment requiring standards are all machinery powered by internal combustion engines as well as tools

utilizing impact or cutting mechanisms, such as drills, pavement breakers, and saws. Construction site noise levels ought to be regulated to ensure that the contractor deploy and utilize his machinery in a way that minimizes community noise exposure. Typical appliances requiring regulation are electric garden tools (e.g., lawn mowers, hedge clippers, edge trimmers), food-waste disposers, dishwashers, air conditioners, and shop tools. Because the noise of hazardous tools also serves to inform the user of their operation, minimum as well as maximum levels out to be set.

For standards to be applied in a way that may reasonably be met by industry and yet are sufficient to have an impact, we recommend the establishment of a three-phase program. A decreasing sequence of levels would be established and would go into effect approximately, one, four, and seven years subsequent to the time at which the levels are publicly announced.

One Year

The purpose of the first phase is to ensure that highly effective off-the-shelf noise control equipment is utilized on all new machinery. Thus, all machinery powered by internal combustion engines would be required to be equipped with high-quality mufflers, for example. (This contrasts with the current situation in which some construction equipment is advertised and sold without any muffling whatsoever.) One year appears adequate for manufacturers to order, receive, and install such equipment.

Four Years

The second phase would become effective approximately four years after announcement of levels. These levels would be selected to ensure that state-of-the-art noise control techniques are incorporated in equipment. To achieve these levels, the manufacturer might have to use sound-absorptive engine enclosures, for example. Appliances might have to incorporate vibration isolators for all motors and pumps. Since the type of treatment envisioned here requires minor changes to equipment, four years appears adequate for manufacturers to design noise treatment and retool selected items of their production lines.

Seven Years

ななどないのではないです。そのないです。これできたのではないです。

The levels to become effective after a period of seven years should largely represent state-of-the-art advances and should have a significant impact on the level generated by the noise source. Twenty dB(A) of noise reduction for the most offensive construction equipment and appliances would seem reasonable. Seven years allows sufficient time for the research and development needed for state-of-the-art advances and the incorporation of the fruits of this work in production items.

We also recommend labeling of appliances generating significant noise levels affecting primarily the user. Included in a list of items to be labeled are all items controlled by standards, as well as shop tools, vacuum cleaners, food blenders, fans, and hair dryers. Our rationale for labeling rather than standard setting is that a person should be informed of the noise to which he will expose himself and then be free to consider noise as but one of a number of factors accounting for his selection of a particular brand. Noise-control standards would no doubt raise appliance prices, unnecessarily restricting the consumer's range of choice.

5.2.2 Technology evaluation, demonstration, and development

We recommend the expenditure of appropriate levels of effort to evaluate, demonstrate, and develop technology in support of the establishment of standards. These studies are as follows:

Labeling

To make labeling meaningful, a consistent set of test procedures should be developed for each type of appliance or item of building equipment. This is especially important for appliances whose noise characteristics depend heavily on the installation. Prominent among these are food-waste disposers, dishwashers, plumbing fixtures, and vacuum cleaners (which may rest on a rug or a hard floor).

Standards - Phase I

The first recommended phase of standard setting establishes noise levels that can be met if highly effective off-the-shelf noise control devices are used on all equipment. Prior to the establishment of such standards, a program to measure the noise generated by selected machinery samples targeted for incorporation of such devices would seem appropriate.

Standards - Phase II

The second phase of standards would specify levels requiring the application of noise-control treatment. We recommend that EPA conduct noise-control demonstration projects on selected items for three reasons. First, achievable levels of noise reduction can be accurately evaluated, and accordingly specified, only by means of such programs. Without actually implementing noisereduction techniques there would probably be an unacceptable

level of uncertainty associated with predictions. Furthermore, practical implementation problems are often not uncovered until treatment is actually put into practice. Second, such demonstration of results achievable by means of state-of-the-art noise treatment would put to rest any objections raised by the affected industry concerning the technological feasibility of achieving specified levels. Finally, the technical information generated by a demonstration program would be valuable across the affected industry, especially to small companies who often lack the requisite technical capability in noise control.

Standards - Phase III

The third recommended phase of standards is designed to have a significant impact on noise levels and will probably be achievable only through state-of-the-art advances in noise-control technology. To ensure that the state-of-the-art is appropriately advanced in sufficient time for implementation in new machinery we recommend the immediate commencement of R&D programs dealing with the following important aspects of construction and appliance noise (in approximate order of priority):

- · diesel engines
- mufflers

などのためにはないないのないでのより、「ない」とないないないないないです。

122.002

- hydraulic systems
- cooling systems

- impact and cutting tools
- other power plants: gas turbines (for nonaircraft use) electric motors

- transmissions (gears)
- water valves

5.3 Economic Impact Studies

Determining the optimum balance between public's desire for quiet and the distributed costs required to achieve it by means of rigorous systems analysis effort would require a large-scale simulation of the economics of the construction industry and its place in the U.S. economy. Such a study is not feasible if usable results are required in a short time or if expenditure of funds is limited. It is possible, however, to make some choices as to what to quiet and how to quiet it, by doing some fairly unsophisticated investigation of how the quieting costs get distributed through the industry and the economy. We recommend treatment of:

- The impact of noise on various segments of the population. (This has largely been performed under the existing EPA contract and needs but a little expansion.)
- Estimated costs of quieting selected pieces of equipment as a function of degree of quieting. (This would be an orderof-magnitude estimate. Data can be obtained from price information on existing mufflers, heavy casings, absorptive materials, etc., as well as a study of price differentials between existing quieted and unquieted machinery - not just construction equipment. Costs of nonhardware guiding techniques, such as scheduling site operations to avoid using many prices of equipment at once, would be estimated by constructing typical scenarios and consulting with industry representatives to determine increases in construction cost increases (or decreases). Allowance should be made for uses

in which a change in equipment design or operation results in greater productivity, reliability, etc. The effect of such an occurrence could be a net *negative* quieting cost.)

- The distribution of increased equipment cost among producers, purchasers and the purchaser's customers. (Part of the cost will be absorbed by each, depending on the demand elasticity of the commodity. This information exists in published studies of the economics of the construction industry.)
- Allocation of increased equipment costs/rentals among various types of construction. (The resulting increase in construction costs are a strong function of what is being built. Equipment rental typically makes up 20% of the cost of civil works constructions, 10% of the cost of highways, but only 2% in the case of buildings.)

The above data would be used to compute the economic effect of quieting equipment on the public. The outputs would be:

何のに有限がなりの時代でいた。ための教育の時代を見てき

時人間を留けたけのなどのないないとうとす。そうかったいのです。

the desire a state of the second state of the

- The expected increase in costs and rentals of housing, offices, industrial space, etc., as a function of the degree and method of site quieting. Also of interest is the degree of intersection of the sets of: (1) surrounding inhabitants, who get the benefits of quiet sites, and (2) building users, who pay the cost, or part of it.
- Expected increase in state, municipal, and federal taxes as a result of increased cost of public works construction, etc.

The net result of the study would be recommendations for an orderly construction quieting program based on the information developed above. The criteria by which specific techniques or regulations would be judged are:

- Cost-effectiveness (the degree of quieting achieved per dollar expended).
- Cost-benefits (the reduction in community noise exposure as a function of quieting cost).
- Equitability (the degree to which the beneficiaries of a quieting program bear the expense of that program).

5.4 A Program of Public Support Development

Our contact with managers of construction equipment and home appliance manufacturing companies has convinced us that their perspective on and attitudes toward noise control programs will strongly influence the efforts they make to quiet their products. This is even more true of the values they hold regarding the legitimacy and worth of quiet environments. Indeed, we regard the public support of noise abatement efforts as a crucial variable in the success of these efforts.

We would, therefore, recommend a continuous program to diagnose and develop public support for noise abatement. Such a program would embrace five activities:

Exploration of Programs in Other Areas

We visualize this as an inquiry both into the theory of public opinion, attitude change, and shifts in basic values and into the actual techniques of public support development that have been employed in other contexts.

A Continuous Inventory of Opinion-Leader Attitudes

This would be a program of interviews with opinion leaders who are dealing with noise abatement. It would include leaders

in government, business, relevant professions, and consumer- and ecology-advocate groups.

A Continuous Inventory of Public Awareness, Attitudes, and Values

These should be measured on a well-designed material sample on a continuous basis so that trends over time could be assessed concerning public knowledge, attitudes, and values.

Program Development

the An an official states of the A program, based on information obtained from the three activities above, should be developed (1) to optimize the kind and degree of regulation which can be supported by the public opinion that exists, (2) to prescribe a public information program that will improve the quality of public opinion, and (3) to identify profitable areas for demonstration programs.

The Development and Administration of Pilot Programs of Noise Abatement

These pilot programs should test the relation of regulation to various levels of public support in the same sense that pilot programs that test innovative technological prototypes are developed.

We should like to say a word regarding the usefulness and feasibility of the continuous inventories of leader opinion and public opinion - activities 2 and 3 above.

Field research in the behavioral sciences has now reached the point that useful social indicators can often be developed if their development is undertaken on a pragmatic basis. We do

not visualize that these survey activities will be conducted at the level of public-opinion polls. Again, the behavioral sciences have matured to the point that much more useful kinds of information can be gathered. We know from previous noise surveys that socio-economic status and attitudes toward noise makers influence noise annovance and noise complaints. A recent study of motor vehicle noise that we have conducted indicates that the necessity of the noise, and the degree to which one perceives the noise as an intrusion, influences the level of annoyance. The survey efforts proposed would tap values that would assist in the formulation of noise criteria. Are people willing to put up with "bearable" levels of noise or do they now demand reduction to "comfortable" levels? Of greatest importance may be attitudes toward the regulating process itself. By now it is wellestablished in social psychology that basic orientations towards the sources of influence alter behavior. With regard to the product manufacturer who promises to become an object of regulation, theory would predict that one's enforcement problems would be quite different if the manufacturers complied to regulation because of fear, because compliance was expected by his reference groups, or because his own values induced compliance. These psychological orientations can be measured through interviews.

5.5 Social Impact

The following recommendations are made to evaluate the impact of noise not only from the sources under consideration in the current report but also from other sources.

1. The most fundamental action that can be taken to further the assessment of noise impact is to initiate research leading

to development of an absolute scale of annoyance for all noise exposure. The first stage of such a research program would obviously be a planning effort to structure the task and prepare detailed plans for its execution.

The need for such research is immediate. Existing methods for estimating annoyance are relative rather than absolute, limited in scope and application, not widely accepted, and of dubious utility. The intended research would entail simultaneous measurement of both complaint behavior and the offending acoustic signals producing complaints, at the time of annoyance. A continuous survey of residential noise annoyance over a considerable period of time is needed, as are surveys of noise annoyance in other environments. Until a well-founded research program of this sort is undertaken, one must continue to rely upon personal experience or the distortions of the popular press for estimates of the true magnitude of the annoyance problem.

自然当じば毎日

化基本共同合金 建筑的复数形式 电分词分子因数

の方法のないでもないないとなったのでない。

Rene of the Internet

2. Since speech interference proved to be such a widespread consequence of exposure to the noise sources considered in this report, research should be conducted to determine how accurately speech interference predictions made on the basis of laboratory data may be extended to real-life situations. Almost all current knowledge of speech interference effects has been produced by studies employing steady-state noise as the interfering signal. No research has been conducted on potentially crucial effects of temporal parameters of noise distributions (including frequency, duration, and periodicity of interference) on verbal communication. Further, little if anything is known of the annoyance value of speech interference. Trade-offs governing the relative annoyance of frequent but short interruptions vs infrequent but long interruptions of verbal communication have not been investigated. It therefore remains impossible to predict whether people would

suffer more speech interference from one type of appliance than another; whether redesign of machinery for longer duration but lower level noise output would be helpful; whether scheduling changes in the operation of construction machinery would reduce speech interference; and so forth.

3. Noise education programs should be designed to provide the public with the information needed to make decisions about the desirability of noise exposure. A noise-conscious public can exercise a modicum of control over its noise exposure through its purchasing power and its demands for noise control legislation. Consideration should be given to preparation of public information pamphlets, recordings, or other means of increasing public awareness of noise exposure.

REFERENCES

3

1

- 1. Schultz, T.J., "Community Noise Ratings: A Review," Supplement No. 1, Applied Acoustics, 1971.
- 2. Robinson, D.W., "The Concept of Noise Pollution Level," National Physics Laboratory Aero Report AC 38, March 1969.
- Schultz, T.J., "Technical Background for Noise Abatement in HUD's Operating Programs," BBN Report No. 2005, September 1970.
- 4. Beranek, L.L., *Noise and Vibration Control*, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York (1971).
- 5. "The Auditory Environment in the Home," a report by the Environmental Design Department, University of Wisconsin for Koss Electronics, Inc., Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
- 6. Mikeska, E.E., "Noise in the Modern Home," Noise Control, May 1958, p. 40.
- 7. BBN data measured in 1971.
- 8. Mikeska, E.E., "Noise Levels in Homes," *Noise Control*, May 1957, pp. 11-14.
- 9. "Field Study of Residential Acoustics: Acoustical Performance of Apartments and Occupants' Responses," NAHB Research Foundation, Inc., Rockville, Maryland, 1967.
- Beranek, L.L., Noise Reduction, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York (1960).
- "Noise Study of a Domestic Dishwasher," BBN Rept. No. 979, March 1963.
- 12. "Water Closet Noise Studies," BBN Rept. No. 1402, Dec. 1968.
- 13. Cohen et al, Sociocusis-Hearing Loss from Non-Occupational Noise Exposure," Sound and Vibration, November 1970, pp. 12-20.
- 14. Kryter, K., "Hazardous Exposure to Intermittent and Steady-State Noise," Report of Working Group 46 NAS-NSC Committee on Hearing and Bioacoustics, January 1965.

REFERENCES (Continued)

- 15. Kryter, K., The Effects of Noise on Man (Academic Press, N.Y., 1970).
- 16. Miller, J., personal communication, 1971.
- 17. Webster, J.C., "SIL Past, Present and Future," Sound and Vibration 3(8):22-26, August 1969.
- Beranek, L.L., "Criteria for Office Quieting Based on Questionnaire Rating Studies," J. Acoust. Soc. Amer., 28, Sept. 1956, pp. 833-852.
- 19. "Urban Traffic Noise: Status of Research and Legislation in Different Countries," Draft Report of the Consultative Group on Transportation Research, DAS/CSI/68.47 Revised; Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development, Paris, France, 4 March 1969.
- Lang, J., and Jansen, G., "Report on the Environmental Health Aspects of Noise Research and Noise Control," United Nations, World Health Organization, May 1967.
- Schleber, J.P., "Problemes Acoustiques du Confort de Nuit", (Acoustical Problems Concerning Nighttime Comfort), Cahiers du Centre Scientifique et Technique du Batiment, No. 100; Cahier 869, June 1969, Paris; p. 36.
- 22. Metz, B., "Étude Analytique en Laboratoire de l'Influence du Bruit sur le Sommeil," (Analytical Laboratory Study of the Influence of Noise on Sleep), No. 63 FR 138, University of Strasbourg, 1968.
- 23. Schieber, J.P., "Contributions des Études de la Physiologie au Probleme de la Determination des Zones de Confort Acoustique au Cours de Sommeil," (Contributions of Physiological Studies to the Problem of Determining Areas of Acoustic Comfort during Sleep), presented at a Colloquium on the Definition of Human Requirements with Regard to Noise, 18 & 19 November 1968, Paris; published in Revue d'Acoustique 3(10): 104-112 (1970).
- 24. Hildebrand, J., "Noise Pollution: An Introduction to the Problem and an Outline for Future Legal Research," *Columbia* Law Review 70, April 1970.

REFERENCES (Continued)

and a second second

1205

- Kryter, K., "Laboratory Tests of Physiological-Psychological Reactions to Sonic Booms," J. Acoust. Soc. Amer., 39(5) 1966.
- 26. Noise: Final Report, Committee on the Problem of Noise, Sir Alan Wilson, Chairman, Her Majesty's Stationery Office, London, July 1963.
- 27. Geber, W., Anderson, T., Van Dyne, B., and Vermillion, S., "Physiologic Responses of the Albino Rat to Chronic Noise Stress," Arch. Environ. Health, 12:751, 1966.
- Dougherty, J., in "Human Response to Sonic Booms: A Research Program Plan," FAA Report No. 70-2, 1970 (BBN Report No. 1831).
- 29. Woodhead, M.M., "Effect of Brief Loud Noise on Decision Making," J. Acoust. Soc. Amer., 31(10):1329-1331, 1959.
- 30. Corcoran, D., "Noise and Loss of Sleep," *Quarterly J. Exp. Psych.* (14) 1962.
- 31. Bureau of the Budget, Standard Metropolitan Statistical Areas, 1967.
- 32. Bureau of the Census, Statistical Abstract of the United States, 1970.
- 33. Business and Defense Services Administration, Construction Review, April 1971.
- 34. Highway Statistics/1969, U.S. Dept. of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Washington, D.C., Table OMB, p. 167.
- 35. Bureau of the Census, U.S. Census of Population, 1, 1960.
- 36. Wiener, F.M., Malme, C.I., and Gogos, C.M., "Sound Propagation in Urban Areas," J. Acoust. Soc. Amer., 37, 1965.
- 37. Noise in Urban and Suburban Areas: Results of Field Studies, BBN Report 1395, 1967.

REFERENCES (Continued)

- 38. Department of Agriculture information based on studies of home activities (a long-term interest, which is now being continued under the Agriculture Research Service Division of the Department of Agriculture).
- 39. New York State College of Human Ecology, Cornell University (both published and unpublished data gathered as part of a 1296-household survey of Syracuse, New York).

APPENDIX A - DETAILED SOURCE CHARACTERIZATION

A.1 Construction Equipment

Of the considerable body of data on the noise of construction equipment, most pertains to the operator position; the available data on noise radiated by this equipment to its surroundings is very limited. The data presented in Fig. 1 (main text) and in this appendix were obtained from

- The open literature [1-4].
- Reports, including those submitted by various manufacturers at the EPA hearings on construction equipment held in Atlanta, Georgia, July 8 and 9, 1971.
- Field measurements conducted for this project at a number of construction sites in the vicinity of Boston.*

A.1.1 Noise spectra

L'and the second second

Much of the equipment used at construction sites is powered by diesel engines, which generally constitute the predominant noise sources. Figure A.1 shows the envelope of the 1/3-octave band spectra of noise from 23 different items of diesel-powered construction equipment, rated from 45 to 770 hp and operating at between 1100 and 2700 rpm, at a variety of conditions (i.e., with various degrees of loading, ranging from none to heavy). These spectra were obtained at various locations around the equipment items, which also varied in the degree of exhaust muffling present.

^{*}These measurements were made with a 1-in. Bruel and Kjaer type 4131 condenser microphone, coupled to a Bruel and Kjaer type 2203 sound level meter. The signals were recorded on a Kudelski Nagra type III tape recorder, and later analyzed in the laboratory by means of a General Radio Corp. "Real-Time Analyzer". Calibration was accomplished with the aid of a Bruel and Kjaer type 4220 piston phone.

Figures A.2, A.3, and A.4 show the noise spectra from some typical engine-powered items of equipment. The low-frequency peaks typically correspond to the firing frequency (the number of power strokes per unit time - which depends on the engine speed, number of cylinders, and on the number of power strokes per revolution) and its harmonics. Figure A.2 illustrates the noise made by two tracked bulldozers under various working conditions. These spectra reflect not only the diesel noise but also some noise due to tracks, gears, and scraping of metal components against rock.

Gasoline (spark-ignition) engines have noise spectra that are similar to those of diesel engines. In construction equipment, however, diesel engines tend to be used for all of the higher power applications, with spark-ignition engines relegated to lower power equipment. Spectra corresponding to two types of gasoline-engine powered equipment are shown in Fig. A.3.

Noise spectra for two air compressors — one diccel, one gasoline-engine powered — incorporating no special noise control provisions are shown in Fig. A.4. Figure A.5 shows the noise spectra associated with several pumps and generators; Fig. A.6 shows those levels produced by a vibrator acting on a plywood framework and by various saws cutting wood. Noise spectra produced by various pneumatic tools are shown in Fig. A.7.

The noise from conventional pile drivers is characterized by intense peaks associated with the impacts of the hammer against the pile. The peak levels associated with these impacts are indicated in Fig. A.8 for two conventional pile drivers, together with the noise levels produced by a sonic (vibratory, nonimpact) pile driver.

A.1.2 Average construction site noise pollution levels

Based on an analysis of the activities that occur during each phase of construction at the various types of sites, a listing of the equipment active during each phase was developed. This listing, together with an estimate of the fractional number of sites that involve each equipment item, appears in Table A-1.

For site noise analysis, this large table was simplified by averaging equipment usage over similar sites and by grouping together equipment items with similar noise characteristics. For the calculations, equipment with noise characteristics that were not known directly was replaced by equipment expected to have similar (known) noise characteristics (e.g., back fillers and trenchers were replaced by backhoes and loaders). Equipment known to be extremely quiet (e.g., electric cranes, electric fork lifts) was totally omitted from the calculations.

Since a given item of equipment is present at only a fraction of all sites and only during part of each phase, and since it only operates part of the time that it is present, a usage factor was assigned to each equipment item. This factor was calculated as the product of three factors: (1) the fractional number of sites at which the equipment is used (based on Table A-1), (2) the estimated fraction of the phase duration during which the equipment is on site and (3) the duty cycle, i.e., the fractional time that this equipment is operating while on site [5]. The resulting usage factors are summarized in Table A-2.

In order to calculate the site NPL, defined as the sum of the energy-average SPL in dB(A) and 2.56 times the Standard Deviation of A-scale SPL [6], one needs to know not only the average sound

Large description Table description Transmission Transmission <thtransmission< th=""> Transmission <thtrans< th=""><th></th><th>Sone h</th><th>the non-they a them are there</th><th>]</th><th>huntestdent</th><th colspan="2">Public Norks</th></thtrans<></thtransmission<>		Sone h	the non-they a them are there]	huntestdent	Public Norks			
and them 1/4 1/	lipe of Construction Equipment	Family Swelling [\$15-504]*	(arl); Dwelling; (\$1m2-7207)*	Cffler Hallding, Hatel, Hnspitel (SiNG-4,Cull)	School, Public works building (\$200-1,400x)*	Industetal, Parktoy carego (\$120-630x)	Heligibus, Helfea, Lionel, Sturk, Service Station (130-400))*	Rodes and highways	Search and Invacion
$ \begin{array}{c} \operatorname{rescr}_{\mathcal{A}} \left(\left \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 $	earet111er	(10.1	[x]	j z j*	(1)*	(11)	7,
alter, Applet11 [2]	Officiant, Lieler	111		11-1-1-1		2411111	1213-010	×*****	1211-1-1
	Carbon, Asplinate)	1945	4 20	1	0.0004	11394344	a	2000.1	failer 1
answer arth active arth active	Serviser, Air	5,304	1.51.12	10.1. 1400.045	and a second	14131113	x 6 + 1 + + +	(r.) x1+1+1+	14+11++1
prod Control Control <thcontrol< th=""> <thcontrol< th=""> <thcont< td=""><td>Conveyor (Clertzic)</td><td></td><td>12.1</td><td>55-215127</td><td>10.231111212</td><td>0.010340</td><td>18121</td><td>1.61</td><td></td></thcont<></thcontrol<></thcontrol<>	Conveyor (Clertzic)		12.1	55-215127	10.231111212	0.010340	18121	1.61	
$ \begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	livere.				1				
Transmittation T(1) C(2) ¹⁰ <thc(2)<sup>10 <thc(2)<sup>10</thc(2)<sup></thc(2)<sup>	Citating filmstates				131314	1 11111	1 * 12 1 1		I
Theoreting (1) (1) (1)	Condecalizated (Discol)	1 : 13+3	1 2 3 2 4 1			242314	1 1 1 1 1	1958	
This The setue The	Trate-Bostinal (Chevel)	0.143	1	1713.14		0.320	141		
Description The second to the se	which			1					· ·
Description Description <thdescription< th=""> <thdescription< th=""></thdescription<></thdescription<>	fear and	11111	1		1	(110)			
manual filter ([]] ([]] </td <td>humantly huma</td> <td>1 1.000</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1114</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>144</td>	humantly huma	1 1.000			1114				144
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	tenningsty price	1 *)* '			1411		[1)+[X]-	1.	1
offer all state (size) (1)	Texator, transfer (Steaters)			1	1424**	(1)			
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	ODBACTLE LETBOGLESS		1		1.1.2.1	1 1 1 1	1.131	1 121111	1
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	enerator, Electric	[[[]]		15.1,1147	(3,10)	(x)1**	CQ41	(m) X	I
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	an le c	[3,140		1.11	ו••	(x)1+1	(1)4++	X1.3.1	(X)
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	armet, Divestriving	1 .	1 141.	12.2	- 10 P	1 131	(*)	- (e;)[X]*	
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	iter, Comprete	6011	(2.7+,	1	() (4 + * + *	12341244	(2)2+++1	102.3 2 (121)	(2) '2''
$ \begin{array}{c} \frac{\partial p}{\partial t} & \frac{\partial p}{\partial$	aver	C(1*	- C1*		**	(*	(2)*	(62) X112	X*+E
actor (1) (4)144 (c) 1 2^{12} (c) (c) 2^{12}	սեր				ł				
$ \begin{array}{c} \mbox{Longeneral} [b] = (b]^{1/2} & (c)^{1/2} & (c)^{1/2/2} & (c$	water (2 with 15)	1.4114	10023-0714	(cy) x****	1r-1 11+2+*	(***) X ****	\$1+4+	(m7) X+12+1	(m) X 14**
	Concrete (M+aul)	14110	(2+1	(-)) 12++++	150 1100	المعتلي ورزين	11+++1	(ber hit and a stand	(21) 21+2+1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	weilpoint (Electric)	(00)	1,174.2	6000140	10240314-14-	10231494444	111444	(n.7) x + 12++	6216414214
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	inver, Carth & Hock				1			(1)	(x)+
Important Important <thimportant< th=""> <thimportant< th=""> <thi< td=""><td>aller</td><td>1 101</td><td>1</td><td></td><td>. I I</td><td>11</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>611</td></thi<></thimportant<></thimportant<>	aller	1 101	1		. I I	11		1	611
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	and the second	1	1	l	1				
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $			1 100	10,000	(1)4.1	14/41	101	5431	1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	40.141.16CH.					141.	141	141	
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	araper .	[1].			14.11	11.00	(1)+++	Indian	(1) ¹
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	creel Vibrating	(1).11	1 1.14	,	1 111111	201211	129-921-	11,1	(1)1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	have.	1	í .		1				
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Track - Posited	i	1 101	*'	7,	1'	(1)1	TINU	(4)*
erger $[X_1^{10}]$ X^{1} X^{2} $(X_1^{10}]$ X^{1} $(X_1^{10}]$ X^{1} $(X_1^{10}]$ X^{1} $(X_1^{10}]$ $($	Crawler - Mounted		(x) ⁴	(%)***	(a)4**	11)2+*	[3] 6	(1)+++++	[1]811
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	et a fra f		[1]*	¢1	2,	31	(x)*	X ^L	(a1*
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	organi (214m)		(4)3	(1)**3	1 (2)**2	113*14	(A1*+3	x**4	2118
Instantis, input (a) $(21)^{11}$ (b) $(11)^{11}$ (c) $(12)^{11}$ (a) $(21)^{11}$ (b) $(21)^{11}$ (c) $(12)^{11}$ <t< td=""><td>-ale</td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td> </td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	-ale	1							
linear (h) 3 41241 (h) 3 41255 (h) 3 41255 <th(h) 3="" 41255<="" th=""> <th(h) 3="" 41255<="" th=""> <th< td=""><td>frequentity, input</td><td>(a)(x)¹⁺¹</td><td>(a.) (1)¹</td><td>(*) (3)*</td><td>(6.) 1274</td><td>10.13241</td><td>(n.) X3+*</td><td>(A.) (21214</td><td>(m. 167)**#</td></th<></th(h)></th(h)>	frequentity, input	(a)(x) ¹⁺¹	(a.) (1) ¹	(*) (3)*	(6.) 1274	10.13241	(n.) X3+*	(A.) (21214	(m. 167)**#
Case (Discretiz) source (n) λ^{1+2+1}	(happer'	(m.) 3 ¹ 1211	10. 2 2 1 2	D: 1 X ¹ /2**	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	(5.) (1.21)	(m.) x1+2+1	10.10	(a.) **
actor (1) first (1) first <th(1) first<="" th=""> <th(1) first<="" th=""></th(1)></th(1)>	Can (Electric)	15 1 (12)	(0. 1 \$1.21)	1. 3 41.20	10.3.210203	(4. 3. 3. 1434)	10.1.2.1.2.1		ta i ti
Restart (3) (2) (3) (3) (4) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4)	actor								
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Huerle.	0.020	(*14+4+1		1 1.11.11.1		121111		(21) (21)
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Crevian						10	i instant i	1120000
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	C. ARTAC	1	1 1.0400		1 1000		*****	,	
Statistic $[\chi_1^{1+1}, \chi_1^{1+1}, \chi_$	actor, Acteuancy		1						
Description $\chi^{+}(x)^{+}$ $\chi^{+}(x)$	and the first of the second	I IXIIII	(6)****	(1)****	(4)		4.3	1.1.1	1
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Doder	x		71111	1,1414	0.444	X1+414	0.00	10101
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Louisr	×	x	(1(1+)	11111	1141	X11411	(114-1	1,17+1
$ \frac{dd}{dt} = d$	anter a constante	1	(0) 14	(d) (f	optu	(21412	14 * *	:411	44
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $							ł	ļ	
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Dump, Off-Highway	[3]*4**	13111210	(F.)(1)**#**	PROJEK149449	1523(3) 1411		1. 1 (****2**	(#)**#**
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Sump, in-Highway	j juan	1 1111	- 600 X (641)	10.1 2 10411	9.22 (214)	1 100	18.171036	2229.0
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Nixer, Compete	340	1000	67. (400)	1223 344443	المحدثان والج	321111	0.0.2 3 1 2 1 2	(x))+++1
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	flat-ori	×11211	1.111	ا يوني ري	10.23 24.215	Lange grant	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	10.1.2010	(1)211
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	ratora, Concrete	arca e	3.4++	(m.) 1 (21)	(6.3.114)	16.1.1.1.1.1		16 1 2 40 1	(401)111
$\frac{d\mathbf{r}}{d\mathbf{x}} = \frac{\mathbf{r}}{(\mathbf{x})^{1}} = $	ning bestown		muunu	ا موسقوري -	10.10.2000.00	استينين	المتحديقاني	10.3 41.41.0.00	(2) 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1
$\frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}$	dr.						,,		
Line Line <thline< th=""> Line Line <thl< td=""><td>na in Saw</td><td>out.</td><td>1 100</td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>10 A 14</td><td>cm1</td></thl<></thline<>	na in Saw	out.	1 100	1				10 A 14	cm1
Accust of Pathing [dB(A)] Lagree (A) (Comparison of the Company of		14.11.12		I	- 10 min 1	(.nn		- 'Au	123114
Assuming Failing [ab(4)]		141		143.14	1.1.1	147.14	T K L C K	• •	
Property at all along the description of the second se	Acoustic Paling [45(4)]						ļ		
- President at milliplication — Distantional Contraction of the State			·			••••			
	Present at null allow li	and the Constant	da ta se in da seco	Construction and Ale	althreamanne e	ally as searched a	. A contact		

منت المعادية المتعادين والروان

TABLE AVAIL HAR OF EQUIPMENT AT VESTIGATION SERVE.

,

•

.

A-4

• d - Presont at hill alter (1) - May be present [1] - Infrequentic present

.....

Equipment [†]	Construction Phase					
		Clearing	Excavation	Foundātion	Erection	Finíshing
Air Compressor	[81]		.1			.25
Backhoe	[85]	.02	• 04			.02
Concrete Mixer	[85]			. 4	.08	.16
Concrete Pump	[82]					
Concrete Vibrator	[76]					
Crane, Derrick	[88]					
Crane, Mobile	[83]				.1	.04
Dozer	Ľ80]	.04	.08			.04
Generator	[78]	. 4				
Grader	[85]	.05				.02
Jack Hammer	[88]					.025
Loader	[79]	• 0 ¹ I	.08			.04
Paver	[89]					. 025
Pile Driver	[101]					
Pneumatic Tool	[85]			.04	.1	.04
Pump	[76]		.4	•7		
Rock Drill	[98]		.01			.005
Roller	[74]					.04
Saw	[78]			.04(2)	.1(2)	.04(2)
Scraper	[88]	.05				.01
Shovel	[82]		.02			
Truck	[91]	.16	.4			.16

TABLE A-2a. USAGE FACTORS OF EQUIPMENT IN DOMESTIC HOUSING CONSTRUCTION*

* Numbers in parentheses represent average number of items in use, if that number is greater than one. Blanks indicate zero or very rare usage.

⁺ Numbers in brackets [] represent average noise levels [db(A)] at 50 ft.

Equipment [†]		Construction Phase						
		Clearing	Excavation	Foundation	Erection	Finishing		
Air Compressor	[81]		1.0(2)	1.0(2)	1.0(2)	.4(2)		
Backhoe	[85]	.04	.16			.04		
Concrete Mixer	[85]			.4	.4	.16		
Concrete Pump	[82]			.4	.08	.08		
Concrete Vibrator	[76]			. 4	.1	.04		
Crane, Derrick	[88]				.16	.04		
Crane, Mobile	[83]				.16(2)	.04(2)		
Dozer	[80]	.16	• 4			.16		
Generator	[78]	.4(2)	1.0(2)					
Orader	[85]	.08				.02		
Jack Hammer	[88]		.1	.04	,04	.04		
Loader	[79]	.16	• 4			.16		
Paver	[89]					.1		
Pile Driver	[101]			.04				
Pneumatic Tool	[85]			.04	,16(2)	.04(2)		
Pump	[76]		1.0(2)	1.0(2)	. 4			
Rock Drill	[98]		.04			.005		
Roller	E74]							
Saw	[78]			.04(3)	1.0(3)			
Scraper	[88]	.55						
Shovel	[82]		.4					
Truck	[91]	.16(2)	. 4			.16		

TABLE A-2b. USAGE FACTORS OF EQUIPMENT IN NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION*

* Numbers in parentheses represent average number of items in use, if that number is greater than one. Blanks indicate zero or very rare usage.

 † Numbers in brackets [] represent average noise levels [db(A)] at 50 ft.

TABLE A-2c. USAGE FACTORS OF EQUIPMENT IN INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION*

and a second the angle of the second s

Spece Bearing

Equipment [†]		Construction Phase					
		Clearing	Excavation	Foundation	Erection	Fînishîng	
Air Compressor	[81]		1.0	. 4	. 4	. 4	
Backhoe	[85]	.04	.16			.04	
Concrete Mixer	[85]			. 4	.16	.16	
Concrete Pump	[82]			.4		.08	
Concrete Vibrator	<u>[</u> 76]						
Crane, Derrick	[88]				.04	.02	
Crane, Mobile	[83]				.08	·04	
Dozer	[80]	.04	.16			.04	
Generator	[78]	.4	. 4				
Grader	[85]	.05				.65	
Jack Hammer	[88]		.1	.04	.04	• C4	
Loader	[79]	.16	.16			.04	
Paver	[89]					.12	
File Driver	[101]			.04			
Pneumatic Tool	[85]			.04	.1(3)	.04(2)	
Pump	[76]		<u> </u> 4j	1.0(2)	. 4		
Rock Drill	[98]		.04			.05	
Roller	[74]					.1	
Saw	[78]			.04(2)	.1(2)		
Scraper	[88]	.14				.08	
Shovel	[82]		, 2			.06	
Truck	[91]	.16(2)	.16(2)			.16	

* Numbers in parentheses represent average number of items in use, if that number is greater than one. Blanks indicate zero or very rare usage.

[†] Numbers in brackets [] represent average noise levels [db(A)] at 50 ft.

Equipment [†]	Construction Phase					
		Clearing	Excavation	Foundation	Erection	Finishing
Air Compressor	[81]		1.0(2)	. 4	. 4	.4(2)
Backhoe	[85]	.04	.4			.16
Concrete Mixer	[85]			.16(2)	.4(2)	.16(2)
Concrete Pump	[82]					
Concrete Vibrator	[76]					
Crane, Derrick	[88]		0.1	.04	.04	
Crane, Mobile	[83]				.16	
Dozer	[80]	.04	,4			.16
Generator	[78]	1.0(2)	.4(2)	.4(2)	.4	.4(2)
Grader	[85]	.08			.2	.08
Jack Hammer	[88]				.04	.1(2)
Loader	[79]	.04	.4			.16
Paver	[89]					
Pile Driver	[101]					
Pneumatic Tool	[85]			.04(2)	.1	.04
Pump	[76]		.4(2)	1.0(2)	.4(2)	
Rock Drill	[98]		.04			
Roller	[74]			.01		
Saw	[78]			.04(2)		
Scraper	[88]	.08		.2	.08	.08
Shovel	[82]	.04	.4	.04		.04
Truck	[91]	.16(2)	.16	.4(2)		.16(2)

TABLE A-2d. USAGE FACTORS OF EQUIPMENT IN PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION*

* Numbers in parentheses represent average number of items in use, if that number is greater than one. Blanks indicate zero or very rare usage.

[†] Numbers in brackets [] represent average noise levels [db(A)] at 50 ft. pressure, but also enough about its time-variation so that one can determine its standard deviation. In addition, the background noise levels enter in the evaluation of both of these quantities. Accordingly, representative background noise levels were selected as 50 dB(A) for residential, suburban, and rural sites and 70 dB(A) for commercial and industrial (urban) sites, on the basis of data for various U.S. and foreign locations [7].

Representative time-variations of noise were generated by dividing each construction phase into 50 equal time intervals. The start (or "turn-on") times for each individual item listed in Table A-2 were determined at random (by means of a computer random number generator), and the fractional "on-time" duration for each item was taken as its usage factor (Table A-2). From the noise level for each item of equipment, the total noise level in each time interval was then calculated, and from this ensemble of values the desired average and standard deviations were evaluated. For test purposes, the calculations for several sites/phases were repeated several times, with different randomly selected start times; the resulting NPL values were always found to lie within a 3 dB(A) interval. Although such repetitive calculations were not carried out for all sites/phases, the reported site NPL values may be considered as valid within ±2 dB(A).

A.2 Appliances

In the following sections, brief discussions are presented of appliances not covered in the body of the report. We measured the noise levels of many of these appliances; these measurements are presented here as 1/3-octave band sound pressure data.

A.2.1 Can opener, electric

Noise of electric can openers is generated by the reducing gears, the electric motor, and the grating of the clamp against the moving lip of the can. Additional noise is radiated from the plastic or metal panels of the unit. Can openers are usually mounted on small rubber feet which partially isolate the vibration from the work surface; however, wall mounting of the opener can short-circuit this isolation. The A-weighted sound level at a distance of 3 ft was measured for seven electric can openers; the mean level was 66 dB(A).

Figure A.9 shows 1/3-octave band plots of the sound pressure levels measured at a distance of 3 ft for two different can openers. The peaks at 63 and 125 Hz are probably motor-induced while the higher frequency peaks are probably related to the number of teeth in the reducing gears.

A.2.2 Clothes dryer

Clothes dryers are relatively quiet appliances which consist of a rotating drum within a metal enclosure; heat is supplied by either electric coils or a gas flame. The constant noise of the motor and the rumble of the drum, plus the combustion roar in a gas dryer, are punctuated by the noise of buttons or zippers impacting with the metal chamber. A range of sound levels from 51 dB(A) to 66 dB(A), with a mean level of 58 dB(A), was measured at a distance of 3 ft for eleven gas and electric dryers. Figure A.10 shows 1/3-octave band sound pressure level data for five different dryers.

A.2.3 Clothes washer

The noise generating components of clothes washers include:

- water noise during the filling, agitation, and spinning cycles
- unbalanced loads, which cause excessive vibration to be transmitted into piping and floor
- motor
- pump

Figure A.11 presents the noise levels for the wash cycle of five different machines; Fig. A.12 shows noise levels for the spin cycle of four of these five machines. The peaks in the lowfrequency bands probably represent motor-induced noise while those in the mid-frequency bands may be related to spinning of the tub.

A.2.4 Coffee mill

A coffee mill consists of a grinding mechanism that is driven by a motor to produce fine to coarse ground coffee. Motor-induced noise is radiated from the casing and the coffee bean enclosure. Rubber feet are provided for vibration isolation. Measurements were made at a 3 ft distance on two coffee mills: the two sound levels were 75 dB(A) and 78 dB(A).

A.2.5 Dehumidifter

In a home humidifier, a small fan draws air across condensing coils, collecting the moisture in a removable pan. Noise measurements were made of four dehumidifiers; the noise varied from 52 dB(A) to 52 dB(A).

Figure A.13 present 1/3-octave band data for the quietest of these units. The broad peak in the vicinity of 120 Hz is motor induced; mid-frequency noise is dominated by the fan. Although compressors may be vibration isolated, the casing of a unit is likely an important radiator.

A.2.6 Edger and trimmer

An edger and trimmer consists of a high-speed motor directly driving a two-bladed knife. This lawn tool is used to trim the grass along walkways and the brush along garden paths.

Figure A.14 presents 1/3-octave band data on one unit; the sound level was 81 dB(A). The peaks in the frequency spectrum seem to be the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 6th, and 20th harmonics of 400 Hz. It is anticipated that narrower band analysis would reveal more tonal components that are related to the blade passage of the cutting edge.

A.2.7 Fan

There are three general categories of fans found in the home: window fans, floor fans, and stove hood and bathroom exhaust fans.

Window fans are usually standardized to a 14-in. or 22-in. size (12-in. and 20-in. diameter blades respectively). Features on deluxe models include thermostatic control and reversible direction of air flow. Twelve noise measurements of window fans ranged from 47 dB(A) to 66 dB(A); the mean was 57 dB(A). Low-speed to high-speed mean values showed a spread of 17 dB(A).

Figure A.15 presents 1/3-octave band noise measurements for three window fans for both low and high speed. The tonal components are likely related to the blade passage frequency of the fan, the motor, the blade tip velocity, and the blade design.

の日本の時間の時代の時代

"中心的现在分子,不是有人的人们的自己的。"中国的人们在这些人们还有些是是有些人们的是是有什么的。

• Floor fans or table fans usually consist of a base, a small electric motor, and a blade with protective cage. They often rotate back and forth to spread air movement around an arc of 90° or so and are usually designed to run at various operating speeds. Twenty-two measurements at a 3 ft distance yielded a range of sound levels from 38 dB(A) to 67 dB(A); the mean level was 54 dB(A).

Figure A.16 presents 1/3-octave band data for three floor fans for both low and high speed. The noise sources are very similar to those of window fans.

• Stove hood exhaust fans and bathroom exhausts are typically small axial flow fans mounted directly above the stove to exhaust cooking odors or in the bathroom ceiling to exhaust hot air. The mean dB(A) level of ten measurements at a 3 ft distance was 63 dB(A).

Figure A.17 presents narrowband data for four speeds for one particular stove hood exhaust fan. Again, the tones are related to motor noise and blade passage fan noise. Through the use of appropriate lining it should be possible to reduce the noise of stove hood exhaust fans and bathroom exhaust fans by up to 15 dB(A).

A.2.8 Food blender

The electrical motor control system on food blenders is designed to drive the cutting blades (located at the bottom of a removable container) at a wide range of speeds in order to perform various food blending tasks. Speed control may be achieved by using a variable-speed motor or solid state electronic networks. The primary sources of noise are the motor, the whirling of the blades causing radiated noise, structureborne noise, and agitating noise of the fluid. From measurements of the noise generated by foreign and domestic food blenders, the sound level ranged from 62 to 88 dB(A) with a mean level of 75 dB(A). The container was half full of water during most of these measurements. Figure A.18 presents a series of narrowband measurements representing the noise levels generated by one food blender running at each of nine different speeds. The peaks in the spectrum shift upward in frequency with increased speed, suggesting a dependence on the blade passage frequency of the cutting edges. Figure A.19 shows the variation in noise level for a maximum speed setting for five food blenders of different manufacture.

A.2.9 Food mixer

Food mixers are available in both portable and table model styles. Portable mixers are lightweight versions of table models they have no base but consist of the same basic mechanisms: a set of beaters and a variable-speed motor or a single-speed motor with reduction gears. Twenty-five sound level measurements were made at a 3 ft distance on domestic and foreign, portable and table model food mixers. The mixer was operated in a bowl halffull of water for most of the measurements. The sound level ranged from 49 dB(A) to 79 dB(A) with a mean level of 67 dB(A). Figure A.20 shows narrowband analysis of mixer noise at low speed and at high speed.

A.2.10 Freezer

The mechanical components of a freezer are a compressor, evaporative coils, condensing coils, and one or two fans, as in a refrigerator. Small freezers have the condensing coils spread over the back of the machine. On larger units, with their requirement for forced cooling, the condenser coils are grouped at the bottom and cooled by a fan that also cools the compressor. With the compressor in operation, the sound levels generated by three home freezers were measured; the mean level was 41 dB(A) with a range of 39 to 45 dB(A) at a 3-ft distance. Figure A.21 shows narrowband data for two of the three freezers. The primary noise generators are the motor, fans, and compressor, with some radiation from the casing.

A.2.11 Hair clipper

A measurement of the noise generated by a hair clipper was made at a distance of 3 ft; the sound level was 59 dB(A). The noise is generated by the motor and gears which enable the clipping blades to vibrate.

A.2.12 Hair dryer

Different models of hair dryers all share the design objective of forcing warmed air over wet hair. Table models have a hard-shelled enclosure like that of a professional hairdressers machine. Fortable dryers have plastic bonnets connected to the fan and heater by a flexible hose. Noise is generated by the fan, motor and air flow. A faster drying rate is achieved by greater air flow and higher temperatures; this, however, means increased noise from the fan. The latest development of a totally portable unit - with motor and blower attached directly to the bonnet - is the noisiest arrangement because it puts the noise source directly by the ear of the user. Six hair

dryers were measured at a 3-ft distance; the mean level was 61 dB(A). Figure A.22 shows 1/3-octave band sound pressure levels measured at a distance of 3 ft from three units. The low-frequency tonal components are probably motor related, while the high-frequency peaks may relate to the blade passage of the blower.

A.2.13 Heater, electric

Electric heaters used to heat a single room typically have small single-speed fans that blow air past electric coils into the room. The noise generated by these heaters is due to the electric motors, the fans, air flow, and, often, rattling metallic parts. A noise level of 47 dB(A) was measured at 3 ft from an electric heater.

A.2.14 Hedge clippers

The noise of hedge clippers, in which an electric motor runs one or two cutter bars, is mainly generated by the motor and reciprocating gear action. On some models, one bar moves back and forth against a stationary bar; on other models, two cutters reciprocate. Since the latter is a more balanced action, vibration to the user is reduced. We measured a noise level of 84 dB(A) at 3 ft from one unit.

A.2.15 Home shop tools

Electrically-powered shop tools such as drills, saws, sanders, grinders, lathes, and routers have similar noise generating mechanisms. In general, portable shop tools, due to their requirement to be lightweight and high-powered, require forced cooling of the motor and use high-speed universal motors which are often noisy

even when running free. Table model shop tools generally use induction motors which are relatively low speed and quiet when running free.

The portable straight-line or vibration sander is relatively quiet when running free [63 dB(A) at 3 ft] because it has a lower power requirement than most power tools and requires no forced cooling. Figure A.23 shows narrowband data for two operations of a belt sander: running free [82 dB(A)] and sanding wood [86 dB(A)]. The primary noise is the vibrating action of the sander foot.

In drills the gears add to the noise - the more sets of gears required, the noisier the operation. The noise generated by four 1/4-in. drills with a single set of gears measured 76 to 80 dB(A), the noise of two 3/8-in. drills with two sets of gears measured 83 dB(A), and the noise of two 1/2-in. drills with three sets of gears measured 84 and 87 dB(A). Figure A.24 presents noise levels measured near a 1/4-in., a 3/8-in., and a 1/2-in. drill; the peaks in the spectrum are probably related to the speed and the teeth ratios of the gears. Figure A.25 presents narrowband data on two different drill presses, one working metal, the other wood.

Noise levels generated by three different grinders working metal [87 to 97 dB(A)] are shown in Fig. A.26. In Fig. A.27 the noise levels generated by a router running free [81 dB(A)] are compared with the levels when it is working wood [88 dB(A)]. Noise levels of a small metal lathe are shown in Fig. A.28 for a running free condition and for cutting metal. Figure A.29 shows the narrowband data for a sabre saw running free and cutting wood.

A-17

March March
Noise levels associated with the cutting of wood by a jig saw, a radial saw, a table saw, and a band saw are shown in Fig. A.30. The tone at 3150 Hz for the table saw may correspond to the frequency of teeth passing a given point [g].

Tools such as a table grinder, lathe, table jig saw, and table band saw generate noise levels in the mid-sixty to mid-seventy dB(A) range at a 3-ft distance while running free. The larger portable tools especially drills and grinders, generate noise levels of 80 to over 90 dB(A) running free.

A.2.16 Humidifier

Room size humidifiers are relatively simple mechanical devices in which a fan forces air through a wetted pad. Humidifiers exemplify the recurring noise problem from air circulation caused by fan, motor, and air movement noise. Figure A.31 shows narrowband data - 41, 51, and 65 dB(A) - for three settings of one humidifier. The higher levels are associated with higher fan speeds and thereby increased flow noise.

A.2.17 Knife, electric

For easy handling in the home, electric knives are designed to be small and lightweight. Therefore, the electric motor and gears for reciprocating blade action are encased in lightweight plastic. While the noise of an electric knife [with a range of 65 to 75 dB(A) and a mean level of 70 dB(A) at 3 ft] can be annoying, it also acts as a signal that the knife is in operation. Figure A.32 shows narrowband data for two of the three samples.

A.2.18 Knife sharpener

Electric knife sharpeners are often attached to electric can openers as well as being separate appliances. The rotation of sharpening stones alone is very quiet since just the motor and shaft rotate; however, the interaction between the stone and the knife during the sharpening process makes an unavoidable grating noise. A single measurement was made at a 3-ft distance; while the noise levels vary depending on the pressure of the knife against the stone, 72 dB(A) is representative of a typical sharpening operation.

A.2.19 Lawn mower, electric

The gears and the A.C. or battery powered engine of the rotary type electric lawn mower are the main sources of noise. The rattling of the engine housing and other metal parts plus the whirling sound of the blade are also identifiable. Although an electric lawn mower is often quieter than a gasoline-powered lawn mower, the two electric ones that were measured registered 81 and 89 dB(A) at a 3-ft distance. The larger the lawn mower, the more powerful an engine is needed to rotate the blade, and thus the noisier the device. Certain possibilities appear feasible for quieting the electric lawn mower such as changes in blade design and speed to reduce vortex noise, tighter construction of the tool, and sound damping for the motor housing and blade covering.

A.2.20 Oral lavage

An oral lavage is a device that uses the squirting force of water to cleanse the mouth. The motor drives a reciprocating pump, connected to a water supply, which forces a tiny stream of water out the end of a tube. Two measurements gave values of 70 and 72 dB(A).

A.2.21 Refrigerator

The majority of the refrigerators sold today are automatically defrosting. Cooling coils are located outside the freezer storage area and cold air is circulated through the freezer unit by a fan. The automatic defrost mechanism periodically melts the ice which forms on the coils. The trend in recent years has been to larger refrigerators with features such as automatic ice cube tray filling, ice cube making, and defrosting. Refrigerators with such features require more power and thus larger compressors with resulting higher noise levels. Better sound isolation around the machinery compartment, sound absorbing material in the machinery compartment, and resilient mounting of the motor and compressor have prevented the noise of the newer machines from greatly increasing. Twelve refrigerators were measured at a distance of 3 ft from the front. The levels ranged from 35 dB(A) to 52 dB(A) with a mean level of 42 dB(A). Figure A.33 presents narrowband data for two refrigerators.

A.2.22 Sewing machine

Sewing machines from the simplest to the most sophisticated and complex ones all have variable-speed electric motors, necessary gear and drive mechanisms, and auxiliary accessories. There is a wide range of controls available such as stitch tension, variable stitch length and width, zig-zag stitching, forward-reverse action, needle orientation, etc. The more versatile sewing machines have insertable cams which can be changed for different stitching patterns. Measurements on two sewing machines in operation gave values of 70 dB(A) and 74 dB(A) measured 3 ft from the machine. Figure A.34 shows narrowband data for these two machines. Possible noise control measures are to reduce noise from the motor, linkages, gears, and clutch by use of different materials and more effective enclosures. Resilient mounting of vibrating parts to reduce structureborne vibration noise is presently used.

A.2.23 Shaver, electric

Ŕ

ĥ

and the state of the

Electric shavers are run by a compact but powerful electric motor, powered from house current or a rechargeable battery. While shaving mechanisms may vary — using either rotary blades or oscillatory cutting action — the noise is generated by the motor and gears. The mean sound level for men's and women's shavers was 60 dB(A) at a 3 ft distance; the range was 47 to 69 dB(A). Figure A.35 shows narrowband data for four men's shavers and Fig. A.36 presents data for two women's shavers.

A.2.24 Toothbrush, electric

A small, lightweight high-speed motor run by either A.C. power or rechargeable batteries drives the detachable toothbrush. The less expensive models allow rotation in only one plane perpendicular to the axis of the toothbrush. With additional gearing, the more expensive models simultaneously rotate and move laterally to provide better cleaning action.

The main noise sources of an electric toothbrush are the motor and the gears. Typically, the devices with more gears are noisier. The mean sound level of three different electric toothbrushes at a 3 ft distance in bathrooms was 52 dB(A) with a range of 48 to 55 dB(A). At the user distance of about 3 in. from the device, the sound level is about 10 dB(A) higher. Figure A.37 shows narrowband data for an electric toothbrush.

Due to the overriding requirements for small size and light weight, noise control techniques such as improving the sound transmission loss of the casing or adding sound absorptive material are impractical. The most promising noise reduction possibilities will likely come from the development of quieter gear operations through the use of different materials or through designing the gears with closer tolerances or a different configuration.

A.2.25 Water faucets

Noise from water faucets includes water hammer, turbulence and cavitation noise. For particular values of pressure drop, a valve can be designed to minimize cavitation and its resulting noise; however, no valve configuration has been developed to minimize the noise for the full range of pressures that a valve experiences. The measured sound level at a distance of 3 ft for two water faucets was 61 dB(A). If die-casted brass fittings could replace sand-casted ones, there would be a smoother interior finish which would result in less turbulent flow and quieter operation.

A.3 Typical Equipment in Buildings

Many different types of electrical and mechanical equipment are required for the proper operation of modern large buildings. Much of this equipment is hidden in equipment rooms, behind ceilings, in walls, or behind cabinet type exterior enclosures, but the total cost and volume associated with such equipment represents a significant part of the cost and utility of a successful building. The majority of the equipment (including most of the basic heating and cooling system components) is for supplying the building occupants with a suitable amount of air at a comfortable temperature and moisture content. In addition, pumping and piping systems are

used for water and fluid circulation, elevators and escalators are used for movement of persons, and various conveyance systems are used for movement of material. In this section, the use and function of building equipment are briefly described. Where available, typical noise levels are presented for the equipment. For detailed information and procedures, the reader is referred to Refs. 9, 10, 11, and 12 at the end of this Appendix.

A.3.1 Prime movers

Stewart States and States and The second states of the second states of the second states of the second states

The function of prime movers is to transform energy - in the form of electric power or combustible fuel - into rotational movement for use in driving other equipment.

Electric Motors are the most widely used of the prime mover devices. They range in capacity from fractional hp up to several thousand hp; most motors fall in the speed range of about 450-3600 rpm. Motor noise is generated by aerodynamic, mechanical, and electrical forces. Aerodynamic noise, often the most prominent noise source, is generated by air turbulence due to movement of the blades of the cooling fan and the slots in the rotor. Recent designs have used higher cooling air velocities, thereby increasing the noise level.

Mechanical noise is due to bearings and shaft unbalance. Although mechanical noise can be identified in rotating machinery, low-frequency vibration rather than noise per se is the usual problem. Bearing noise is due to the sliding contact of sleeve bearings and the rolling contact of ball and roller bearings. When new, precision ball bearings are often quieter than sleeve bearings; however, after much use, they are much noisier. In new equipment, unbalance forces are usually small. Wear or build-up of dirt on the rotating component often increases the unbalance in a motor,

resulting in the generation of vibration at the rotational frequency and its integral multiples; e.g., since the shaft of a 3600 rpm motor turns at 3600 rpm \div 60 $\frac{\text{sec}}{\min}$ = 60 $\frac{\text{rev}}{\text{sec}}$, energy will be concentrated at 60, 120, 180 Hz, etc. with the 60-Hz component being the strongest.

Electrical noise is generated by magnetostriction — where a component (iron laminations) contracts and expands in response to an alternating magnetic field. Such effects are particularly noticeable when D.C. or variable-speed motors are supplied rectified A.C. current. The wave-form of the rectified current contains high-frequency components that generate noise in the more audible frequency ranges. The primary excitation frequency for magneto-striction is twice the main power frequency, e.g., in the USA, 2 × 60 Hz or 120 Hz.

In the past, motor noise was generally less than the noise produced by the driven component. However, motors designed for high-temperature rises or powered by rectified current may now be the controlling noise sources. Even in the case of relatively quiet motors, motor noise often becomes predominant when the driven component is quieted. Figure A.38 presents a range of noise levels typical of a 3 ft measurement position for the many different sizes of motors used in buildings.

Diesel and Natural or LP (Liquified Propane) Gas Internal Combustion Engines are sometimes used when special conditions make them economically feasible. They are often used in emergency power systems, in total energy systems, and for driving large machines such as chillers. Noise generated by internal combustion engines consists of contributions from the intake and the exhaust and radiation from the casing. Although improperly muffled exhaust may be a source of community concern, the intake and radiation from

the casing are typically greater problems for buildings and considerable detail must be given to controlling the noise. Figure A.39 shows a range of noise levels measured at 3 ft from internal combustion engines found in buildings.

Gas Turbines are used almost exclusively in emergency power and "total energy" systems. A total energy system makes use of the fact that only about 20-30% of the heat energy of most fuels can be turned into mechanical power; the rest is rejected in the form of heat to cooling water and exhaust gases. A total energy system salvages some of the energy which is usually lost and uses it to heat water, etc. The advantages of turbines over equivalent internal combustion engines are their light weight, smaller size, and lower vibration, which can be governing factors for upper story installations. Figure A.40 presents noise levels representative of the noise generated by gas turbines.

Steam Turbines are sometimes used as high horsepower (over 50 hp) prime movers when high-pressure steam is available as a public utility service. Figure A.41 shows the range of noise levels typically found near steam turbines.

Transformers, although their function differs from that of the prime movers listed above, supply primary electrical input power; their output is an altered form of electrical power (higher amperage and lower voltage) rather than motion. The use of transformers permits large amounts of electrical energy to be supplied to a building with relatively small supply cables. Noise generated by transformers is due primarily to the magetostrictive effect in the transformer cores. Thus, the noise consists of a harmonic series of component tones with a fundamental frequency equal to

twice the main power frequency. The range of noise levels generated by transformers typically housed in buildings is presented in Fig. A.42.

Generators or Convertors are used to produce local electricity in emergencies when electrical power is unavailable from outside sources, to produce direct current electricity, or to convert power from one frequency to another. The noise generating characteristics and noise levels of generators are similar to those of electrical motors.

A.3.2 Fluid handling units

Pumps may be the common centrifugal type that uses an electric motor drive, or the diaphragm or piston or gear-rotor types that are positive displacement units. Many of the pumps in a buildingⁱ are part of the overall air-conditioning system. They convey water to and from cooling towers, chillers, boilers, and coil decks in airconditioners, humidifiers, unit heaters, unit ventilators, and induction units. Pumps may also be used to supply fuel oil to boilers, domestic water to upper floors, emergency fire-fighting water, hot water for various uses such as convectors, ice melting, radiant heating, etc., and for sewerage ejection from low levels.

Noise problems due to pumps are usually caused by mechanical forces and turbulence. Noise is radiated by the casing of the pump and associated piping. In order to prevent the tonal components at the impeller passage frequency (the impeller speed in revolutions per second multiplied by the number of impellers) from being detectable at remote locations, a vibration break of flexible connections in the piping is sometimes provided. Nowever, sound

energy in the fluid may flank this flexible connection so that the pipe walls are excited downstream of the pipe break. Figure A.43 shows a range of noise levels typical of many pumps used in build-ings.

Steam Values may be used either to control volume flow or to reduce the pressure from the main supply system. A steam value, like any value, is noisiest when there is a large pressure differential between the upstream and downstream of the value. A typical spectrum for steam value noise is presented in Fig. A.44.

A.3.3 Air handling

L THE STATE

Constant and the second

ALL PACK

などでし

Fans are the driving mechanism for moving air about a building. Propeller-type fans may be used to distribute large quantities of air at little pressure drop across the fan; centrifugal and axial-flow type fans may build up relatively large static pressures in an air handling system and thus are used mostly in ducted ventilation systems in large buildings. In a ducted system, the air will tend to flow toward regions of lesser static pressure, eventually to be released at ambient pressure in the building proper.

Fan noise is generated by mechanical and aerodynamic sources. Bearings and unbalanced shafts are the primary mechanical sources; with proper construction and maintenance, fan noise from these sources can be minimized. Aerodynamic noise may be divided into components due to rotation and due to vortex shedding. Since an impluse is imparted to the air each time a fan blade passes a given point, the rotational component consists of a series of tones at multiples of the blade passage frequency (rotational speed in revolutions per second times the number of blades). The vortex

component is primarily the result of the shedding of vortices from the fan blades; it is an example of broadband random noise. Depending upon the type, size, and geometry of a particular fan, the total noise generated will have varying contributions from vortex and rotational noise.

The horsepower, volume flow, and static pressure, and thus the mechanical efficiency, are important indicators of the noise that will be generated by a particular type of fan. Figure A.45 shows estimated levels for a range of fans utilized in buildings. The noise problems that do occur are usually due to either a failure by the mechanical or acoustical system designer to consider an important source or path, or a failure of the builder to incorporate properly the designed noise control features in the building.

Air Control Units and Mixing Boxes comprise a family of supply air control and treatment devices that provide air at the proper volume, pressure, and temperature to a room. These devices include: constant volume control (CVCs), terminal reheat units (TRs), variable volume controls (VVCs), and dual duct mixing boxes. Their function, in many instances, is analogous to steam valves they take air which has passed through a small duct at high velocity and pressure and reduce its pressure and control its volume flow. A constant volume control takes in air at varying pressure (caused by changing demands elsewhere in the system) and discharges a constant volume of air at a constant pressure. A terminal reheat unit adds the capability of heating the air by passing it over an electric or hot water coil before it is discharged. A variable volume control meters out an amount of heating or cooling air as demanded by a local thermostat and reduces the static pressure of the air to obtain the desired volume. Each of these units is usually located toward the end of supply ducts

near the space it serves. Noise generated by air control units and mixing boxes is a function of the pressure drop across the device and the volume of air flow. Figure A.46 presents a range of noise levels typical of a 3 ft distance from these units.

Diffuscre, Grilles, Registers, and Louvers. After a supply of air at the correct pressure, temperature, and volume has been provided to the vicinity of a room, it must be introduced and distributed into the room without causing drafts. Portions of the air should be directed toward windows and other exterior surfaces that are too cold in the winter and too hot in the summer, while all the air should be distributed so as to provide ventilation to all parts of the space. This is done with various diffusing or direction-controlling devices, usually fabricated from sheet metal, consisting of fins, blades, vanes, etc., that are located at the end of the duct. Perforated grilles, registers, or other similar devices are used to receive the air to be returned to the distribution system. The noise generated by terminal devices, such as diffusers, is dependent on the pressure drop across the device, the volume of air flow, the cross-sectional area, and the spacing between vanes. Figure A.47 illustrates the range of noise levels possible with various diffusers, grilles, etc.

Air Compressors are the source of high-pressure air which is used by many large buildings as an energy source for pneumatic control devices throughout the ventilation system. Such controllers include fresh air intake dampers, zone control dampers, induction units, unit ventilators, mixing valves in mixing boxes, and control valves in CVC and VVC units. The high-pressure air provided by the compressor must be piped throughout the building, first to thermostats and then to the pneumatic operators. Buildings which

A-29

an an an an an tha an tha an tara an ta

have laboratory or workshop facilities usually supply compressed air to those spaces. Air compressors are most often of the piston type and, depending upon the size of the unit, the reciprocating action of this type of compressor may make satisfactory vibration isolation difficult. Figure A.48 is an example of noise levels generated by reciprocating compressors.

A.3.4 Airconditioners

The usual functions of an airconditioner are to filter particulate matter and odors from the air, to regulate air temperature and humidity, and to propel the conditioned air to its destination. The fan in the airconditioner serves two purposes: 1) to move the air through the filters and heating and cooling coils, and 2) to provide enough static pressure to push the air throughout the duct system to the desired spaces. The heating and cooling coils are liquid-to-air heat exchangers, receiving warm or cold water or refrigerant from other machines and transferring warmth to or from the air carried past them.

Central Station. Strictly speaking, "central station" refers to the entire collection of equipment that has a part in conditioning the air that is ultimately distributed to the building. In its more limited use here, "central station" refers to the fan plenum equipment of the airconditioner. The equipment includes controllers and filters on the inlet side and heating and cooling coils, and temperature controllers and, possibly, zone controllers on the discharge side. The cooling coils act as dehumidifiers in that warm, moisture-laden air condenses on them. Occasionally, a humidifier is incorporated to add humidity for special needs. Central station units are most common in large multistory buildings. The size of a particular unit will depend upon the service that it is supplying. Noise levels for units typically found in buildings are presented in Fig. A.49.

Unitary Rooftop Units are usually found on one- or two-story buildings. They perform the same function as the larger central station units but do not rely on other machines to provide hot or cold fluid to their heating and cooling coils; in other words, these units include their own compressors, condensers, etc. In a large one-story building or building complex, this can represent a savings on the heating and cooling water piping which would be needed if the units were dependent on other machines. Figure A.50 presents noise levels measured near both small (the lower curve) and large units.

Unitary Split System Units are usually found in small buildings. They are almost identical in function to rooftop units, but they are located on occupied floors in the building. Thus, a remote heat exchanger (either a condenser or cooling tower) must be provided to reject waste heat when the units are cooling. The refrigerant compressor may be located remote from the unit together with the condenser.

Fan Coil Units are rather like miniature central station airconditioners in that they draw in fresh air and rely on outside sources for hot water, cold water, or steam for their heating and cooling coils. They are small units, usually enclosed within a cabinet and placed under or near windows. Some units, rather than relying on hot water, use electric heating coils. Typical noise levels for fan coil units are presented in Fig. A.51.

Induction Units are similar in appearance and location to fan coil units but receive air from a central station unit at a rather high pressure, 1 to 4-in. static pressure, as compared to loss than 1-in. operating static pressure for unit ventilators. This

۸-31

air is used to induce circulation of the room air. Such units are also provided with heating and cooling coils to temper the air which they receive from the central supply. A range of noise levels for typical induction units are shown in Fig. A-52.

Humidifiers, Dehumidifiers, Heaters and Furnaces, although grouped under the heading of air conditioners, have only one function: to increase or decrease humidity, or to heat.

- Humidifiers are of two general types: 1) those that add steam to the air, and 2) those that blow the air through or over moist surfaces to add water to the air. Both types can be built into ductwork or can stand alone to serve a particular space. The steam type consists of a steam nozzle, a control valve, and possibly a fan. The moist surface type consists of a fan (if not located in ductwork), a water pump, and a moving porous belt or disk which passes through the water and then through the moving air.
- Dehumidifiers, if required, may be located in the ductwork where air flow is provided by the system fan. The primary element is a cooling coil which condenses moisture out of the passing air. In such an installation, a heating coil may be provided to temper the excessively cooled air that leaves the cooling coil. A self-contained unit will include a fan but usually not a heating coil.

Unit Heaters consist of a remote fan and heating coil, which may be either electric or mechanical, and receive hot water or steam from an external source. Such units are often used in little-occupied spaces such as mechanical equipment rooms, storage spaces, garages, stairways, etc.

• Warm Air Furnaces burn gaseous or oil fuel and use an integral air-to-air heat exchanger to heat the air. They usually have two built-in-fans, one to circulate the air, the other to provide air for combustion. They are often used in small buildings which do not have access to large quantities of hot water or steam.

A.3.5 Boilers

For supplying warm air to a building, most air conditioning systems use hot water or steam supplied by a boller that may be located either nearby or remote from the building. (In total energy systems, waste heat from the engines may be captured to heat water in place of or in addition to a boiler.) Boilers heat water or generate steam by burning a fuel and passing the water through or around the fire in a gas-to-liquid heat exchanger. There are two principal types of boilers: water tube and fire tube. In the water tube boiler the tubes are filled with water and pass through the fire. In the fire tube boiler, the boiler is filled with water and combustion takes place in tubes that pass through the water. Steam boilers are usually of the water tube type, while hot water boilers may be either type. Figure A-53 shows a range of noise levels typical of boiler operations; fire tube boilers are represented by the upper part of this range and water tube boilers by the lower parts. Gas-fired burners in boilers are much quieter than oil-fired burners.

A.3.6 Refrigeration machines or chillers

Refrigeration machines or chillers use various methods to remove heat from water supplied to cooling coils (the "chilled water") and transfer that heat to other water for eventual rejection.

Absorption/Cycle Machines use heat energy and a salt solution to transfer heat from the chilled water system to the reject heat system. The machine is composed of tanks, condensers, evaporators, heat exchangers, pumps, and controls. On a per ton capacity basis, they are larger than vapor compression cycle machines. Figure A-54 presents noise levels typical of these machines for building use.

Vapor Compression Cycle Machines, which are commonly called chillers, use a compressor to compress the refrigerant; the resulting hot compressed gas passes through a condenser where it is cooled and changed to a liquid. The refrigerant is then allowed to expand, further cooling it. The "chilled water" is then passed through a heat exchanger with the cooled gas and is cooled. The resulting heated refrigerant is again compressed and the cycle repeated. Chillers use various types of compressors: the positive displacement (piston and rotary screw) and the centrifugal types; noise levels representative of these types are presented in Figs. A-55, A-56, and A-57 respectively.

Small Hermetic Refrigerant Compressors are used in small airconditioners in conjunction with integral or remote air-cooled condensers. These units function exactly the same as the compressors in vapor compression cycle machines except that the refrigerant is cooled in an air-cooled condenser rather than by a reject-heat water-circuit condenser.

A.3.7 Heat rejectors

In most refrigeration machines, rejected heat is transferred to water, which may be used once, e.g., river water, or repeatedly, in which case it must be cooled for re-use. Cooling towers, spray ponds, and air-cooled condensers are used to cool the water.

Cooling Towers receive large volumes of warm (typically 85° to $75^{\circ}F$) water and cool it a few degrees. In the process, the incoming warm water is sprayed onto the cooling tower "fill," a stack of wood, plastic planks or sheets, or ceramic blocks which have a large surface area. Typically, a fan is used to force air through the fill, cooling the water by evaporation. The air is expelled in a saturated or near-saturated condition and is usually a few degrees warmer. Noise is generated by the fan and by the water falling into the basin. Centrifugal cooling towers (using centrifugal fans) are quieter than propeller-fan towers. Figure A-58 presents a range of noise levels typical for both centrifugal and propeller towers.

Condensers of the liquid-cooled type are used in all large refrigeration machines; smaller machines use directly air-cooled condensers. In a condenser, the entering gaseous refrigerant is cooled as it passes through the gas-to-air exchanger, where the gas condenses to its liquid form, and the resulting liquid is returned to the refrigeration machine. A fan is frequently used to force air flow through the heat exchanger. Figure A-59 presents a range of noise levels representative of air-cooled condenser noise.

A.3.8 Conveyance systems

しいいのでのないという方法に対していたので、

In multistory buildings, it is necessary to transport large numbers of people quickly. It is also desirable to transport heavy objects from one floor to another, and in hotels, hospitals, and apartments, to transport trash and soiled laundry to their respective collection areas from many locations in the buildings. Elevators, escalators, and pneumatic transport systems are examples of the conveyance systems used in buildings.

Elevators consist of three major components: the cab, hoist cables and counterweights, and the hoist motors or hydraulic lift piston. The weight of the cab is partially balanced by the counterweights which are lowered as the cab is raised. The hoist motors are DC-powered, which is best suited to the frequent starting, acceleration, and stopping operations of elevators. Supply current is generated by accompanying motor-generator sets (using standard AC motor drives) or large rectifiers. The hoist motors are located directly over the elevator shaft, usually on the roof of a building, or at various upper floor levels. Hydraulic power is sometimes used for distances of under 60 ft. A hydraulic pump provides the driving force. Figure A-60 presents noise levels typically found in elevator machinery rooms.

Escalators are comprised of two major components: the stairs with tracks and the drive motors. The motors are usually located beneath the lowest flight, the upper flights being driven by those below.

Pneumatic Transport Systems use low-pressure differentials exerted over large or small areas to move comparable sized loads. The chief components are a high-pressure fan, a duct system, loading and unloading stations, and control devices. In a typical system, the fan is run at an idle speed (say 1/2 full speed which requires only 1/8 of the full-speed hp) until the loading station signals for full-speed operation. The load is then conveyed through the duct system to the desired unloading station. At the unloading station, the passage of the load signals the blower which then drops to idle speed.

A.3.9 Ballasts

1

「ためない」という見たりとなります。そうないにいたりたい。

Fluorescent and mercury arc lights require higher voltage power than the normal 115v line current. Ballasts are easentially small transformers which alter the voltage to suit this need. Ballasts are usually mounted rigidly to light sheet metal panels in order to provide the required cooling area. These panels often serve as very effective radiators of sound; thus, the noise levels may vary considerably. Figure A-61 presents measured data for one installation. Noise levels in other installations with different ballasts and fixtures may be as much as 10 dB quieter or noisier than the curve presented.

REFERENCES

- Rathé, E.J., "Gerauschnessungen an Baumaschinen," Acustica 23(3) 1970, pp. 149-155.
- 2. "Sound Data from Nebraska Tests," Implement and Tractor, April 7, 1971.
- 3. Noise: Final Report, Committee on the Problem of Noise, Sir Alan Wilson, Chairman, Her Majesty's Stationery Office, London, July 1963.
- LaBenz, P., Cohen, A., and Pearson, B., "A Noise and Hearing Survey of Earth-Moving Equipment Operators," Amer. Ind. Hygiene J., March-April 1967.
- 5. Based on estimates, including those appearing in "A Study of Noise-Induced Hearing-Damage Risk for Operators of Farm and Construction Equipment, Southwest Research Institute for the Society of Automobile Engineers," Technical Report, SAE Research Project R-4, December 1969.
- Robinson, D.W., "The Concept of Noise Pollution Level," National Physics Laboratory Aero Report AC 38, March 1969.
- Schultz, T.J., "Technical Background for Noise Abatement in HUD's Operating Programs," BBN Report No. 2005, September 1970.
- Dugdale, D.S., "Discrete Frequency Noise from Free Running Circular Saws," J. Sound Vib. 10(2):296-304 (1969).
- 9. Beranek, L.L., *Noise Reduction*, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York (1960).
- 10. Beranek, L.L., *Noise and Vibration Control*, McGraw-Hill Book Company, New York (1971).
- 11. Miller, L.N., "Noise and Vibration Control for Mechanical and Electrical Equipment in Buildings," Bolt Beranek and Newman Inc. TIR No. 73, February 1970.
- 12. ASHRAE Guide and Data Book-Systems (1970).



1 1

11

おいたれアチリカ

ビロジョンカンサムショ

See Subserver and the state of the second second

ENVELOPE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM 23 DIESEL-POWERED ITEMS OR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT (MEASURED AT 50 FT) FIG. A.1









してものでいたがいし、

1111111

ŧ,











С 1

A DEPENDENCE AND A DEPENDENCE OF A DEPENDENCE

ſ

12

FIG. A.5 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM GENERATORS AND PUMPS (MEASURED AT 50 FT)

1-12



FIG. A.6 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM VIBRATOR AND SAWS (MEASURED AT 50 FT)

A=44



FIG. A.7 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM VARIOUS PNEUMATIC TOOLS (MEASURED AT 50 FT)

A-45

1.1.1.2.1





А-46

.



「キーカード」となり、たけれるたいできいのないないのであります。

all of the second second

网络古马利 医勒马氏疗疗法

1

الأبراب فالمحمل منتجب معمق

FIG. A.9 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM TWO CAN OPENERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.10 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FIVE CLOTHES DRYERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-48



3

人類的一部 日本市場を加出れたいたけにいけるたちを成れたり

Aster 4

FIG. A.11 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FIVE CLOTHES WASHERS DURING THE WASH CYCLE (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.12 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FOUR CLOTHES WASHERS DURING THE SPIN CYCLE (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-50

.

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

, ,



というといういたのであるとして

FIG. A.13 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A DEHUMIDIFIER (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-51

-



FIG. A.14 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM AN EDGER AND TRIMMER (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



i

1. 4. 10 1

FIG. A.15 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OF THREE WINDOW FANS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)


FIG. A.16 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS OF THREE FLOOR FANS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



12、「日本」「日本」「日本」という」」「「日本」」

100000

FIG. A.17 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A STOVE HOOD EXHAUST FAN - 4 SPEEDS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

۸-55





А-56



FIG. A.19 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FIVE BLENDERS AT MAXIMUM SPEED (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-57

sectors breaks 人名芬蒂普鲁普鲁普鲁普鲁特 计算机的复数形式 有不能得到的现在分词

>

in a state of the





. .

••



《大田》的有效的是有有效的方式。 医胆管试验检膜炎 化

していたないというない

「「「「「」」というです。

0.11







FIG. A.22 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM THREE HAIR DRYERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



おお月戸のおお約5日 ある あおおおおお

Same and

FIG. A.23 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FOR A BELT SANDER RUNNING FREE AND SANDING WOOD (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.24 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM THREE DRILLS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-62



FIG. A.25 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM TWO DRILL PRESSES DRILLING THROUGH WOOD AND METAL (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



赤田 ・1213月

の一部の時にはいいたいというというというないないです。

ŝ

STATISTICS STATISTICS

11

190.4





А-64

.....



FIG. A.27 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A ROUTER RUNNING FREE AND WORKING WOOD (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

Λ-65

ストレント・シスト・シスト・シストン・シストン・ストレーン・ストレントン・ストレントン・ステムのないない、ない、シストレーンを行われていたないないないない。 しょうしょう しょうしょう



.

FIG. A.28 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A SMALL METAL LATHE RUNNING FREE AND CUTTING (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-66

-



- 人名马兰 日子 白いの 和自然のはなる 加速時間にし

1992年の1992年後、1992年に、「「「「「「「「「」」」の「「」」

FIG. A.29 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A SABRE SAW RUNNING FREE AND CUTTING WOOD (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.30 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FOUR DIFFERENT SAWS CUTTING WOOD (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



NAME AND ADDRESS OF

A 14

FIG. A.31 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM A ROOM DEHUMIDIFIER FOR THREE SETTINGS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)





•



Sec

FIG. A.33 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM TWO REFRIGERATORS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.34 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM TWO SEWING MACHINES (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.35 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FOUR MEN'S ELECTRIC SHAVERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



FIG. A.36 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS' FROM TWO WOMEN'S ELECTRIC SHAVERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

 $\Lambda = 74$



12.04

FIG. A.37 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM AN ELECTRIC TOOTHBRUSH (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

. .







a filling and the second se

为学科和APP的时代,但是我们的是一个,PPP小的中心的研究的,如果会会和PPP中的教育的,也有有什么时间也能能会会。

10000000

いたのなお思わった。というでは、いたのたけのは特徴がたたから



FIG. A.40 TYPICAL SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM GAS TURBINES (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-78

and the second second



いたいといし いたいだい

中國國家的政府。因此的研究的認識,如何認識。但是這個世界也是一些自然的。這個的情報,但是是是是有可以

ين رويني ورويني المروي







FIG. A.42 RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM TRANSFORMERS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



Contraction of the local distribution of the

大学が著作品を見たいというないとなったが、日本になるないではないです。その日本になっていた。

elen Generalen









1. 人名卡尔斯 日本 日本 化出版

FIG. A.45 RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FANS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)

A-83

ł



FIG. A.46 RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM AIR CONTROL UNITS AND MIXING BOXES (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



i) ?

一下子がなる。それにはなっていたが、自己にでは精神になっていた。 とものななないます

でもないないです。



FIG. A.48 TYPICAL SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM RECIPROCATING AIR COMPRESSORS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



新聞についていたりだねと





ŝ

FIG. A.50 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM UNITARY ROOFTOP AIRCONDITIONING UNITS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM FAN COIL UNITS (MEASURED AT 3 FT) FIG. A.51

A-89

Sec.

1911日1日日

. . .


÷

FIG. A.52 RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM INDUCTION UNITS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



de la





ς



,如此是我们的现在分词是不是这些问题的。" 化化合物 化合物 化乙酰胺 化乙酰胺 化丁基二化合物 医外外的 化乙酰胺 网络加加斯斯 化乙基基乙酸

1011

Second and a second

1999 - Series States

ويتجاجز والمراجع

,

A-93

a.





计算机 化分子管理 法法律 化化合物 经财产的 网络加尔特拉特的复数 化合合合物和合合物的复数形式 化合合物

利用が教育的なななななななななないのです。自然などの対応です。

IG. A.57 RANGE OF SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM CHILLER WITH CENTRIFUGAL COMPRESSOR (MEASURED AT 3 FT)





A⊷96

Construction of the second se Second sec



ì

a 2 1 Mai







A-98

and second of a

dia to a



FIG. A.61 SOUND PRESSURE LEVELS FROM BALLASTS (MEASURED AT 3 FT)



APPENDIX B - IMPACT CONSIDERATIONS

B.1 Interpretation of Impact Estimates

Sections 3.2.2 and 3.3.2 of this report have provided detailed breakdowns of the impact on people of exposure to a variety of noise sources. This section of the report is intended to permit the reader to gain an appreciation for the significance of these estimates. It therefore consists primarily of caveats.

First, it must be stressed that both the physical levels of the noise sources and the levels at which effects on people are specified are, at best, imperfect estimates. Every attempt has been made to obtain unbiased and statistically sufficient estimates. Nonetheless, the actual levels mentioned in the text cannot be regarded as exact. Variability is inherent not only in the measurement process, but also in the noise sources, the propagation paths by which their sounds are transmitted to people, and of course in the responses of people. Thus, individual instances of extreme sensitivity to noise effects are to be expected, as are cases of excessively noisy and quiet sources. In some situations the total amount of variability may be so great as to transform assessment of noise impact, a priori, into an imponderable issue. It is important to acknowledge that the impact estimation of Sections 3.2.2 and 3.3.2 can pertain only to the general, rather than the specific, instance.

It must also be understood that research on the effects of noise on people has been conducted for the most part under controlled and simplified conditions. The application of knowledge gained from such experimentation to heterogeneous populations living in complex environments necessarily entails

a fair amount of interpretation and approximation. Disagreement among experts on matters of detail is probably unavoidable.

Yet another important consideration to bear in mind when reading the sections on the impact of home appliance, building equipment, and construction noise on people is that these noises comprise only a fraction of most people's daily noise exposure. Since many noise effects are cumulative in nature, discussion of the impact of exposure to restricted classes of noise is both artificial and potentially misleading. It is not safe to assume, for example, that hearing damage is not a substantial risk to the public at large merely because the risk from construction noise exposure is negligible.

In short, it has been necessary to make a large number of assumptions in preparing most sections of this report. Assumptions are the coin with which conclusions are purchased. The reader must understand the assumptions before he can decide for himself whether the conclusions are worth the price.

The final caution is perhaps the most basic. Stated simply, it is that no attempt has been made in this report to address the crucial issues of social desirability and costs of noise impacts. Such issues were purposely avoided as inappropriate and far beyond the scope of the current report. Value Judgments about how much noise exposure is tolerable must inevitably be made, however, if this report is to be fully useful. Administrative or legislative bodies must eventually decide how much hearing loss workers must suffer to maintain industrial productivity; how much annoyance, stress, and task interference the public must endure; how much sleep interference is too much; and so forth. The authors hope that this report will provide the data and conclusions essential for intelligent actions on these issues.

B.2 Discussion of Construction Data

Table B-1 tabulates nonresidential building construction in 1970 by the nature of metropolitan region in which eleven major categories of buildings were constructed. Construction effort in each building category is characterized both by the number of sites and the total construction cost in each region. The average cost of each type of building in each region is also presented in Table B-1. The cost estimates are necessary for accurate estimation of the number of machine-hours of equipment operation at each site. The wide variability of building costs deserves special note. Office buildings in large, high-density central cities cost an average of \$1.9 million while the same type of building costs an average of only \$.67 million in low-density central cities.

The sources of the data in Table B-1 include the following:

- Columns 1 and 2: Unpublished tabulation by U.S. Bureau of the Census of all nonresidential building permits for 1970;
- Columns 3, 4, 5 and 6: Estimates based on population ratios, construction level ratios (where known), and assumptions about probable unit costs; and
- Column 7: Construction Review, except for lines 2, 5, and 7, which were estimated on the basis of known ratios of large city to national construction ratios.

Two categories of nonresidential building are recognized by the Bureau of the Census but are not discussed in this report. One is "residential garages and carports", of which 150,885 were authorized in 1970, at an average cost of \$1600. Carport construction was judged to contribute negligibly to construction noise problems. The second category of buildings recognized by

·····					1						
	Lar	ge High	-Density		La	rge Low	-Densi	ty	Ot! tra	er C I Cit	en- ies
Type of Building	Bldg.	entral <u>Cost</u>	Cities <u>Avg. Cos</u>	t B	1dg	Central <u>Cost</u>	Citie: Avg.	s Cost	<u> </u>	Est. <u>1. C</u>) <u>ost</u>
Office, Bank,	0.05	5 U - O 20	419Cov		01 0	+ = = 011	* (0.04	1.0.0) +7	-04
Professional	235	\$430M	\$1003K		015	\$559M	\$D	86K	17998	5 \$j	78M
Hotel, Motel, etc.	27	708	4015		50	76	13	35	137	' 1	27
Hospitals and Institutions	123	326	2647		120	103	8	61	291	2	33
Schools	67	73	1091		149	40	20	67	366	i 1.	06
Public Works Bldg,	58	48	822		107	64	60	01	262	2	75
Industrial	362	92	253	1	800	93	1.	16	1961	. 3	06
Parking Garage	82	33	398		114	49	4;	29	279) .	48
Religious	81	21	255	1	160	24	14	19	392		40
Recreational	43	17	402	1 3	380	25	(56	932	. (55
Store, Mercantile Bldg.	533	84	159`	16	649	205	12	24	4045	35	52
Service, Repair Station	341	12	44	5	553	13	į.	23	1355	1	+1
······					T	Outs	ide	<u></u>			· · · · ·
			Nonurba	nize	ed [Met	10-				1
	Urt	an	Metropo	lita	an	poli	tan				
	E CES	t.)	(Est	a .)		(Est	:a :.)		nacii Tot	al	
Type of Building	<u>Bldg.</u>	Cost	<u>Bldg.</u>	óst	<u>:</u>	<u>Bldg.</u>	<u>Cost</u>	<u>B1</u>	dg.	<u>Cost</u>	
Office, Bank, Professional	3168	\$600M	1424 \$;	27 O M	4	2260	\$456M	99	00 \$	2701M	I
Hotel, Motel, etc.	344	320	154 :	143		207	157	9	29	931	
Hospitals and Institutions	5590	468	265 3	210		411	272	18	03	1611	
Schools	687	197	309	88		465	102	20	43	606	
Public Works Bldg.	689	196	310	88		421	95	18	47	566	
Industrial	6370	989	2867	146		3706	391 -	163	36 3	2316	
Parking Garage	841	146	379	66		500	72	21	- 95	- 414	
Religious	1826	185	823	83		970	71	42	52	423	
Recreational	1395	99	628	44		998	51	43	76	301	
Store, Mercantile Bldg.	11425	998	5148 4	149		7258	424	290	58 2	2512	
Service, Repair Station	3220	97	1451	43		2050	42	89	70	247	

TABLE B-1. GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF MAJOR NONRESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION BY TYPE OF BUILDING (1970)

B-4

.

TABLE B-2. GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF RESIDENTIAL BUILDING CONSTRUCTION BY TYPE OF BUILDING (1970)

ŗ

i

T

1

ł

5 1

料理 人格会社にのからればれたが、「時間のに、たかというなどのない」

としたのためである。それに、していてい

お子がられたがあり、それはそれを見た。それられている自動はおきが可能に行いていたに、 かいたいがいがく たいとうシー

ø

	Larg Cen	e High-D tral Cit	ensity ies*	Large Low-Density Central Cities			
Type of Building	<u> 61dg.</u>	Total Const. <u>Cost</u>	Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u>	<u>Bldg.</u>	Total Const. _Cost	Avg. Const. _ <u>Cost</u>	
Single-Unit	5742	\$ 862	\$ 15.1K	17213	\$ 33014	\$ 19.2K	
Two-Unit	2044	46	22.7	1076	32	29.8	
Three- and Four-Unit	177	9	51.2	277	13	46.2	
Five-Unit and Larger	745	532	716.0	3012	802	266.0	
	Ce	Other ntral Ci	ties	Urban Fringe (Est.)			
Type of Building	<u>Bldg.</u>	Total Const. Cost	Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u>	<u>Bldg.</u>	Total Const. _Cost	Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u>	
Single-Unit	85776	\$1478M	\$ 17.0K	241800	\$48201	\$ 19.9K	
Two-Unit	4776	92	19.3	6190	140	22.6	
Three- and Four-Unit	. 3266	109	33.4	3542	127	35.8	
Five-Unit and Larger	9496	1083	190.0	11470	5153	185.2	
	N Metr	onurbani opolitan (Est.)	zed Area	Metr	Outside opolitan	Area	
Type of Building	N Metr <u>Bldg.</u>	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u>	zed Area Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u>	Metro <u>B1dg.</u>	Outside opolitan Total Const. _Cost_	Area Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u>	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit	N Metr <u>Bldg.</u> 109018	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M	zed Area Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 19.9K	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$27204	Area Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 16.4K	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit	N Metr <u>Bldg.</u> 109018 2800	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63	zed Area Const. Cost \$ 19.9K 22.6	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218 5455	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109	Area Avg. Const. Cost \$ 16.4K 20.0	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit	N Metr <u>Bldg.</u> 109018 2800 1593	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57	zed Area Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8	Metro <u>Bldg.</u> 165218 5455 2720	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90	Area Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger	N Metr 109018 2800 1593 5166	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957	zed Area Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger	N Metr 109018 2800 1593 5166 Nationa	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957 1 Total	2ed Area Const. Cost \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. Const. Cost \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	
Type of Building Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger	N. Metr 109018 2800 1593 5166 Nationa	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957 1 Total Total Const. Cost	zed Area Const. <u>Cost</u> \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. Const. Cost \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger <u>Type of Building</u>	N Metr 109018 2800 1593 5166 Nationa <u>B1dg.</u> 624767	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957 1 Total Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$11605	2ed Area Const. Cost \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>B1dg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. Const. Cost \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger <u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit	Netr Bldg. 109018 2800 1593 5166 Nationa <u>Bldg.</u> 624767 22231	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957 1 Total Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$11605 482	zed Area Const. Cost \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>Bldg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. Const. Cost \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	
<u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit Three- and Four-Unit Five-Unit and Larger <u>Type of Building</u> Single-Unit Two-Unit	N. Metr 109018 2800 1593 5166 Nationa <u>B1dg.</u> 624767 22231 13595	onurbani opolitan (Est.) Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2171M 63 57 957 Total Total Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$11605 482 404	zed Area Const. Cost \$ 19.9K 22.6 35.8 185.2	Metro <u>Bldg.</u> 165218 5455 2720 33.21	Outside opolitan Total Const. <u>Cost</u> \$2720M 109 90 612	Area Avg. <u>Cost</u> \$ 16.4K 20.0 33.1 184.7	

*See Sec. 3.2.1.2, Table IX, for definitions of large high-density and large low-density central cities.

the Census but not discussed in the current report is "all other numresidential buildings", of which 259,814 were authorized at ar average cost of \$6,760. The latter category of construction was considered too heterogeneous in nature to permit reasonable estimation of the nature of construction noise at a "typical" site.

Table B-2 presents data on the construction effort involved in erecting residential buildings as a function of the type of metropolitan region in which the construction occurs. The data of Table B-2 were obtained from unpublished Bureau of the Census tabulations and from the Census publication *Construction Reports*: *Housing Authorized by Building Permits and Public Contracts*, 1970

B.3 Estimating the Extent of Public Works Construction Noise

The public is exposed to construction noise not only from operations of erecting buildings of various sorts, but also from operations arising from public works construction. Such operations include road, highway, street, and sidewalk construction and maintenance, as well as severage, water works, and utilities installation and maintenance. The noise created by these construction activities is frequently prolonged and intense. Even small repair jobs on water works create considerable noise as sections of pavement are ripped up to gain access to buried pipes.

Estimation of the amount of noise created by such activities required that a number of assumptions be made about the distribution of construction noise from public works sites. The most important assumption was that federal and state public works activity could be neglected for the purposes of this study since it occurs primarily in rural regions of low population density. Attention was therefore concentrated on municipal public works activities within SMSAs. Although summary reports contain ample information on federal and state public works activities, comparable municipal data are available only from individual municipalities. We have been able to obtain fairly complete data on municipal public works construction and maintenance for two large, high-density cities: the central city, Boston, Massachusetts, and the adjacent city of Cambridge. We have used this information, together with the figure of 42,000 miles for municipal street construction throughout the country in 1969, published by the Federal Highway Administration, to estimate total sewerage and water works activity (in terms of miles of pipe and mains laid) for the country.

9

ġ

In carrying out these calculations, we assumed average values of 1.0 miles each of water and of sewer main per mile of new street. We further assumed that on the average, water and sewer main additions per year would be 2% and 1.5% of existing footage, respectively, as opposed to 7.5% for the annual increase in length of municipal street systems. This gave estimated country-wide values of some 11,000 miles of water mains and 8,000 miles of sewage mains. These estimates are considered reasonable in that they are about half as great as would be obtained if the respective annual U.S. expenditure for water works and sewer construction were allocated solely to the installation of mains. Moreover, some mains would be installed concurrently with street construction and, as a consequence, not constitute separate sources of noise pollution.

Inherent in our approach to the estimation of exposure of the population to municipal construction noise is the assumption that the locus of both municipal construction and of population exposed is the street system of a municipality. We have therefore focused on the numbers of inhabitants distributed in permanent residence along the streets of a municipality as an index of the impact of

B--7

street-associated municipal construction noise. In order to facilitate the use of this approach, we developed a correlation (see Fig. 8-1) between population density and the quantities, miles of street per square mile and inhabitants per mile of street for several dozen cities, towns and counties in Massachusetts and Pennsylvania for which we had data available.

Using the above correlation, together with the amounts of municipal public works construction estimated earlier, we arrived at the impact estimates presented in Table B-3. The indicated exposures of residents along streets where municipal public works construction is taking place are 10 million and 4.4 million individuals, for street and water works and sewer construction, respectively, making a total of $1^4.4$ million individuals exposed to public works construction noise.

B.4 Propagation Loss Model For Building Construction Sites In Metropolitan Areas

Two classes of people are exposed to construction noise: the stationary population which inhabits the region around the construction site (workers and residents) and the transient population which passes by the site (drivers, passengers, and pedestrians.) Two models were constructed to estimate the extent to which site noise is attenuated for each class of observers.

Stationary Population

The entire stationary population around a construction site was assumed to be indoors with closed windows. Acoustic propagation loss was modeled by postulating a representative site geometry and applying the formula

$$H = 20 \log \frac{R}{R_0} + 20 dB$$

TABLE B-3.	ANNUAL EXPOSURE OF PERSONS IN METROPOLITAN AREAS T	0
	MUNICIPAL CONSTRUCTION NOISE	

LENGTH O	F MUNI	CIPAL	CONSTRUCTION	(MILES)

<u>Activity</u>	L High <u>Centr</u>	arge, -Density al Citie	<u>s (</u>	Large, Low-Densi Central Cit	ty ies	All Or Central	ther Cities	Urban Fringes	Met. Areas Outside Urban Fringes	<u>Total</u>
Street, highway		273		2,150		6,00	0	11,800	21,700	41,923
Sewerage & Water	-	125		990		2,70	<u>0</u>	5,065	9,850	18,730
		398		3,140		8,700	0	16,865	31,550	60,653
Population Density (people/sq. mi.)	1.	5,160		4,410		3,710	Ĵ	3,380	125	
Area (sq. mi.)		1,468		2,389		6,98:	1.	14,707	179,276	
Street Distribution (miles of street/ sq. mi.)	n	21		10.2		9.5		8.9	1.35	
Linear Distribution of Population (people/mile of street)	ı	720		430		390)	380	93	
<u>F</u>	ERSONS	EXPOSED	TO	MUNICIPAL	CON	STRUCTION	NOISE	(X10 ⁻³)	-	
	1	arge		large.					Met. Areas Outside	

<u>Activity</u>	Large High-Density <u>Central Cities</u>	Large, Low-Density <u>Central Cities</u>	All Other <u>Central Cities</u>	Urban Fringes	Outside Urban Fringes	Total
Street, highway	1.96	925	2,340	1,440	2,020	9,951
Sewerage & Water	_90	425	1,050	1,920	9.20	4,403
	286	1,350	3,390	6,390	2,940	14 ,3 56

.

•

.: About 14.5 million people exposed to municipal construction noise.

B-9

.

general community

where H = total propagation loss

- R = range from source to observer
- R_0 = reference range at which site source level was measured (50 ft).

Twenty dB was added to account for the loss through building walls with closed windows. The resulting transmission loss contours are shown in Figure 19 of the main text.

Transient Population

People passing by a construction site continuously vary their distance from the site. A model such as the above is not directly applicable. The peak noise level to which passersby are exposed, however, can be computed from the propagation loss at the passerby's closest point of approach (CPA) to the site. This propagation loss is computed from the formula

$$H = 20 \log \frac{R_1}{R_0} + H^2$$

where H = total propagation loss

- $R_1 = range at CPA$
- R₀ = reference range at which site source level
 was measured (50 ft)

In the case of pedestrians, we assume that $R_1 = 100$ feet and H⁻ is zero. H is therefore 6 dB. For drivers, we have assumed $R_1 = 100$ feet and H⁻ = 15 dB to account for attenuation caused by the transmission loss of an automobile. For this case, H = 21 dB, which was rounded to 20 dB to emphasize that the figure is only an estimate.



APPENDIX C - SOUND LEVEL CONSIDERATIONS BY AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY MANUFACTURERS

bу

H.T. Larmore Deputy Director for Technical & Safety Services Construction Industry Manufacturers Association Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Presented at The American Industrial Hygiene Association Conference Toronto, Ontario May 24, 1971

This presentation will attempt to place the problem of noise into its proper perspective relative to construction and construction machines - both as a potential cause of hearing loss for workers and as an air pollutant for the nearby community at construction sites.

NOISE - THE PROBLEM STATED

高行者。

Unwanted sound — is not new to the construction industry. Construction sites are noisy. Likewise, it is not new to heavy machines used in the construction of buildings, highways, sewer and water systems, airports and the like. Indeed, it has been a criterion by which some machines have been operated. A skilled operator often relies upon the sound of his equipment for proper operation. Also, noise is often associated with power in the purchase of machines.

These philosophical concepts and the public demand for lower construction costs do not excuse construction machinery from being noisy, but they have contributed to the major emphasis by manufacturers over the past decade to design for greater productivity

rather than to build quieter machines. The transitory and temporary nature of construction has also allowed a lack of concern for noise. While any particular contract is underway, the workers and neighbors might well be annoyed by the noise. But relief comes when the job is completed and the big machines move on. Next job site - there are new workers; new neighbors.

During the past few decades, the public demand has been for more production with less labor and less cost. This prompted the development of today's remarkable machines with more power, automation and speed than ever before. But machine "improvements" to effect this demand generally tended to increase noise levels. Larger engines produced more noise both internally and from the exhaust. More automation was accomplished through more use of hydraulic power which also is a noise generator. Larger engines and more hydraulic power increased the heat which must be dissipated through larger quantities of air being driven by noisier fans through larger radiators. Increased speed means increased vibration frequencies which tend to concentrate in the audible hearing range.

THE CONCERN FOR NOISE

The concern for noise, only recently voiced by the public and expressed now in actual or proposed legislation at all levels of government would seem to have created a major shift from the "productive Sixties" to the "silent Seventies". Fortunately, our industry is geared to respond to our customer requirements and, hopefully, to recognize changing requirements soon enough to accommodate the necessary lead times for research and development, testing, tooling, manufacturing and distribution. Noise abatement, although recognized by manufacturers of construction

machines as a legitimate environmental concern, has been and still is difficult to define in precise engineering and machine requirements - how much - how fast - what costs and trade-offs are acceptable - cost/effectiveness ratios - all tend to remain fuzzy with even man/noise effects far from being accurately determined.

The manufacturers of construction machines, without waiting for all the answers, recognized in the late sixtles the need for the basic tools for all change and/or regulation - Measurement Standards. Without such tools, base lines cannot be established or progress measured.

Through the Construction Industry Manufacturers Association (CIMA) - the necessary machinery and policies were established some four years ago to recognize needs for Performance or Safety Standards and to promote development of such Standards by nationally recognized technical and Standards writing bodies. Among these were the basic noise measurement Standards as voluntary guidelines for both industry and government authors. These were accepted for development by the Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE). They include for construction machines:

- 1. Noise measurement at operator station
- 2. Noise measurement at 50 foot radius

- 3. Construction job site noise measurement
- 4. Cumulative operator noise exposure measurement along with standardized reporting methods

Substantial progress has been made by SAE with completion and publication of some of these Standards expected in the near future.

0-3

The measurement of noise levels either at the operator's station or at a distance from the machine is no simple matter. A machine can be subjected to many operational variables. Engine at rated speed, acceleration, full power drawbar load, power take-off load, hydraulic load, idling engine, idling transmission, transport, addition of a cab, roll-over protective structures, windows open - these are some of the variables which affect noise levels. For that reason, a uniform procedure for noise measurement is most important.

There are currently under consideration at least four Federal Bills and twenty State Legislative Bills which can regulate noise on construction machinery. Consequently, there is a real need for uniformity not only in measurement methods but in noise limit levels. It can be appreciated that legislators are concerned with protecting operators and others from hearing damage and the nuisance of excessive noise. However, a mass of legislation and regulations which are nonuniform are more of a liability than an asset in reducing noise levels on construction machines. Nonuniformity with little or no lead time for making the changes is leading to stop-gap measures which have unpredictable durability and effectiveness, and which perhaps introduce unwanted trade-offs and compromises through overheating, fire hazards, maintenance interference and reduced output.

WHAT ARE MANUFACTURERS DOING ABOUT NOISE?

So - what are construction machinery manufacturers doing individually and as an industry?

Individually they are:

1. Evaluating the many noise sources peculiar to each machine.

- 2. Developing operator enclosures for current products.
- 3. Developing procedures for customizing current products off the production lines.
- 4. Developing quieter components and systems for quieter machines in the future.

Through CIMA they are:

- 1. Seeking new and updated SAE Standards and Recommended Practices for operator and exterior noise levels.
- 2. Organizing a cooperative effort among government, noise specialists, contractors and machinery manufacturers to accumulate the great masses of actual on-the-job noise data required by industrial hygienists in their evaluation of the man/noise effects in the construction environment.
- Creating information on construction machine noise for use by regulatory bodies, consumers, and information media.
- 4. Investigating a means to express machinery noise sources in a uniform, usable and reliable manner.

THE COMPLEX ANSWERS

These individual and collective efforts are not simple nor do results come easily or cheaply. As a beginning, component noise sources are rapidly being isolated and evaluated. Oversimplification of the problem frequently leads many to believe that engine exhaust noises are the culprit and that larger mufflers would turn the trick. To be sure, this is part of the problem. However, noise reduction of the exhaust permits other machine

noises to become dominant. Larger mufflers also create a visibility problem since they usually end up directly in front of or behind the operator.

There are several other noise sources which are the same order of magnitude as exhaust noises, depending on the machine and its configuration.

These are:

- Internal engine noises exclusive of the combustion . itself.
- 2. Engine air inlet
- 3. Transmission and other gear noises.
- Hydraulic system noises including the pump, tubes, valves, cylinders and hydraulic motors.
- 5. Air noise from the fan and radiator.
- Various moving mechanical elements such as crawler tracks, or scraper elevators.

It is very likely that on a large machine today, each of these noises is individually in excess of 90 dB(A) (decibels on "A" rating scale). In the case of two equal noise source levels, the sum is about 3 dBA higher than either source alone. For four equal noise sources, the sum is about 6 dBA higher. And this in reverse acts much the same way. Suppose the total noise of a machine is 100 dBA composed of four equal noise sources. Let's say the exhaust, engine noises, gear and hydraulic noises and fan noises are these four. If by some magic the exhaust and internal engine noises could be reduced to zero, the machine would still have a noise level of 97 dBA. So, this is the

challenge to the engineers who are studying each noise source and striving for noise reduction of each component.

QUIETING CURRENT PRODUCTS

For quieting current production machines, some manufacturers are starting to use off-line, extra cost customizing. This may consist of one or more of the following: An isolation mounted cab; larger muffler; sound deadening material around noisy components; and vibration isolation of noise components. These methods are expensive and can have only minimal effect on the total problem. Also, the sound absorbing insulation causes some components to run hotter and can possibly absorb spilled petroleum products. This can be a fire hazard. One would not normally expect to replace such insulation during a machine's expected useful lifetime but durability of such materials and installation techniques are not broadly known.

FUTURE MACHINE QUIETNESS

المحمد ويعجمه والمراجع

「おけい」「自然に、たい」といれた男の時代である

For future machines, larger capacity cooling fans with nonresonant frequencies are being developed. These would utilize larger volumes of air at lower velocities, new radiator fin designs and more efficient shrouds.

Some gears must be changed from one form to another and perhaps made with more precision. Much noise is generated from variable gear loadings and from gear idling. Gears are designed to transmit a given power level at a required speed. Variations of these will set up vibrations which cause noise. Here again, isolation and insulation seem like possible temporary solutions but heat and flexibility can lead to premature failure and other new problems.

Hydraulic pumps, transmission lines, valves, cylinders and motors are all noise generators. Oil flowing in a smooth, uniform path should be one of the quietest methods of generating, transmitting and utilizing energy. However, each component has complicated restrictions which induce vibration. If all of the hydraulically performed functions were uniform and continuous, the noise would be minimal. But ease and flexibility of control are reasons for the many applications. Noise reduction programs for hydraulics are underway, but they will take time for development, testing and adopting.

Mechanical components such as the tracks of crawler tractors are noisy but fortunately are of lower frequencies. These types of mechanisms are just not readily quieted and do not lend themselves to encapsulation treatment. The long range, practical solution for all these problems may well dictate future machines of entirely new configurations.

NOISE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

Because of the many noise sources which add up to a single composite noise at an individual's ear, a unique but uniform measurement is necessary. For this purpose the SAE Standards are a very practical solution. The development of these Standards requires inputs from a broad spectrum of individuals with various areas of interest. One company cannot develop such Standards nor can just the machine manufacturers' industry. But, through CIMA, the industry is promoting and lending its support to the development of meaningful noise Standards by independent Standards writing bodies which include experts from manufacturers, government, public, users and labor.

Ç-8

As previously stated, these are noise measurement and reporting Standards being developed by engineers and other highly knowledgeable people in the construction field. Obviously, their efforts must be teamed with practical and effective noise limit Standards developed by the experts in the field of Industrial Hygiene. Such limits should be in keeping with the peculiar type of exposure found in the construction environment. Only when these two tasks are completed can effective and practical noise control programs and regulations be designed and implemented.

-1

٦

ļ

For Community Noise Control we visualize total construction job site limits geared to the particular needs of the surrounding community. This would create a natural demand for quieter machines yet still allow contractors and users to utilize their well demonstrated versatility and ingenuity to get the job done in compliance with realistic job site noise limits even with existing machines by using new job layout and operational techniques.

For control of hearing damage risk we would urge that the current Walsh-Healey noise exposure tables might be modified for construction workers to more accurately reflect their unique exposure to intermittent, variable intensity noise and the large seasonable fluctuations in noise dosages. These factors are covered in some detail in a CIMA sponsored study published by SAE, December 1969, as Technical Report - SAE Research Project R-4 and titled "A Study of Noise Induced Hearing Damage Risk, for Operators of Farm and Construction Equipment". This report is available from the Society of Automotive Engineers, Inc., Two Pennsylvania Plaza, New York, New York. In summary, we have attempted to briefly review the background of construction machinery and the relatively recent public concern for noise.

We have outlined the complex and sophisticated industry problems involved and our concern that the public may be moving from apathy to overkill in one easy lesson.

We have indicated an industry recognition of the responsibility to help shape noise abatement legislation and regulation into reasonable and responsible instruments; also, our past and continuing active participation, through CIMA, to effectively utilize our industry expertise in major and necessary Standards activities.

We spoke of the industry efforts, both from individual manufacturers and collectively through CIMA to create quieter machines except as a stop gap, high cost measure.

We outlined the need for new noise limit criteria designed in consideration of the unique types of noise exposure and dosage for construction workers.

It is obvious that construction machine designers and industrial hygienists in both the government and private sectors are operating at the threshold of the art relative to *noise*. We believe there is real and urgent need for a combining of these two groups into a teamwork effort. Through such a combined grouping of expertise can come the tools and procedures to effectively reach our common noise abatement objectives - and to do so with full consideration of the total needs of our society and at costs and compromises satisfactory to the public.

APPENDIX D - NOISE CONTROL: REGULATION AND STANDARDS

D.1 Introduction

じょう うけいしん あらうちか という

Control of the noise produced by construction activity, building equipment, and home appliances cannot be expected to procede in an orderly fashion without supporting guidance in the form of noise criteria, noise standards, and noise limits. This section of the report presents information on the status of currently available guidance for noise control. Trends in development of criteria, standards, and limits are discussed. Where possible, future requirements for noise control guidance are anticipated.

A fundamental distinction must be made among the three basic forms of guidance necessary for systematic noise control. Noise criteria are defined as statements of the effects produced by various levels of noise exposure. Criteria are based on the effects of noise on people, as discussed in Section 3.1 of this report. Noise standards describe the properties of noise environments that are considered desirable. Standards are usually presented as long-term goals that a regulatory program may be designed to attain. Noise limits are in effect regulatory documents intended to limit public exposure to individual noise The limits entail not only a knowledge of the existing sources. noise environment, but also technological and economic constraints on noise abatement. It is intended by writers of noise limits that the noise environment should approach the goals of noise standards in a systematic fashion.

The next section will discuss the elements involved in the development and support of regulatory noise limits for construction equipment; the third section of this appendix will discuss those elements appropriate to building equipment and appliances.

D-1

D.2 Construction Equipment

The body of this report has included discussion of criteria in the estimation and evaluation of the impact of construction equipment noise. The criteria appropriate to construction equipment noise are not unique to such noise sources, of course. The selection of standards for noise exposure must take into account the characteristics of the combined impact of the many noise sources that pollute our environment, and most importantly, must be keyed to the business and recreational activities and situations in society that are to be protected from noise. Thus, the development of a set of standards for the protection of human activity from noise pollution is beyond the scope of the present project and report; indeed, the ultimate selection will be based on further legislation incorporating decisions of national policy. It is our intention here to describe the relationship between the various elements in an environmental regulatory scheme, and to identify their present state of development by scientific and engineering groups, and by State and local governments.

The third of these elements is the noise limit itself, which provides quantitative restriction of noise emissions through incorporation in legally enforceable rules, regulations, and laws. Quantitative limits must be directed at an identifiable legal entity (such as manufacturer, vendor or user), and must be accompanied by specific test and measurement procedures. Although no nationwide noise regulations for construction or other powered outdoor equipment now exist, several states are considering such noise limits, and a number of larger cities have recently enacted or proposed limits for construction equipment.

The next section of this Appendix will review the recent regulatory activities at the State and local levels that apply. Since procedures for construction equipment noise measurement are so important to the successful implementation of source limitations, the last section will discuss these in more detail.

D-2

State and Local Regulations

In the last two years, considerable activity has taken place at the State and local level with regard to reducing the noise of outdoor construction, maintenance, and repair activities.

Both the State of Illinois and the State of Hawaii enacted statutes in 1970 which grant broad regulatory powers over noise to specific state agencies. At this time neither the Illinois Pollution Control Board nor the Hawaii Dept. of Health have adopted any rules or regulations to control construction noise. The Illinois Institute for Environmental Quality has initiated a study of noise sources (including construction and other outdoor powered equipment) that could be covered by State regulations, and proposed limits for such equipment are being studied.

In the State of California, a report to the 1971 Legislature on the Subject of Noise was prepared by the State Dept. of Public Health. This report includes in its recommendations the establishment of noise emission standards for all noise-producing objects now in use as well as to be admitted in the future to California. The construction noise sources identified in the report include all diesel-engine powered equipment, such as generators, compressors, off-highway trucks, bulldozers, loaders, scrapers, power shovels and other excavating equipment, as well as piledrivers, riveting machines, jack hammers, elevators, cement mixers, hammers, power saws, drills, and nailers. Other State legislatures have or will consider a variety of proposed construction noise bills; a bill submitted to the New York State Legislature in 1968 would have limited construction noise as measured at the nearest multiple dwelling.

Because construction-equipment noise is especially severe in urban areas, limits have been proposed or adopted in several larger cities. New York City has proposed coverage of construction sites by permit, and limits for air-compressor and paving-breaker equipment in a new noise code; public hearings are scheduled to begin in the City Council Committee on Environmental Protection on 9 September 1971. The City of Boston Air Pollution Control Commission has recently completed a study of community noise and. as part of its plan for noise control, will begin hearings 27 September 1971 on proposed regulations which include limitations on noise of both construction/outdoor powered equipment and on the operation of a construction site. The latter limits, in brief, apply at any nearby area open to the public except public ways, or at a 1000-ft radius from the site, whichever is nearer.

The City of Chicago adopted a comprehensive noise ordinance, effective 1 July 1971. Section 17-4.8 provides that "No person shall sell or lease,...any powered equipment or powered hand tool that produces a maximum noise level exceeding the following noise limits at a distance of 50 ft, under test procedures established by...this chapter." and there follows a table of limits in dB(A) for four categories of equipment. Two categories "Construction and Industrial Machinery" (#1) and "Commercial Service Machinery" (#3) cover the bulk of construction equipment.

"Construction and Industrial Machinery" includes powered outdoor equipment, mobile or stationary, associated with construction sites or industrial operations. Such equipment includes crawler-tractors, dozers, rotary drills, and augers, loaders, power shovels, cranes, derricks, motor graders, paving machines, off-highway trucks, ditchers, trenchers, compactors, scrapers, wagons, compressors, pavement breakers, pneumatic-powered equipment, etc. Specifically excluded are pile drivers.

D-4

"Commercial Service Machinery" includes powered equipment of 20 hp or less intended for infrequent service in residential areas, typically requiring commercial or skilled operators. Such equipment includes chain saws, light pavement breakers, log chippers, powered hand tools, etc.

The limits that apply to these categories are keyed to the date of manufacture of the equipment and provide a timetable for noise reduction as follows:

Manufactured after	Construction and Industrial Machinery	Commercial Service Machinery
1 Jan. 1972	94 dB(A)	88 dB(A)
1 Jan. 1973	88 dB(A)	84 dB(A)
1 Jan. 1975	86 dB(A)	
1 Jan. 1978		
1 Jan. 1980	80 dB(A)	80 dB(A)

The application of the limits to equipment for lease is most appropriate in the case of construction machinery; such equipment is usually leased rather than sold. Since the limits only apply to equipment manufactured after 1 January 1972, it is too early to look for compiled results, but several contractors in the Chicago area are now asking for "quieted" equipment that will meet these limits, and intend to use such equipment, insofar as possible, to reduce or eliminate community noise complaints. This provides very desirable pressure in the market place for such "quiet" equipment, encouraging manufacturers to offer noise control packages on their construction equipment before the required date.

D-5
Measurement Procedures

Since quantitative limits must be applied to the noise source, most test codes and recommended practices for measurement apply to the operation of an individual item of construction equipment. The following noise measurement procedures are of this form:

SAE* Standard J952a Sound Levels for Engine Powered Equipment

- Scope: For engine powered equipment including mobile construction and industrial machinery, but not covering machinery designed for operation on highways, or within factories and building areas.
- Test Type: Outdoor free-field measurement on level ground. Measurement distance 50 ft. Equipment operation at speed and load producing maximum sound level.

Data: A-weighted sound level.

City of Chicago Environmental Control Ordinance, Article IV^T Test Procedures for Noise Emitted by Engine-Powered Equipment and Powered Hand Tools

Scope: For engine-powered equipment, including construction and industrial machinery (not including pile drivers) agricultural tractors and equipment, powered commercial equipment of 20 hp or less, and powered equipment for use in residential areas.

*Society of Automotive Engineers, Inc., NYC, N.Y. 10001 [†]Sec. 17-4.26 and corresponding section of DEC Code of Recommended Practice. Chicago Department of Environmental Control, Chicago, III. 60610. Test Type: Outdoor free-field measurement on level surface. Measurement distance 50 ft. Both stationary test and acceleration test (for rubber-tired mobile equipment) at load and speed producing maximum sound level. Fneumatic equipment operated as specified in CAGI-PNEUROP Test Code.

Data: A-weighted sound level.

ANSI* 51.19/193 (Proposed) Test-Site Measurement of Noise Emitted by Engine Powered Equipment

Scope: For determining maximum noise emitted by construction and industrial machinery, transportation and recreation vehicles, and other engine-powered equipment.

Test Type: Outdoor free-field on reflecting ground. Measurement distance 15 meters (50 ft). Moving and stationary tests for construction equipment (Sec. 4.4).

Data: A-weighted sound level

CAGI-PNEUROP[†] Test Code for the Measurement of Sound from Pneumatic Equipment

Scope: Applies to compressors, percussive and nonpercussive pneumatic equipment. Specifies procedures and operating conditions, not always including process noise.

*American National Standards Institute, NYC, N.Y. 10018 [†]Compressed Air and Gas Institute, NYC, N.Y. 10017

Test Type: Indoor or outdoor, measurements in direct field at five positions at 1 meter from equipment. Secondary measurement at 7 meters distance. Non-percussive tools measured running free and with "quiet" work process.

Data: A-weighted and Octave-band sound pressure levels for each measurement point.

· "你是你是你有了你。"

The procedures adopted by the City of Chicago are based on the SAE J952 standard and the revisions now under consideration by the SAE Agricultural and Construction Machinery Sound Level Subcommittee. Substantially the same measurement procedures have been proposed by the City of Boston Air Pollution Control Commission in their Test Procedure for Measurement of Noise from Powered Devices.

While SAE J952a contained specific noise limits, there are being separated in a later revision now under consideration, and the test procedure will appear separately. This procedure recommends an additional 2 dB tolerance for such noise measurements; this provision has been deliberately omitted in both the Chicago and Boston test procedures, and left to administrative decision. This is more appropriate, and not unlike the enforcement measurement procedures for vehicular speed limits.

Another approach to construction equipment noise measurement is to apply the measurement to the combined operators of all construction equipment at a single test site. At the request of CIMA (Construction Industry Manufacturers' Association) the SAE is developing such a test procedure.

D~8

SAE Recommended Practice (Proposed) Construction Site Sound Level Measurements

Scope: For sites where construction machinery is operated. Measures noise radiated off-site.

Test Type: Field measurement of radiated sound levels at four nearest inhabited locations to any centerpoint of construction activity. If no inhabited locations closer than 1000 ft to a centerpoint, measurements made at 4 locations spaced 90° on 1000 ft radius circle.

Data: A-weighted sound levels at each measurement point define "Construction Site Operational Sound Levels". Provision for a record of "Construction Site Baseline Sound Levels" allows limits to be expressed as change in ambient as well as absolute terms.

The combined-operations measurement procedure is presently being proposed for use by the City of Boston, and the City of Chicago plans a test of the latest SAE draft procedure as part of a feasibility study of noise limitations on construction sites. The Federal Highway Administration is considering this procedure as a basis for regulation of noise from Federal-aid highway construction.

n-c

D.3 Noise Standards for Indoor and Outdoor Equipment for Home and Office Use

The impetus for development of standards for measuring and rating the noise produced by many types of equipment has come from the manufacturers of noise sources. For example, the manufacturers of air conditioning and ventilation appliances are by far the most conscious of the impact of their equipment on the noise environment of the home and office. Within the past decade at least ten different "standard" procedures have been formulated for measuring and rating the noise of various types of air conditioning and ventilating equipment. The automotive and airframe industries have been similarly conscious of the noise impact of their equipment and sophisticated noise standards exist for these sources. By contrast, only one standard has appeared to deal with the noise of rotating electrical machinery; one to deal with gas turbines; one for gear noise; one standard of a general nature, produced by official American National Standards Institute (ANSI), intended to guide noise measurement of practically any piece of machinery; and a draft procedure is under consideration by ANSI to rate the noise of all engine-powered equipment.

Such standards are of two types. Measurement standards specify the manner in which meaningful and reliable acoustical data may be obtained. Rating standards apply these acoustical data to produce ratings, usually single-numbered, that are supposed to correlate with subjective response to equipment noise, thus permitting at least rank-ordering of equipment noise on a justifiable basis.

Both sorts of standards are necessary and form the basis for yet a third class of standards (applications standards) that are used by architects, consultants, building codes, noise

ordinances and similar organizations. Factors which are considered in developing application standards include the economic, social, and political. Applications standards represent an equilibrium between the costs of reducing noise exposure and the feasible noise reduction made possible by acoustic technology.

The following summaries indicate the general nature of existing U.S. noise measurement and rating standards for domestic and office equipment.

ASHRAE* 36-62 Measurement of Sound Power Radiated from Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Equipment

Scope: For unitary, unducted equipment, large or small, for indoor or outdoor use.

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method.

Data: Total radiated sound power level in octave or 1/3-octave bands.

ASHRAE* 36A-63 Method of Determining Sound Power Levels of Room Air Conditioners and Other Ductless, Through-the-Wall Equipment Scope: For room air conditioners, Window or attic fans, and other ductless Wall- or ceiling-mounted equipment that radiate sound directly both to the conditioned space and the outdoors.

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method (2 rooms needed).

Data: Total sound power level radiated to indoors and outdoors, separately, in 1/3-octave bands.

* American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, Inc., 345 East 47th Street, New York, N.Y. 10017.

ASHRAE 36B-63 Nethod of Testing for Rating the Acoustic Performance of Air Control and Terminal Devices and Similar Equipment

Scope: For air control and terminal devices normally mounted in or connected to duct systems.

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method.

Data: Total sound power level radiated into the room served' by the device, in octave bands.

AMCA⁴ 300-67 Test Code for Sound Rating Air Moving Devices Scope: For central station air conditioning and heating and ventilating units, for centrifugal fans, axial and propeller fans, power roof and wall ventilators, steam and hot water unit heaters (but not unit ventilators, room fan-coil units, room air induction units and air cooled refrigerant condensers).

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method, based on ASHRAE 36-62.

Data: Total radiated sound power level, in octave bands (including the sound radiated into the ducts, for ducted equipment).

AMCA* 301-65 Method of Publishing Sound Ratings for Air Moving Devices

Ratings for Centrifugal Fans, Axial and Propeller Fans, Power Roof and Wall Ventilators, Steam and Hot Water Unit Heaters; not yet suitable for central station A/C or H/V units.

Ratings: based on octave-band sound power levels, per AMCA 300-67: For ducted devices, the eight octave-band sound power levels;

*Air Moving and Conditioning Association, 205 West Touhy Ave., Park Ridge, Ill. 60068 For unducted devices, the loudness in somes at a reference distance of 5 ft, as calculated from the sound power level data.

AMCA 302 "Application of Sone Loudness Ratings for Nonducted Air-Moving Devices"

Reference material covering applications of the loudness rating in sones (examples, combinations of sources, prediction of sound loudness indoors and outdoors, variation with fan speed.

AMCA 303 "Application of Sound Power Level Ratings for Ducted Air Moving Devices"

Reference material covering significance and accuracy of sound power level ratings, particularly their relation to sound as heard.

ANSI*S1.2 - 1962 "American Standard Method for the Physical Measurement of Sound"

Scope: For all devices, machines or apparatus. Several test procedures are described:

5

ATAN UTURA

「おけない」はない。 おけいがい、おんりがながられ、 たちいみ 1100

Test Type: Free-field; free-field above reflecting plane; semireverberant field; or reverberation room. The semireverberant field procedure is similar to that of ASHRAE 36-62.

Data: Sound pressure levels at specific locations, or total sound power levels in octave bands (1/2-octave or 1/3octave analysis optional); and directivity of the source.

* American National Standards Institute, 10 East 40th Street, New York, N.Y. 10016 IEEE* #85 "Airborne Noise Measurements on Rotating Electric Machinery"

Scope: For rotating electrical machinery of all sizes Several test procedures are described:

Test Type: Free field; free field above reflecting plane; semireverberant field; or reverberation room. (Similar to ANSI S1.2-1962, but more detailed.)

Data: Sound levels or sound pressure levels in frequency bands (octave, 1/3-octave, or "narrow") at specified locations or total sound power level, overall or analyzed into frequency bands, and directivity of source.

ANSI S1.19/193 "Test-Site Measurement of Noise Emitted by Engine-Powered Equipment" (Draft only.)

Scope: For residential equipment (Section 4.5) [Other sections deal with automobiles, motorcycles, construction and industrial machinery and recreational equipment]

Test Type: Sound levels measured on flat test site with hard ground surface, free of large reflecting obstacles within 30 meters of equipment under test.

Data: A-weighted sound level measured at a point 50 ft from center of equipment and 4 ft above ground, for noisiest direction and noisiest operating conditions.

ARI+ 443-66 "Standard for Sound Rating of Room Fan-Coil Air-Conditioners"

Scope: For room fan-coil air conditioners.

* Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers, 345 East 47th Street, New York, N.Y. 10017

 Air-Conditioning and Refrigeration Instutute, 1815 North Fort Meyer Drive, Arlington, Virginia 22209

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method, in accordance with ASHRAE 36-62

Data: Octave-band sound power levels, computed from 1/3-octave band data corrected for presence of pure tones.

ARI 270-67 Standard for Sound Rating of Outdoor Unitary Equipment

Scope: Outdoor sections of factory-made equipment, such as unitary air-conditioners or heat pumps.

Test Type: Reverberation toom, substitution method, in accordance with ASHRAE 36-62 or ASHRAE 36A-63.

Data: Sound power levels in 1/3-octave bands.

1月1日にも されいやくれ

「おんない」はないの目的

「「なない」」の自己になった。これには、「ないない」で、特別な

教師時代

Rating: Single-number rating based on the 1/3-octave band sound power levels (corrected for the presence of pure tones), by a calculation like the ANSI Standard S3.4, "Computation of Loudness of Noise".

ARI 275-69 Standard for Application of Sound Rated Outdoor Unitary Equipment

Reference material (related to ARI 270-67) establishing a method for predicting annoyance due to operation of outdoor unitary equipment, and providing recommendations for application of such equipment.

Calculation of annoyance level (ANL), taking into account distance, reflections, location of equipment, shielding by barriers, location of observer, multiple units, etc. AHAM* SR-1 Room Air-Conditioner Sound Rating

Scope: Room air conditioners

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method, in accordance with ASHRAE 36A-63

Data: Single number (or letter) ratings based on the 1/3-octave band sound power levels (corrected for the presence of pure tones), by a calculation like the ANSI Standard S3.4 "Computation of Loudness of Noise"; the calculations are different for the indoor side and the outdoor side of the unit, such that the two sound ratings would be the same if the sound power levels radiated indoors were all 15 dB less than the levels in corresponding frequency bands radiated to the outdoors. The outdoor calcuation is the same as that of ARI 270-67. The indoor sound rating (a number) is converted to a letter rating (ll=A, l2=B, l3=C, etc.) for publication purposes.

HVI+#1966-1 Sound Test Procedure

Scope: For home ventilating equipment.

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method, similar to ASHRAE 36-62

- Data: Octave band sound <u>power</u> levels, calculated from 1/3-octave band sound <u>pressure</u> levels, are used to compute octave-band free-field sound <u>pressure</u> levels at a reference 5-foot distance.
- Rating: The nominal free-field octave-band SPL's at 5 foot are used to calculate loudness in sones, a single number,
- * Association of Home Appliance Manufacturers, 20 North Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois 60606
- + Home Ventilating Institute

according to ANSI 53.4 - 1968, "Computation of Loudness of Noise."

ADC* Test Code 1062 R1 Equipment Test Code

ないとなられていたのなりたけ

調査で直接に対象に対象的な対象にないの時に、対象に対象になった。

Scope: For air distribution and control devices (high pressure units).

Test Type: Reverberation room, substitution method, in accordance with ASHRE 36B-63 (except that the ASHRAE test for attenuation of terminal devices is not used).

Data: Total sound power level radiated into room, in octave bands.

* * *

In addition to these standards for measuring and rating noise from various kinds of ventilation equipment, both the Home Ventilating Institute and the Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Institute have published directories of equipment, giving noise ratings for each model tested (a large proportion of the manufactured models); and both the Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Institute and the Association of Home Appliance Manufacturers offer guidance for the writers of noise ordinances dealing with their equipment types, to indicate achievable goals and the necessary wording in terms of existing standards, to make the model ordinances enforceable.

At the present time, the existence of several different measurement and rating standards in the ventilating/air-conditioning field is something of an embarrassment, since they are not

* Air Diffusion Council, 435 North Michigan Ave., Chicago, Ill. 60611

mutually consistent nor even compatible, but are competing for general acceptance. In an attempt to deal with this situation, an <u>ad hoc</u> working group of ANSI is currently trying to draft a standard for both measurement and rating of equipment noise that exhibits the best features of the already existing standards and that, it is hoped, will be found acceptable by the various organizations that have pioneered in the standardization effort in the United States. It is still too early to predict whether this action will be successful.

In spite of the slightly chaotic present situation, it is clear that a great deal of careful thinking has been done about how to measure equipment noise in the United States; indeed, in this area the U. S. is somewhat in advance of the European practice.